
City of Henderson, Kentucky 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL CALLED MEETING 
FOR TUESDAY, DECEMBER 6, 2016 

December 2, 2016 

Commissioner Jan M. Hite 
Commissioner Jesse L. Johnston IV 
Commissioner Robert M. Mills 
Commissioner X Robert Royster III 

Dear Board Members: 

Please take notice that as Mayor of the City of Henderson, Kentucky, I hereby call a special 
called meeting of the Board of Commissioners on Tuesday, December 6, 2016, at 5:30 p.m., in 
the third floor assembly room, Municipal Center, 222 First Street, Henderson, Kentucky. The 
purpose of this called meeting is for the following: 

1. Invocation: 

2. Roll Call 

3. Recognition of Visitors 

4. Appearance of Citizens 

5. Proclamations 

6. Presentations: 

7. Public Hearings 

8. Consent Agenda: 

Minutes: 

Resolutions: 

9. Ordinances & Resolutions: 

Second Readings: 

Dr. Chuck Summers, First Christian Church 

Tony Iriti, Kyndle Chief Executive Officer 

Scott Foreman, Fire Chief -
Knight Township (Indiana) Foundation Presentation 

Trace Stevens, Parks & Recreation Director -
Award Presentations 

November 22, 2016 Regular Meeting 

Resolution Approving the Retaining of Hilliard Lyons, 
Louisville, Kentucky, to Provide Financial Advisor 
Services for Financing and Refinancing of Bonds and 
Authorizing City Manager to Execute Agreement and 
All Related Documents 

Ordinance Accepting Public Improvements -
Finley Addition Sewer Improvements 

Ordinance Regarding Annexation -
Palmer Oil Co., S. Green Street 

Ordinance Regarding ROW Annexation -
Palmer Oil Co., S. Green Street 

Ordinance Relating to Merchants' Use of Sidewalk in 
Central Business District 

Ordinance Amending Appropriation and Budget 
Ordinance, FY 201 7 



First Readings: 

Resolutions 

10. Municipal Orders 

Bids & Contracts: 

11. Unfinished Business 

12. City Manager's Report 

13. Commissioners' Reports 

14. Appointments 

15. Executive Session 

16. Miscellaneous 

17. Adjournment 

Ordinance Amending Job Classification and Pay Plan -
Exempt to Non-Exempt Status and Salary Adjustment to 
Meet Department of Labor Regulation Effective 
December 1, 2016 

Ordinance Relating to Pay Plan 

Ordinance Amending Employee Manual 

Ordinance Amending Appropriation and Budget 
Ordinance, FY 2017 

Ordinance Authorizing Issuance of City of Henderson 
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017 A; General 
Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 20178 to Refund 
Henderson Water Utility Bond, Series 2006A; and 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017C to 
Refund a Portion of City of Henderson General 
Obligation Bonds, Series 2007 

Ordinance Relating to Mobile Food Units 

Ordinance Establishing the Consumer Price Index Rate 
Adjustment 

Resolution Approving Advertisement for Bid and 
Distribution of Preliminary Official Statement for 
Purchase of General Obligation Bonds and Refunding 
Bonds 

Municipal Order Awarding Bid for Purchase of Type II 
Ambulance 

Municipal Order Accepting Quote for Purchase of 
Ambulance Accessories 

Municipal Order Awarding Bid for Rebranding and 
Refurbishing of Signs Located Within the City 
Corporate Limits 

Municipal Order Accepting Second Amendment to the 
System Purchase Agreement Between the City and Alert 
Public Safety Solutions and Authorizing Mayor to 
Execute Second Amendment to Alert Agreement 

Respectfully, 

Steve Austin, Mayor 



A copy of the foregoing notice received and service thereof waived this 61
1i day of December, 

2016. 

Commissioner Jan M. Hite 

Commissioner Jesse L. Johnston IV 

Commissioner Robert M. Mills 

Commissioner X Robert Royster III 



City Commission Memorandum 
16-246 

December 2, 2016 

TO: 

FROM: 

Mayor Steve Austin and the Board of Commissioners 

Russell R. Sights, City Managerp 

SUBJECT: Presentations 

Items scheduled under the Presentations section of the agenda are as follows: 

1. Presentation by Kyndle. Mr. Tony Iriti, new Chief Executive Officer, will be 
introduced. 

2. Presentation by Knight Township. A representative of Knight Township 
(Indiana) Foundation will present the City Fire Department with a check to be 
used for the purchase of new dive equipment. 

3. Presentation by Parks & Recreation. Mr. Trace Stevens, Director, will present 
two awards the City recently received from the Kentucky Recreation and 
Parks Society. 



City Commission Memorandum 
16-247 

December 2, 2016 

TO: 

FROM: 

Mayor Steve Austin and the Board of Commissioners 

Russell R. Sights, City Manager )2d 
SUBJECT: Consent Agenda 

The Consent Agenda for the meeting of December 6, 2016, contains the following: 

Minutes: November 22, 2016 Regular Meeting 

Resolutions: Resolution Approving the Retaining of Hilliard Lyons, Louisville, 
Kentucky, to Provide Financial Advisor Services for Financing of 
Bonds for Improvements to the 911 Radio, CAD and 
Communications Operations, Renovation of a Public Works 
Facility, Property Acquisition for a New Fire Station, and 
Refinancing of Henderson Water Utility Bond Series 2006A, and 
City of Henderson 2007 General Obligation Bonds and 
Authorizing City Manager to Execute Agreement and All Related 
Documents 
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A regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the City of Henderson, Kentucky, 
was held on Tuesday, November 22, 2016, at 5:30 p.m., prevailing time, in the third floor 
Assembly Room located in the Municipal Center Building at 222 First Street, Henderson, 
Kentucky. 

INVOCA Tl ON was given by Reverend Jeff Ferguson, First Assembly of God followed 
by recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance to our American Flag. 

There were present Mayor Steve Austin presiding: 

PRESENT: 
Commissioner Jan Hite 
Commissioner Jesse Johnston, IV 
Commissioner Robert M. (Robby) Mills 
Commissioner X R. Royster, III 

ALSO PRESENT: 
Mr. Russell R. Sights, City Manager 
Ms. Dawn Kelsey City Attorney 
Ms. Maree Collins, City Clerk 
Mr. William L. Newman, Jr. Assistant City Manager 
Mrs. Donna Stinnett, Public Information Officer 
Mr. Robert Gunter, Finance Director 
Mr. Charles Stauffer, Police Chief 
Mr. Mike Shockley, 9-1-1 Communications Supervisor 
Mr. Trace Stevens, Parks & Recreation Director 
Mr. Mark Simmons, Recreation Program Manager 
Mrs. Connie Galloway, Human Resources Director 
Mr. Scott Foreman, Fire Chief 
Mr. John Stroud, Acting Codes Administrator 
Mr. Dylan Ward, Public Works Engineer 
Mrs. Lynn Drew, Executive Assistant 
Mr. Ross Gustafson, Visitor from Sarasota, FL 
Mrs. Claire Gustafson, Visitor from Sarasota, FL 
Mr. Brian Bishop, City-County Planning Executive Director 
Mr. Tom Williams, HWU General Manager 
Mr. Eric A. Shappell, HWU Attorney 
Mr. Todd Bowley, HWU Chief Financial Officer 
Mr. Paul Bird, Water & Sewer Commission Chairman 
Mr. Brad Staton, City Commissioner Elect 
Mrs. Patti Bugg, City Commissioner Elect 
Reverend Jeff Ferguson, First Assembly of God 
Mr. Bill Latta, Latta Insurance Services, Inc. 
Deacon Floyd and Members of Calvary Baptist Church 
Mr. Joseph Hite 
Mr. Ron Jenkins 
Mr. Mike Richardson, Reserve Police Officer 
Ms. Brittany Ross, SurfKy Reporter 
Ms. Laura Acchiardo, the Gleaner 

APPEARANCE OF CITIZEN: 

DEACON FLOYD and members of the congregation of Calvary Baptist Church, 
requested that the Board of Commissioners approve a marquee sign at the church located at 600 
Martin Luther King, Jr. Boulevard. 
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MAYOR AUSTIN, indicated that this Board could not approve the signage; however, 
they could send the request to the Planning Commission for review of the zoning in that area. 
He then asked if there was a motion to forward the request to the Planning Commission for 
review and make recommendation on the matter. 

MOTION by Commissioner X R. Royster, seconded by Commissioner Jan Hite, to 
forward the request for a review of the signage regulations and make recommendation if changes 
are deemed appropriate relating to marquee signage for the church. 

The vote was called. On roll call, the vote stood: 

Commissioner Mills ------- Aye: 
Commissioner Johnston --- Aye: 
Commissioner Hite -------- Aye: 
Commissioner Royster---- Aye: 
Mayor Austin --------------- Aye: 

PRESENTATION: Refund of Unused Funds 

BRIAN BISHOP, Executive Director, Henderson-Henderson County Planning 
Commission presented the City with a check in the amount of $50,599.00 representing the City's 
portion of excess funds in their fiscal year 2016 operating budget largely due to reduction in 
personnel costs. Mr. Bishop indicated that they have consolidated duties and that as the City and 
County have to tighten their budgets, it is fair that the Planning Commission do the same. The 
difference of$17,996.00 between what the City is receiving and what the County is receiving is 
due to the County's shortage in last year's fiscal year funding ad will be placed into the Planning 
Commission's reserve fund, which was set up last year. 

PRESENTATION: Water & Sewer Commission Report on Audits of Financial 
Statements for Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 

BRAIN CRAFTON, Myriad CPA Group, gave a brief summary on the audit presented: 
Cash equivalents and investments are down compared to last year, due in part to capital 
investments that have been made over the previous years. Construction in progress is up by 
about $6,000,000.00 this year versus last year. The investment in capital assets is up by roughly 
$5,000,000.00. The equity that is built into Henderson Water Utility is mostly all in capital 
investments. Unrestricted reserves have gone from $7,800,000.00 to $2,674,000.00 due to 
construction projects. Henderson Water Utility operates on a fairly thin margin so it wouldn't 
take much to go into the red if something happened. In the last five years there has been about 
$45,000,000.00 invested in capital improvements, there is about $800,000.00 left on the Long 
Term Control Plan to complete projects for the next year. Henderson Water Utility is still in 
good shape, but not trending in the right direction. 

Mayor Austin asked if there were any questions, hearing none, he requested a motion to 
accept the report of the audit. 

MOTION by Commissioner Jesse Johnston, seconded by Commissioner Jan Hite, to 
accept the Water & Sewer Commission Report on Audits of Financial Statements for Fiscal Year 
2016 and 2015. 

The vote was called. On roll call, the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston --- Aye: 
Commissioner Hite -------- Aye: 
Commissioner Royster---- Aye: 
Commissioner Mills ------- Aye: 
Mayor Austin --------------- Aye: 
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PRESENTATION: 911 Communications System Update 

MIKE SHOCKLEY reported that the Committee met a few weeks ago to discuss the 
revised completion schedule. Several delays have caused the timeline to change from November 
to the first of the new year. Motorola worked with the microwave company to work out the 
delay on delivery and the microwaves have been installed for the main and backup sites and are 
currently being installed at the Crown Castle site. A meeting with consultant Rick Martin is 
being scheduled to review the timeline and any other items that might need to be addressed. 

Mayor Austin thanked Mike for his hard work on this very complex project of 
setting up two sites. 

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA: 

MAYOR AUSTIN asked the City Clerk to read the Consent Agenda. 

Minutes: October 25, 2016, Regular Meeting 
November 15, 2016, Work Session 

Motion by Commissioner Jan Hite, seconded by Commissioner Robert M. Mills, to 
approve the items on the Consent Agenda as presented. 

The vote was called. On roll call, the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston --- Aye: 
Commissioner Hite -------- Aye: 
Commissioner Royster---- Aye: 
Commissioner Mills ------- Aye: 
Mayor Austin --------------- Aye: 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the consent agenda items approved. 

ATTEST: 
Maree Collins, City Clerk 

ORDINANCE NO. 34-16: SECOND READ: 
ORDINANCE ACCEPTING PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 

/s/ Steve Austin 
Steve Austin, Mayor 
November 22, 2016 

AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT HARDING AVENUE KNOWN AS CORNBLEET & III C OF KY., LLC 
CONSOLIDATION SUBDIVISION LOT 1 OF LOTS 1 & 2 

MOTION by Commissioner X R. Royster, seconded by Commissioner Jesse Johnston, 
that the ordinance be adopted. 

The vote was called. On roll call, the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston --- Aye: 
Commissioner Hite -------- Aye: 
Commissioner Royster---- Aye: 
Commissioner Mills ------- Aye: 
Mayor Austin --------------- Aye: 



190 

CITY OF HENDERSON - RECORD BOOK 

Record of Minutes of __ _;_A-=--=R=e
0
gu=J=a=-r ___ _ Meeting on November 22, 2016 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted, affixed his signature and 
the date thereto and ordered that the same be recorded. 

ATTEST: 
Maree Collins, City Clerk 

ORDINANCE NO. 35-16: FIRST READ 

/s/ Steve Austin 
Steve Austin, Mayor 
November 22, 2016 

TOM WILLIAMS, Henderson Water Utility General Manager, explained that this is the 
last step in a long process, which started over seven years ago with a meeting between him, 
Buzzy Newman and Sandy Watkins. Fiscal Court passed a resolution at their meeting earlier 
today giving this public improvement over to Henderson Water Utility and this is the City's 
acceptance of the sewer project. The cost for the project was close to $1,500.000.00 

ORDINANCE NO. 35-16: ORDINANCE ACCEPTING PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 

AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTED IN 
THE FINLEY ADDITION (ALONG U.S. HWY 41-A, SPRINGFIELD DRIVE, AND 
WINCHESTER ROAD) CONSISTING OF WASTEWATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 

MOTION by Commissioner Robert M. Mills, seconded by Commissioner Jesse Johnston, 
that the ordinance be adopted. 

The vote was called. On roll call, the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston --- Aye: 
Commissioner Hite -------- Aye: 
Commissioner Royster---- Aye: 
Commissioner Mills ------- Aye: 
Mayor Austin --------------- Aye: 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted on its first reading and 
ordered that it be presented for a second reading at a meeting of the Board of Commissioners. 

ORDINANCE NO. 37-16: FIRST READ 
ORDINANCE REGARDING ANNEXATION 

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING CERTAIN UNINCORPORATED TERRITORY TO 
THE CITY OF HENDERSON, KENTUCKY, BEING LOCATED AT 2120 SOUTH GREEN 
STREET, IN HENDERSON COUNTY, CONTAINING 1.28 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, 
OWNED BY MARY ANNE GONNELLA, d/b/a PALMER OIL COMPANY 

MOTION by Commissioner X R. Royster, seconded by Commissioner Jan Hite, that the 
ordinance be adopted. 

RUSSELL R. SIGHTS, City Manager, explained that this is a voluntary annexation 
requested by the property owner and that every attempt is made to honor such requests to be 
annexed. 

The vote was called. On roll call, the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston --- Aye: 
Commissioner Hite-------- Aye: 
Commissioner Royster---- Aye: 
Commissioner Mills ------- Aye: 
Mayor Austin --------------- Aye: 
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WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted on its first reading and 
ordered that it be presented for a second reading at a meeting of the Board of Commissioners. 

ORDINANCE NO. 38-16: FIRST READ 

DAWN KELSEY, City Attorney, explained that when Highway 60 was widened the 
Transportation Cabinet took part of Palmer oil's property for right-of-way so we need to also 
annex this one small strip in front of Palmer Oil. Consent from the Department of 
Transportation was received this morning so this ordinance was added to the agenda/ Annexing 
this trip of right-of-way makes the maps cleaner for the state and GIS to show this as one whole 
piece as a part of the City. Mrs. Kelsey indicated that this unlike most annexations does not need 
to go to the Planning Commission because right-of-way is not zoned. 

ORDINANCE NO. 38-16: ORDINANCE REGARDING ANNEXATION 
AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING CERTAIN UNINCORPORATED TERRITORY TO 

THE CITY OF HENDERSON, KENTUCKY, BEING U.S. HWY 60 RIGHT-OF-WAY 
LOCATED AT 2120 SOUTH GREEN STREET, IN HENDERSON COUNTY, CONTAINING 
0.034 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, OWNED BY THE KENTUCKY TRANSPORTATION 
CABINET (KYTC) 

MOTION by Commissioner Jesse Johnston, seconded by Commissioner Jan Hite, that 
the ordinance be adopted. 

The vote was called. On roll call, the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston --- Aye: 
Commissioner Hite -------- Aye: 
Commissioner Royster ---- Aye: 
Commissioner Mills ------- Aye: 
Mayor Austin --------------- Aye: 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted on its first reading and 
ordered that it be presented for a second reading at a meeting of the Board of Commissioners. 

ORDINANCE NO. 36-16: FIRST READ 

DAWN KELSEY, City Attorney, indicated that this is not the first time you all have seen 
this subject matter. The redrafted ordinance is based on concerns that were raised at previous 
meetings. This will allow merchants to use no more than three feet of sidewalk in front of their 
business in which to display items and requires that at least four and one-half feet remain open 
and unobstructed to comply with ADA regulations. Section 4 relating to insurance coverage 
acceptable to the City has been changed to an A rated insurance company. Mrs. Kelsey indicated 
that those are the differences from what you saw last time this came before you. 

ORDINANCE NO. 36-16: ORDINANCE RELATING TO MERCHANTS USE OF 
SIDEWALK IN CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT 

ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING SECTION 20-11, SALE OF MERCHANDISE ON 
SIDEWALK IN CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT, OF ARTICLE I, IN GENERAL OF 
CHAPTER 20, STREETS, SIDEWALKS, AND OTHER PUBLIC PLACES, OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF HENDERSON PERMITTED TO BUSINESSES 
LOCATED IN THE CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT 

MOTION by Commissioner Robert M. Mills, seconded by Commissioner Jan Hite, that 
the ordinance be adopted. 
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DAWN KELSEY, City Attorney, indicated that she had asked Mr. Latta to attend as the 
City's insurance carrier's representative to address the question of whether the city should be 
named as an additional insured. 

BILL LA TT A, Latta Insurance Services, Inc., relayed that it is very commonplace in the 
insurance industry to have additional named insured on policies and the cost to the client 
providing that can run anywhere from $0 to possibly $250.00. For most of these businesses, in 
this instance, depending on the carrier, Mr. Latta indicated that he expected the cost to be in the 
$0 to $50.00 range. 

The vote was called. On roll call, the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston --- Aye: 
Commissioner Hite -------- Aye: 
Commissioner Royster ---- Aye: 
Commissioner Mills ------- Aye: 
Mayor Austin --------------- Aye: 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted on its first reading and 
ordered that it be presented for a second reading at a meeting of the Board of Commissioners. 

ORDINANCE NO. 39-16: FIRST READ 
ORDINANCE AMENDING BUDGET AND APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING BUDGET AND APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR COMMENCING JULY 1, 2016 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2017 
FOR THE CITY OF HENDERSON, KENTUCKY 

MOTION by Commissioner X R. Royster, seconded by Commissioner Jan Hite, that the 
ordinance be adopted. 

ROBERT GUNTER, Finance Director, detailed the listed revisions to the budget and 
appropriation. He explained that salary increases were included as discussed at the work session 
relating to FLSA regulation changes in the amounts of $6,000.00 to the City Manager division, 
$9,000.00 in the Golf division, $1,000.00 in the Recreation division, and $4,000.00 in the Police 
department. Other changes included: $13,000.00 for construction of Braxton Park Drive; $6,000 
for one-half of the cost of protective netting for the HGSA (a formal written request is expected); 
$84,000.00 for the HOME GAP fund-the City received funding that was not anticipated when 
the budget was adopted; $625,000.00 for the purchase of property on Second Street to be used as 
a fire station; and a $210,000.00 transfer from the General Fund to the 911 Fund for a phone 
system. The City has applied for a Kentucky 911 Service grant in the amount of $175,000.00 
and is expecting hear within the next few weeks whether or not it will be funded. It is hoped that 
with the $175,000.00 grant the City's cost will be less, but the $210,000.00 amount would be the 
most the City would pay for that project. 

COMMISSIONER MILLS asked if there was information on how many other 
communities were competing for the grant. 

CHARLES STAUFFER, Police Chief, indicated that this is a statewide grant funded by 
the old CMRS Board now called the Kentucky 911 Service Board and that it is his understanding 
from communications with that office that they can't guarantee anything, but they have not seen 
anybody that has applied for one of their solutions not get funded. The $175,000.00 amount is 
based on approximately $35,000.00 for each full-time positions and they recognize us as having 
five full-time positions. 

RUSSELL R. SIGHTS, City Manager, reported that a letter of request for the netting for 
the softball fields was received earlier this afternoon and should probably be considered 
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separately after the appropriation ordinance has been approved. 

The vote was called. On roll call, the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston --- Aye: 
Commissioner Hite -------- Aye: 
Commissioner Royster---- Aye: 
Commissioner Mills ------- Aye: 
Mayor Austin --------------- Aye: 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted on its first reading and 
ordered that it be presented for a second reading at a meeting of the Board of Commissioners. 

REPORT: Request from Henderson Girls Softball Association for additional funding. 

MAYOR AUSTIN reported that a letter of request with a quote for replacing the safety 
netting at the girl's softball fields has been provided. The netting has disintegrated over the 
course of the last 15 years and there are large holes in it that foul balls get through endangering 
spectators in the stands. 

Mayor Austin asked for a motion to approve the request for $6,000.00 as the City's 
portion of cost sharing to replace the safety netting/fencing at the Henderson Girls Softball 
fields. 

MOTION by Commissioner Jan Hite, seconded by Commissioner X R. Royster, to 
approve additional funding for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017 to the Henderson Girls 
Softball Association in the amount of$6,000.00 as the City's portion of capital improvements for 
the replacement/enhancement of backstop fencing for the safety of spectators. 

The vote was called. On roll call, the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston --- Aye: 
Commissioner Hite -------- Aye: 
Commissioner Royster ---- Aye: 
Commissioner Mills ------- Aye: 
Mayor Austin --------------- Aye: 

ORDINANCE NO. 40-16: FIRST READ 
ORDINANCE AMENDING JOB CLASSIFICATION AND PAY PLAN 

ORDINANCE AMENDING JOB CLASSIFICATION AND PAY PLAN TO COMPLY 
WITH FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS ACT (FSLA) BY MAINTAINING THE EXEMPT 
ST A TUS OF THE GOLF COURSE MANAGER AND INCREASING HIS ANNUAL 
SALARY TO THE THRESHOLD OF $47,476; AND CHANGING FOUR (4) POLICE 
LIEUTENANTS POSITIONS AND ONE (1) RECREATION FACILITIES SUPERVISOR 
POSITION TO NON-EXEMPT ST A TUS 

MOTION by Commissioner Jan Hite, seconded by Commissioner Robert M. Mills, that 
the ordinance be adopted. 

MAYOR AUSTIN indicated that this is a result of discussion at the work session relating to the 
FLSA regulation changes. 

The vote was called. On roll call, the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston --- Aye: 



194 

CITY OF HENDERSON - RECORD BOOK 

Record of Minutes o/ __ ---"A-"-"'R=e,....gu=la=r _____ Meeting on November 22, 2016 

Commissioner Hite-------- Aye: 
Commissioner Royster---- Aye: 
Commissioner Mills ------- Aye: 
Mayor Austin --------------- Aye: 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted on its first reading and 
ordered that it be presented for a second reading at a meeting of the Board of Commissioners. 

RESOLUTION 57-16: 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SUBMITTAL OF GRANT APPLICATION TO THE 

FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY UNDER THE ASSISTANCE TO 
FIREFIGHTERS GRANT PROGRAM, IN THE AMOUNT OF $82,000.00 WITH A 10% 
MATCH OF $8,200.00, TO PURCHASE AN EMERGENCY RESPONSE PACKAGE FOR 
THE FIRE DEPARTMENT, AND ACCEPTING GRANT IF A WARDED 

MOTION by Commissioner X R. Royster, seconded by Commissioner Jan Hite to 
approve submittal of the grant application under the Assistance to Firefighters program for an 
emergency response package which includes a brush skid unit for an existing F250 truck; a UTV 
brush/medical unit for trail systems and state parks; an emergency response boat for small 
creeks, state park lakes, and flood waters; and a firefighter turnout gear dryer. 

SCOTT FOREMAN, Fire Chief, reported that the grant criteria was difficult to match 
this year; however, they believe they found one area, an Emergency Response Package including 
a brush skid unit that will be placed on one of the existing 4-wheel drive vehicles that will allow 
us to fight fire off road. Also in the package is a UTV Brush/Medical Unit that is basically like a 
4-wheeler that will be used on our trail systems, the new trail system at Newman Park and 
Audubon State Park; a small inflatable hand launched Response Boat to be used on creeks, small 
lakes and flood waters; and a Firefighter Turnout Gear Dryer to shorten the lag time on getting 
turnout gear cleaned, dried and back in service. 

RUSSELL R. SIGHTS, City Manager, applauded the Fire Chief and his personnel for 
looking at alternatives to make our system more efficient. He further indicated that the same 
applies to Police Chief Stauffer in the analysis that he has made on the 911 system and looking at 
the alternatives for us to upgrade the system. 

The vote was called. On roll call, the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston --- Aye: 
Commissioner Hite -------- Aye: 
Commissioner Royster ---- Aye: 
Commissioner Mills ------- Aye: 
Mayor Austin--------------- Aye: 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the resolution adopted, affixed his signature and 
the date thereto, and ordered that the same be recorded. 

ATTEST: 
Maree Collins, City Clerk 

MUNICIPAL ORDER NO. 57-16: 

/s/ Steve Austin 
Steve Austin, Mayor 
November 22, 2016 

MUNICIPAL ORDER APPROVING SALARY INCREASE FOR THE PUBLIC 
INFORMATION OFFICER (PIO) POSITION TO THE MINIMUM SALARY THRESHOLD 
FOR AN EXEMPT EMPLOYEE AS SET BY DEPARTMENT OF LABOR REGULATION 
UNDER THE FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT EFFECTIVE DECEMBER 1, 2016 

MOTION by Commissioner X R. Royster, seconded by Commissioner Robert M. Mills, 
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to adopt the municipal order increasing the Public Information Officer position annual salary to 
the minimum threshold of$47,476.00 in order to retain exempt employee status. 

The vote was called. On roll call, the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston --- Aye: 
Commissioner Hite -------- Aye: 
Commissioner Royster---- Aye 
Commissioner Mills ------- Aye: 
Mayor Austin --------------- Aye: 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the municipal order adopted, affixed his 
signature and the date thereto, and ordered that the same be recorded. 

ATTEST: 
Maree Collins, City Clerk 

MUNICIPAL ORDER NO. 58-16: 

/s/ Steve Austin 
Steve Austin, Mayor 
November 22, 2016 

MUNICIPAL ORDER APPROVING CHANGE ORDER #2 TO THE CONTRACT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF HENDERSON AND DANCO CONSTRUCTION, INC., 
REGARDING THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT OF THE NEW MUNICIPAL SERVICE 
CENTER, FOR A CREDIT TO THE CITY IN THE AMOUNT OF $13,876.00 

MOTION by Commissioner Jan Hite, seconded by Commissioner Robert M. Mills, to 
adopt the municipal order approving Change Order #2 to the Danco Construction, Inc. 
Construction Contract for the Municipal Service Center for a credit to the City of$13,876.00. 

DYLAN WARD, Public Works Engineer, indicated that the project is progressing well 
and still on schedule to be substantially complete by the end of this year. Hazex is currently 
working on getting the final grade for the asphalt and the base asphalt is scheduled for next week 
or possibly the week after depending on the weather. This Change Order #2 for a credit of 
$13,876.00 includes a multitude of changes necessary as the project has progressed. There is 
expected to be a final change order to wrap everything up at completion of the project. 

WILLIAM L. NEWMAN, JR., Assistant City Manager, added that he would like to 
commend Dylan for a job well done and that the contractor, especially the superintendent, has 
really worked with Dylan to make the process smoother. The project has not been without 
issues, but no construction project ever is and these are things that are to be expected. 

The vote was called. On roll call, the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston --- Aye: 
Commissioner Hite -------- Aye: 
Commissioner Royster---- Aye: 
Commissioner Mills ------- Aye: 
Mayor Austin --------------- Aye: 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the municipal order adopted, affixed his 
signature and the date thereto, and ordered that the same be recorded. 

ATTEST: 
Maree Collins, City Clerk 

/s/ Steve Austin 
Steve Austin, Mayor 

November 22, 2016 

REPORT: Federal court in Texas Issues Nationwide Injunction on the Obama 
Administration's Rule for the FLSA. 
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DAWN KELSEY, City Attorney, interrupted the proceedings to report that she had just 
received a text indicating that then minutes ago the Federal Court in Texas had issued a 
nationwide injunction on the Obama Administration's rule for the FLSA, which we just took 
action on. She went on to say, "I don't know if you all want to rethink any of the actions that 
you all have taken here tonight as to the PIO position or the ordinance." Mayor Austin asked if 
she had a suggestion on how to proceed. Russell Sights indicated that he felt that it best to leave 
everything in place the way that it was passed until more information is received. Mayor Austin 
asked if anyone had objection to waiting to find out more and see what happens before taking 
any further action. There were no objections. 

APPEARANCE OF CITIZEN: 

MR. ROSS GUSTAFSON, Sarasota, Florida, relayed that he and his wife were visiting 
Henderson and wanted to report what a pleasant visit they have had to our friendly town. He 
indicated that they have had nothing but a pleasant time and that everybody had been helpful. 
He further hoped that when you visit Sarasota they can do as well. 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: 

RUSSELL R. SIGHTS, City Manager, reported he had intended to have our new 
Executive Assistant, Lynn Drew, introduce her parents that are visiting from Sarasota, Florida, 
but that her father beat him to the punch. Mrs. Drew then introduced her parents Ross and Claire 
Gustafson that are visiting for the Thanksgiving holiday. 

Mr. Sights indicated that he had several things to discuss the first relating to certain 
funding agreements with Outside Agencies that require an audit and that he had received 
notification from the humane Society's auditors that they cannot comply with the Agreement due 
to some records being inadvertently destroyed during the recent administration transition. The 
auditor will be able to complete a Balance Sheet Review but not a full audit. It seems that some 
payroll records are missing and were probably inadvertently destroyed during the reorganization 
and administration change. It does not seem to have been intentional or done maliciously, just 
certain payroll records are missing and without them the auditor cannot complete an audit for the 
2015 and 2016 years. The Board of Commissioners has the authority to waive the requirement 
by a motion here tonight and that will allow the Balance Sheet Review and related records and 
accept that in lieu of the audit for this organization for Fiscal Years 2015 and 2016. 

Mayor Austin agreed and asked for a motion to approve waiving the requirement for a 
full audit and approving acceptance of the auditor's Balance Sheet Review for the Fiscal Years 
2015 and 2016. 

MOTION by Commissioner X R. Royster, seconded by Commissioner Jan Hite, to 
approve the waiver of the Humane Society providing a full audit for the 2015 and 2016 fiscal 
years as required in the annual funding Agreement. They will however, forward the auditor's 
Balance Sheet Review and related documents as soon as it is available. Further, if the 
circumstances continue it could result in termination of funding. 

COMMISSIONER ELECT PATTI BUGG asked that the Board consider whatever action 
would be necessary to keep the Agreement in force. 

The vote was called. On roll call, the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston --- Aye: 
Commissioner Hite -------- Aye: 
Commissioner Royster---- Aye: 
Commissioner Mills ------- Aye: 
Mayor Austin--------------- Aye: 

Mr. Sights also reported that the John F. Kennedy Center had received a donation of a 
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United States flag from the Reverend David Petrie to be installed inside the center. 

Mr. Sights further reported that the clinic for city employees will open at the Second 
Street Methodist Hospital Clinic Facility on Tuesday, January 3rd, 2017. He indicated that this 
has been a long time coming and we are excited to finally see it open. He then wished everyone 
a happy Thanksgiving. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: Litigation 

MOTION by Commissioner X R. Royster, seconded by Commissioner Robert M. Mills 
to go into Executive Session pursuant to the provisions of KRS 61.810 ( 1) ( c) for the discussion 
of pending litigation on behalf of the city. 

The vote was called. On roll call, the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston --- Aye: 
Commissioner Hite -------- Aye: 
Commissioner Royster---- Aye: 
Commissioner Mills ------- Aye: 
Mayor Austin --------------- Aye: 

MEETING RECONVENED: 

MOTION by Commissioner Robert M. Mills, seconded by Commissioner Jesse Johnston, 
the Board of Commissioners reconvened in regular session. 

The vote was called. On roll call, the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston --- Aye: 
Commissioner Hite-------- Aye: 
Commissioner Royster---- Aye: 
Commissioner Mills------- Aye: 
Mayor Austin --------------- Aye: 

RESOLUTION 58-16: 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING INSTITUTION OF PROCEEDING UNDER 

EMINENT DOMAIN ACTION FO KENTUCKY AGAINST H. JOSEPH BANNA AND 
LEWELLYN S. BANNA FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2458 JAMESTOWN DRIVE FOR 
A HENDERSON WATER UTILITY EASEMENT 

MOTION by Commissioner X R. Royster, seconded by Commissioner Jesse Johnston to 
authorize the institution of proceeding under the Eminent Domain Action of Kentucky against H. 
Joseph Banna and Lewellyn S. Banna for property located at 2458 Jamestown Drive for a 
Henderson Water Utility Easement in order to upgrade the Myrene Drive Sewer Pump Station 
and the associated force main from that station known as the Myrene Drive Force Main Project. 

The vote was called. On roll call, the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston --- Aye: 
Commissioner Hite -------- Aye: 
Commissioner Royster---- Aye: 
Commissioner Mills ------- Aye: 
Mayor Austin --------------- Aye: 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the resolution adopted, affixed his signature and 
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the date thereto, and ordered that the same be recorded. 

ATTEST: 
Maree Collins, City Clerk 

MEETING ADJOURN: 

/s/ Steve Austin 
Steve Austin, Mayor 
November 22, 2016 

MOTION by Commissioner Robert M. Mills, seconded by Commissioner X R. Royster, 
to adjourn the meeting. 

The vote was called. On roll call, the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston --- Aye: 
Commissioner Hite-------- Aye: 
Commissioner Royster---- Aye: 
Commissioner Mills ------- Aye: 
Mayor Austin--------------- Aye: 

WITHOUT OBJECTION, Mayor Austin declared the Meeting adjourned at 
approximately 7:00 p.m. 

ATTEST: 

Maree Collins, City Clerk 

Steve Austin, Mayor 
December 06, 2016 



RESOLUTION NO. ---

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE RETAINING OF HILLIARD LYONS, LOUISVILLE, 
KENTUCKY, TO PROVIDE FINANCIAL ADVISOR SERVICES FOR FINANCING OF 
BONDS FOR IMPROVEMENTS TO THE 911 RADIO, CAD AND COMMUNICATIONS 
OPERATIONS, RENOVATION OF A PUBLIC WORKS FACILITY, PROPERTY 
ACQUISITION FOR A NEW FIRE STATION, AND REFINANCING OF HENDERSON 
WATER UTILITY BOND SERIES 2006A, AND CITY OF HENDERSON 2007 GENERAL 
OBLIGATION BONDS AND AUTHORIZING CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
AGREEMENT AND ALL RELATED DOCUMENTS 

WHEREAS, the City of Henderson is in need of financial advisor services for the 
financing of bonds for the improvement and construction of certain municipal facilities; 
improvement to the 911 radio, CAD and communications operations, renovation of a public works 
facility, property acquisition of property for a new fire station and refinancing of Henderson Water 
Utility Bond Series 2006A, and City of Henderson General Obligation Bonds Series 2007; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to retain Hilliard Lyons of Louisville, Kentucky to 
perform such services; and the City Manager recommends said firm be retained. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Henderson, Kentucky, that 
the recommendation of the City Manager is approved, and Hilliard Lyons, P.O. Box 32760, 
Louisville, Kentucky 40232-2760 is hereby retained to provide financial advisor services for the 
financing of bonds for improvements to the 911 radio, CAD and communications operations, and 
renovation of a Public Works facility, acquisition of property for a new fire station and refinancing 
of Henderson Water Utility Bond 2006 SeriesA and City of Henderson General Obligation Bonds 
2007 Series and the City Manager is authorized to execute an agreement with said company, a copy 
of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, and authority to sign all other 
related documents. 

On motion of Commissioner , seconded by Commissioner 
_______ , that the foregoing Resolution be adopted, the vote was called. On roll call the 
vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston: Commissioner Mills: ----
Commissioner Hite: Mayor Austin: 
Commissioner Royster: 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the Resolution adopted, affixed his signature 
and the date thereto and ordered that the same be recorded. 

ATTEST: 

Maree Collins, City Clerk 

Steve Austin, Mayor 
Date: -----------



APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
LEGALITY THIS DAY OF 
NOVEMBER, 2016. 

By: 

City Attorney 



~-P HIWARD LYONS 

November 18, 2016 

Mr. Russell Sights 
City Manager 
City of Henderson 
P.O. Box 716 

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR ENGAGEMENT CONTRACT 

Henderson, Kentucky 42419 

Dear Mr. Sights: 

Hilliard Lyons ("Municipal Advisor") appreciates the opportunity to serve as municipal advisor to City of 
Henderson, Kentucky ("Client"). Upon your acceptance, this engagement letter (the "Agreement") will 
serve as our mutual agreement with respect to the terms and conditions of our engagement as your 
municipal advisor, effective on the date this Agreement is executed by Client (the "Effective Date"). 

1. Scope of Services 
Hilliard Lyons is engaged by Client as its Municipal Advisor to provide the services with respect to 

the issuances of municipal securities, the structure of bank loans or leases, or other financing programs 
the Client may consider ("Issue") [or municipal financial products ("Products")] set forth in Appendix A 
(the "Scope of Services"). 

2. Municipal Advisor's Regulatory Duties When Serving Client 
MSRB Rule G-42 requires that Municipal Advisor make a reasonable inquiry as to the facts that 

are relevant to Client's determination whether to proceed with a course of action or that form the basis for 
and advice provided by Municipal Advisor to Client. The rule also requires that Municipal Advisor 
undertake a reasonable investigation to determine that it is not basing any recommendation on materially 
inaccurate or incomplete information. Municipal Advisor is also required under the rule to use reasonable 
diligence to know the essential facts about Client and the authority of each person acting on Client's 
behalf. 

Client agrees to cooperate, and to cause its agents to cooperate, with Municipal Advisor in 
carrying out these regulatory duties, including providing to Municipal Advisor accurate and complete 
information and reasonable access to relevant documents, other information and personnel needed to 
fulfill such duties. In addition, Client agrees that, to the extent Client seeks to have Municipal Advisor 
provide advice with regard to any recommendation made by a third party, Client will provide to Municipal 
Advisor written direction to do so as well as any information it has received from such third party relating 
to its recommendation. 

3. Term of this Engagement 
The term of this Agreement begins on the Effective Date and ends, unless earlier terminated as 

provided below, [at the close of business on the settlement date for the Issue]. This Agreement may be 
terminated with or without cause by either party upon the giving of at least thirty (30) days' prior written 
notice to the other party of its intention to terminate, specifying in such notice the effective date of such 
termination. 
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4. Compensation 
Fees and expenses. The fees due to Municipal Advisor hereunder shall be, and expenses 

incurred by Municipal Advisor in connection with any services provided hereunder shall be reimbursed, as 
set forth in Appendix B. 

5. Required Disclosures 
MSRB Rule G-42 requires that Municipal Advisor provide you with disclosures of material 

conflicts of interest and of information regarding certain legal events and disciplinary history. Such 
disclosures are provided in Municipal Advisor's Disclosure Statement delivered to Client together with this 
Agreement. 

6. Post-Pricing Purchase of New Issue Securities [if applicable] 
In accordance with MSRB Rule G-23, when serving as a Municipal Advisor, Hilliard Lyons may 

not function as an underwriter for the Client's financing. Rule G-23 does not prohibit Municipal Advisor 
from purchasing a client's bonds from an underwriter following pricing of the bonds and Hilliard may do 
so. 

7. Waiver of Jury Trial 
EACH PARTY AGREES TO WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY WITH RESPECT TO 

ANY CLAIM, COUNTERCLAIM OR ACTION ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
AGREEMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY OR THE RELATIONSHIP 
BETWEEN THE PARTIES. PARTIES AGREE TO WAIVE CONSEQUENTIAL AND PUNATIVE 
DAMAGES. 

8. Choice of Law 
This Agreement shall be construed and given effect in accordance with the laws of Kentucky. 

9. Binding Effect: Assignment 
This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Client and Municipal Advisor, 

their respective successors and permitted assigns; provided however, neither party may assign or 
transfer any of its rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the other party. 

10. Entire Agreement 
This instrument, including all appendices hereto, contains the entire agreement between the 

parties relating to the rights herein granted and obligations herein assumed. This Agreement may not be 
amended, supplemented or modified except by means of a written instrument executed by both parties. 

11. Severability 
If any provision of this Agreement is, or is held or deemed to be, invalid, inoperative or 

unenforceable as applied in any particular case in any jurisdiction or jurisdictions because it conflicts with 
any provisions of any constitution, statute, rule or public policy, or for any other reason, such 
circumstances shall not make the provision in question invalid, inoperative or unenforceable in any other 
case or circumstance, or make any other provision or provisions of this Agreement invalid, inoperative or 
unenforceable to any extent whatever. 

12. No Third Party Beneficiary 
This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the parties and their respective successors and 

permitted assigns. Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is intended to confer on any person, 
other than the parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns, any rights, remedies, 
obligations or liabilities under or by reason of this Agreement. 
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13. Authority 
The undersigned represents and warrants that (s)he has full legal authority to execute this 

Agreement on behalf of Client. The following individuals have the authority to direct Municipal Advisor's 
performance of its activities under this Agreement: 

14. Counterparts 
This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be an original, but which 

taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

ACCEPTED AND AGREED: 

CITY OF HENDERSON, KENTUCKY 

By: ___________ _ 

Title: ____________ _ 

Date: ____________ _ 
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J.J.B. HILLIARD, W.L. LYONS, LLC 
MUNICIPAL ADVISOR 

By: ___________ _ 

Title: ____________ _ 

Date: ____________ _ 



APPENDIX A
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

PROPOSED ISSUES: New Money - various improvements to City; 
Refunding - Currently Refund Series 2006 Water & Sewer Bonds; and 
Refunding - Currently Refund Series 2007 General Obligation Bonds 

For the sake of clarity, references to "advice" or "advising" in this Scope of Services do not refer to legal 
advice generally or legal advice regarding the tax treatment of the proposed issue, and should not be 
relied upon as such. Municipal Advisor is not a law firm. Municipal Advisor shall or may undertake some 
or all of the following activities for or on behalf of Client with respect to the lssue(s) [or Product(s)] in 
carrying out this engagement, as directed by Client: 

New /ssues/Refundings. Provide some or all of the following services with respect to Client's new 
lssue(s)/Refundings: 
1. Evaluate options or alternatives with respect to the proposed new Issue, including refunding 

opportunities. 
2. Review recommendations made by other parties to Client with respect to the new Issue 
3. Review financial and other information regarding Client, the proposed Issue and any source of 

repayment of or security for the Issue 
4. Consult with and/or advise Client on actual or potential changes in market place practices, market 

conditions, regulatory requirements or other matters that may have an impact on Client and its 
financing plans 

5. Assist Client in establishing a plan of financing 
6. Assist Client in establishing the structure, timing, terms and other similar matters concerning the 

Issue 
7. Prepare the financing schedule 
8. Provide assistance as to scheduling, coordinating and meeting procedural requirements relating 

to any required bond referendum, other than through cash or in-kind contributions with respect to 
such referendum 

9. Consult and meet with representatives of Client and its agents or consultants with respect to the 
Issue 

10. Attend meetings of Client's governing body, as requested 
11. Advise Client on the manner of sale of the Issue 
12. Assist in the gathering of information with respect to financial, statistical and factual information 

relating to Client in connection with the preparation of the preliminary and final official statement 
13. For a competitive bid where the Client has not engaged disclosure counsel to prepare the 

preliminary and final official statement, assist the Client in preparing the preliminary and final 
official statement and the bid package, obtain CUSIP numbers and provide an electronic version 
of the official statement to the winning underwriter 

14. Make arrangements for printing, advertising and other vendor services necessary or appropriate 
in connection with the Issue 

15. Advise Client with regard to any continuing disclosure undertaking required to be entered into in 
connection with the Issue, including advising on the selection of a dissemination agent 

16. Assist Client in collecting and analyzing bids submitted by underwriters and in connection with 
Client's selection of a winning bidder 

17. Prior to the time of sale, provide Client with relevant data on comparable issues recently or 
currently being sold nationally and by comparable Clients [Necessary for KY competitively sold 
bond issues?] 

18. Review required underwriter disclosures to Client [where applicable] 
19. Assist Client in selecting legal and other professionals (such as paying agent, verification agent, 

trustee, escrow agent, accountant, feasibility consultant, etc.) to work on the Issue 
20. Respond to questions from bidders, underwriters or potential investors 
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21. Arrange and facilitate visits to, prepare materials for, and make recommendations to Client in 
connection with credit ratings agencies, insurers and other credit or liquidity providers 

22. Work with bond counsel and other transaction participants to prepare and/or review necessary 
authorizing documentation of Client and other documents necessary to finalize and close the 
Issue 

23. Coordinate working group sessions, closing, delivery of the new Issue and transfer of funds 
24. Prepare a closing memorandum or transaction summary for Client with respect to such matters 

as sources and uses of funds disposition of close, debt service repayment schedule, etc. 
25. If requested by Client, assist and provide guidance with respect to the investment of bond 

proceeds. If such service are provided by Municipal Advisor, a separate schedule of fees for 
such services will be provided to Client, but in no case will said fees exceed fees as promulgated 
by the United States Treasury Department. 
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APPENDIX B
COMPENSATION 

[to be omitted if compensation provisions set out within text of Engagement Letter] 

Fees for the services provided by Municipal Advisor to Client under this Agreement and the manner for 
payment of expenses incurred by Municipal Advisor in the course of performing its services are as set 
forth below: 

In consideration of the services rendered and the risk of the expense to be assumed by us, it is agreed 
that we shall be paid out of Bond proceeds a fee equal to $2. 75 per $1,000 of par amount of bonds sold 
(minimum of $10,000 for each series of bonds issued). These fees shall be paid to us upon the sale and 
delivery of the Bonds. 



DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 
OF 

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR 

This Disclosure Statement is provided by Hilliard Lyons ("Municipal Advisor") to City of Henderson, 
Kentucky (the "Client") in connection with the Municipal Advisor Engagement Letter dated November 18, 
2016 (the "Agreement") and is dated as of the same date as the Agreement. This Disclosure Statement 
provides information regarding conflicts of interest and legal or disciplinary events of Municipal Advisor 
required to be disclosed to Client pursuant to MSRB Rule G-42(b) and (c)(ii). 

PART A- Disclosures of Conflicts of Interest 

MSRB Rule G-42 requires that municipal advisors provide to their clients disclosures relating to any actual 
or potential material conflicts of interest, including certain categories of potential conflicts of interest 
identified in Rule G-42, if applicable. If no such material conflicts of interest are known to exist based on 
the exercise of reasonable diligence by the municipal advisor, municipal advisors are required to provide a 
written statement to that effect. 

General Mitigations - As general mitigations of Municipal Advisor's conflicts, with respect to all of the 
conflicts disclosed below, Municipal Advisor. mitigates such conflicts through its adherence to its fiduciary 
duty to Client, which includes a duty of loyalty to Client in performing all municipal advisory activities for 
Client. This duty of loyalty obligates Municipal Advisor to deal honestly and with the utmost good faith with 
Client and to act in Client's best interests without regard to Municipal Advisor's financial or other interests. 
In addition, because Municipal Advisor is a broker-dealer with significant capital due to the nature of its 
overall business, the success and profitability of Municipal Advisor is not dependent on maximizing short
term revenue generated from individualized recommendations to its clients but instead is dependent on 
long-term profitably built on a foundation of integrity, quality of service and strict adherence to its fiduciary 
duty. Furthermore, Municipal Advisor's municipal advisory supervisory structure, leveraging our long
standing and comprehensive broker-dealer supervisory processes and practices, provides strong 
safeguards against individual representatives of Municipal Advisor potentially departing from their 
regulatory duties due to personal interests. The disclosures below describe, as applicable, any additional 
mitigations that may be relevant with respect to any specific conflict disclosed below. 

I. Compensation-Based Conflicts. The fees due under this Agreement will be based on the size of the 
Issue and the payment of such fees shall be contingent upon the delivery of the Issue. While this form of 
compensation is customary in the municipal securities market, this may present a conflict because it could 
create an incentive for Municipal Advisor to recommend unnecessary financings or financings that are 
disadvantageous to Client, or to advise Client to increase the size of the issue. This conflict of interest is 
mitigated by the general mitigations described above. 

II. Other Municipal Advisor or Underwriting Relationships. Municipal Advisor serves a wide variety of 
other clients that may from time to time have interests that could have a direct or indirect impact on the 
interests of Client. For example, Municipal Advisor serves as municipal advisor to other municipal advisory 
clients and, in such cases, owes a regulatory duty to such other clients just as it does to Client under this 
Agreement. These other clients may, from time to time and depending on the specific circumstances, have 
competing interests, such as accessing the new issue market with the most advantageous timing and with 
limited competition at the time of the offering. In acting in the interests of its various clients, Municipal 
Advisor could potentially face a conflict of interest arising from these competing client interests. In other 
cases, as a broker-dealer that engages in underwritings of new issuances of municipal securities by other 
municipal entities, the interests of Municipal Advisor to achieve a successful and profitable underwriting for 
its municipal entity underwriting clients could potentially constitute a conflict of interest if, as in the example 
above, the municipal entities that Municipal Advisor serves as underwriter or municipal advisor have 
competing interests in seeking to access the new issue market with the most advantageous timing and with 
limited competition at the time of the offering. None of these other engagements or relationships would 
impair Municipal Advisor's ability to fulfill its regulatory duties to Client. 



111. Broker-Dealer and Investment Advisory Business. Municipal Advisor is a broker-dealer and
investment advisory firm that engages in a broad range of securities-related activities to service its clients,
in addition to serving as a municipal advisor or underwriter. Such securities-related activities, which may
include but are not limited to the buying and selling of new issue and outstanding securities and investment
advice in connection with such securities including securities of Client, may be undertaken on behalf of, or
as counterparty to, Client, personnel of Client, and current or potential investors in the securities of Client.
These other clients may, from time to time and depending on the specific circumstances, have interests in
conflict with those of Client, such as when their buying or selling of Client's securities may have an adverse
effect on the market for Client's securities, and the interests of such other clients could create the incentive
for Municipal Advisor to make recommendations to Client that could result in more advantageous pricing
for the other clients. Furthermore, any potential conflict arising from Municipal Advisor effecting or otherwise
assisting such other clients in connection with such transactions is mitigated by means of such activities
being engaged in on customary terms through units of the Municipal Advisor that operate independently
from Municipal Advisor's municipal advisory business, thereby reducing the Iikelihood that the interests of
such other clients would have an impact on the services provided by Municipal Advisor to Client under this
Agreement.

IV. Secondary Market Transactions in Client's Securities. Municipal Advisor, in connection with its sales
and trading activities, may take a principal position in securities, including securities of Client, and therefore
Municipal Advisor could have interests in conflict with those of Client with respect to the value of Client's
securities while held in inventory and the Ievels of mark-up or mark-down that may be available in
connection with purchases and sales thereof. In particular, Municipal Advisor or its affiliates may submit
orders for and acquire Client's securities issued in an Issue under the Agreement from members of the
underwriting syndicate, either for its own account or for the accounts of its customers. This activity may
result in a conflict of interest with Client in that it could create the incentive for Municipal Advisor to make
recommendations to Client that could result in more advantageous pricing of Client's bond in the
marketplace. Any such conflict is mitigated by means of such activities being engaged in on customary
terms through units of the Municipal Advisor that operate independently from Municipal Advisor's municipal
advisory business, thereby reducing the likelihood that such investment activities would have an impact on
the services provided by Municipal Advisor to Client under this Agreement.

*****

PART B - Disclosures of Information Regarding Legal Events and Disciplinary History

MSRB Rule G-42 requires that municipal advisors provide to their clients certain disclosures of Iegal or
disciplinary events material to its client's evaluation of the municipal advisor or the integrity of the municipal
advisor's management or advisory personnel. The SEC permits certain items of information required on
Form MA or MA-I to be provided by refererice to such required information already filed by Municipal Advisor
in its capacity as a broker-dealer on Form BD or Form U4. For the sake of consistency, and because the
Municipal Advisor is (also) a broker-dealer, we refer you to our Form BD, which is filed with the SEC, but is
available at a web service maintained by FINRA. The web service is named BrokerCheck, and it allows
you to review any disciplinary disclosures made by us, as well as any made about an individual employed
by us. The web address is http://brokercheck.finra.org/. On this page, click "FIRM" and insert our firm's
CRD number (453) in the next blank. Then click ?CHECK?. The resulting web page has a link near the
middle (in this sentence: This firm has disclosure events. See detailed report for more information.)
Click on the words ?detailed report" and you will receive a PDF file with our complete disclosures on
individual DRPs (Disclosure Reporting Pages.) Please note that you may similarly check the individual
records of our employees with whom you deal, by clicking ":lNDMDUAL? and inserting their names on the
initial page of BrokerCheck.
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To the extent that any disciplinary action against us as a Municipal Advisor, or our employee, is not reported 
on a DRP added to our Form BO, it would reported to the SEC on Form MA or MA-I. Those forms are 
available at: 
http ://www.sec.gov/cg i-b in/browse-edgar?action=getcompany&C I K=0000764107 &owner=exclude&cou nt 
=40&hidefilings=O . 

The most recent change in legal or disciplinary event disclosure was on September 7, 2016. 

PART C - Future Supplemental Disclosures 

As required by MSRB Rule G-42, this Disclosure Statement may be supplemented or amended, from time 
to time as needed, to reflect changed circumstances resulting in new conflicts of interest or changes in the 
conflicts of interest described above, or to provide updated information with regard to any legal or 
disciplinary events of Municipal Advisor. Municipal Advisor will provide Client with any such supplement or 
amendment as it becomes available throughout the term of the Agreement. 

Dated: ____ _ 
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December 2, 2016 

City Commission Memorandum 
16-248 

TO: Mayor Steve Austin and the Board of Commissioners 

FROM: Russell R. Sights, City Manager _µJ 
SUBJECT: Public Improvements Acceptance-Finley Addition (along Hwy 41-A, 

Springfield Drive and Winchester Road) 

Enclosed for the agenda of Tuesday, December 6, 2016, is final reading of an 
ordinance accepting public improvements for the Finley Addition along US Highway 41-
A, Springfield Drive and Winchester Road. 

Included in this acceptance of wastewater improvements is 2,696 lineal feet of 8-
inch gravity sewer, 1,488 lineal feet of 18-inch gravity sewer, 17 each manholes, and 
1,369 lineal feet of 4-inch force main sewer, 59 building services taps and 1 sewage 
pump station. 

The improvements have been built to public improvement standards and have 
been inspected and approved by HWU. The Water and Sewer Commission approved 
recommendation for acceptance of these wastewater system improvements at its Monday, 
November 21, 2016 meeting. 

Your approval of the attached ordinance is requested. 

c: Tom Williams, HWU General Manager 
Brian Bishop, Planning Director 
Doug Boom, Engineer 



HENDERSON WATER UTILITY 
MANAGED BY THE WATER & SEWER COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF HENDERSON 

Date: 

Memo To: 

From: 

Subject: 

22 November 2016 

Mayor Steve Austin 
Henderson City Commissioners 
Russell Sights, City Manager 
Buzzy Newman, Asst. City Manager 
Dawn Kelsey, City Attorney 

Digitally signed by Tom 
Williams 
ON· cn=Tom Williams, 
o=Henderson Water Utility, 

;pu=HWU, 
Tom Williams, P.E. 
General Manager ~---,.~-~,.,~·"· e0M~{l;:wUhilmst@hkywater.o 

··"r9,c.=bS· ' 

Finley Addition Sewer Project 

Date: 2016.11.07 12:53:29 
~06'00' 

Water• Wastewater• Stormwater 

TOM WILLIAMS, P.E. 
GENERAL MANAGER 

At its meeting on 21 November, the Water and Sewer Commission passed a Resolution {copy 
attached) approving the acceptance into our.\i\/astewater system ofthe imi:irov_em_ent.s 
constructed along US 41A, Springfield Drive andWfnchester.Road, as part of the County's Finley 
Addition Sewer Project. 

All this work is now complete, the parcels served by this project have been annexed into the 
City of Henderson, and this acceptance is the final step in a long and arduous project history. 

If you have any questions or need further information on this or any other matter, please feel 
free to call me at 270.869.6621 {Office) or 270.823.2573 (Cell). 

111 Fifth Street • Henderson, Kentucky 42420 • Phone (270) 826-2421 • Fax (270) 826-2428 • www.hkywater.org 



HENDERSON WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

Resolution No. 2016-29 

Acceptance of Wastewater Improvements 
Finley Addition Sewer Project 

The following Resolution was duly adopted by the Board of Commissioners of the 

Henderson Water & Sewer Commission at a regular meeting held on Monday, 21 November 

2016, at which meeting a quorum was present. 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Henderson Water and Sewer Commission by and 

through its Board of Commissioners under the authority granted to the Board of 

Commissioners under Chapter 23 Article II Division 3 Sections 23-36 through 23-45.1 of the 

City Code of Ordinances hereby recommends to the Board of Commissioners of the City of 

Henderson, Kentucky, that the City of Henderson accept certain public improvements as 

constructed under a project funded by Henderson County Fiscal Court, recommended by 

the staff of the Water and Sewer Commission, and herewith transmitted to the City, to wit: 

Finley Addition Sewer Project 

Wastewater - US 41 A - Base Bid 

8" PVC Sewer: 504 Linear Feet 

18" PVC Sewer 

Manholes: 

Services: 

1,488 Linear Feet 

5 Each 

29 Each 

Wastewater - Springfield/Winchester 

8" PVC Sewer: 2,192 Linear Feet 

Manholes: 12 Each 

4" Force Main 1,369 Linear Feet 

Services: 30 Each 

Springfield Drive Pump Station 

These improvements were constructed along U.S. Highway 41A, Springfield Drive 

and Winchester Road, and are now complete and in operation. All properties served by this 

project have been annexed into the City of Henderson. The total investment by the County, 

paid from Coal Severance funds, was$ 1,380,405.60. In addition, HWU had direct costs of 

$ 28,675.82 attributable to this project. 



The General Manager is hereby authorized to deliver this Resolution to the City of

Henderson.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, having come before the Board of Commissioners on Monday, 21

J.h, +-l,.,[,November 2016, and upon Motion made by CommissionerJohx 't'(ender*-yans seconded by

Commissioner Jt.t,l;e '1:'sLl'(4!V , the Board of Commissioners voted as follows:

Commissioner, Paul Bird, Jr.
Commissioner, George Jones, 111
Commissioner, John Henderson
Commissioner, Gary Jennings
Commissioner, Julie Wischer

AYE

./

./

.,/

,/

]

NAY

r

! %w?
) % %

Q

Tom Williams, P.E.
General Manager
Henderson Water Utility



ORDINANCE NO. 35-16 

ORDINANCE ACCEPTING PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 

SUMMARY: AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 
CONSTRUCTED IN THE FINLEY ADDITION (ALONG U.S. 
HWY 41-A, SPRINGFIELD DRIVE, AND WINCHESTER ROAD) 
CONSISTING OF WASTEWATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 

WHEREAS, at a meeting of the Henderson Water and Sewer Commission held on 
November 21, 2016, it was recommended that certain public improvements for the Finley Addition 
(along U.S. Hwy 41-A, Springfield Drive, and Winchester Road), as shown on the map attached 
hereto marked Exhibit "A," of wastewater system improvements in the City of Henderson be 
accepted; and 

WHEREAS, said improvements have been made m accordance with public 
improvements specifications and regulations. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City of Henderson, Kentucky, that 
the City hereby accepts the wastewater system public improvements for the Finley Addition (along 
U.S. Hwy 41-A, Springfield Drive and Winchester Road), which consists of the following: 

Finley Addition Sewer Project 

Wastewater- US 41 A-Base Bid Wastewater- Springfield/Winchester 
8" PVC Sewer: 504 Linear Feet 8" PVC Sewer: 2,192 Linear Feet 
18" PVC Sewer 1,488 Linear Feet Manholes: 12 Each 
Manholes: 5 Each 4" Force Main 1,369 Linear Feet 
Services: 29 Each Services: 30 Each 

Springfield Drive Pump Station 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed and 
superseded to the extent of such conflict. 

This ordinance shall become effective upon its legal adoption. 

On first reading of the foregoing ordinance, it was moved by Commissioner 
Robert M. Mills , seconded by Commissioner Jesse Johnston , that 

the ordinance be adopted on its first reading. 

On roll call the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston: AYE -~---
Commissioner Hite: AYE -----
Commissioner Royster: AYE 

PUBLICATION DATE: 

Commissioner Mills: AYE -----
Mayor Austin: AYE -----

FIRST READ: 11/22/2016 
SECOND READ: 

ORDINANCE NO. 35-16 



ORDINANCE NO. 35-16 (CONT.) 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted on first reading and 
ordered that it be presented for a second reading at a meeting of the Board of Commissioners. 

On second reading of the ordinance, it was moved by Commissioner 
___________ , seconded by Commissioner , that the 
ordinance be adopted. 

WHEREUPON, the vote was called. On roll call the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston: Commissioner Mills: ----- -----
Commissioner Hite: Mayor Austin: 
Commissioner Royster: 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted, affixed his signature 
and the date and ordered that it be recorded. 

ATTEST: 

Maree Collins, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
LEGALITY THIS )-1_ DAY OF 
NOVEMBE:ij., 2016. · .· 

I 

By: 

Steve Austin, Mayor 
Date: ------------

-2-

0RDINANCE NO. 35-16 



ORDINANCE NO. 35-16 (CONT.)
Exhibit "A?
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December 2, 2016 

City Commission Memorandum 
16-249 

TO: Mayor Steve Austin and the Board of Commissioners 

FROM: Russell R. Sights, City Manager ;J/, 
SUBJECT: Annexation and Zoning of Property-Palmer Oil Co., Inc. EZ Shop #1 

An item for the agenda of Tuesday, December 6, 2016, is final reading of an 
ordinance annexing property located in Henderson County on South Green Street. 

The total area for the proposed annexation is approximately 1.28 acres in size. It 
is recommended the property be zoned as City Highway Commercial from County 
Agricultural. 

The Henderson City-County Planning Commission, at its meeting of November 1, 
2016, recommended approval of the zoning as presented. Staff concurs in this 
recommendation and annexation of property. 

Your approval of the attached ordinance is requested. 

c: Brian Bishop 
Doug Boom 
Tom Williams 
Owen Reeves 
Robert Gunter 



Planning the Future 

Henderson City-County Planning Commission 
1990 Barret Ct. Suite C 

Brian Bishop, Executive Director, AICP 

Henderson, KY 42420 

November 8, 2016 

Mayor Steve Austin 
City Commissioners 
Henderson Municipal Center 
Henderson, KY 42420 

ATTN: Russell Sights, City Manager 

270-831-1289 

Please be advised on Tuesday, November 1, 2016 the Henderson City-County Planning 
Commission held a Public Hearing to consider the following: 

#1063 ASSIGNMENT OF ZONING CLASSIFICATION IN CONJUNCTION WITH 
ANNEXATION - Submitted by Palmer Oil Company for the property located in 
Henderson County at 2120 South Green Street (Parcel ID #46-89), containing 1.28 
acres. Applicants are requesting an annexation from County Agricultural (AG) to City 
Highway Commercial (HC). 

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION- The City of Henderson proposes 
to annex the above parcel into the City and the City has referred this matter to the 
Planning Commission pursuant to KRS 100.209(1) for the Planning Commission 
to give notice, advertise and conduct a public hearing regarding the amendment 
of the Comprehensive Plan and for the Planning Commission to recommend a 
zoning classification to the City of Henderson for this Parcel. 

Motion was made by David Williams, seconded by Dickie Johnson that the 
Planning Commission recommend the assignment of a H-C (Highway 
Commercial), zoning classification to the above described Parcel and that the 
Comprehensive Plan be amended to include this Parcel in the City Zoning Map, if 
and when it is annexed and a zoning classification assigned by the City, and I 
leave the motion open for other members of the Planning Commission to add 
findings of fact in support of this motion, because: 

~ A H-C (Highway Commercial) zoning classification is in agreement with the 
Comprehensive Plan because the Future Land Use Element (Future Land Use 
Map) shows this Parcel and this area as Commercial. 

~ The H-C (Highway Commercial) zoning classification is in agreement with the 
Goals and Objectives of the Comprehensives Plan, in that: 

1 



Guide development to existing centralized areas served by adequate infrastructure to avoid 
decentralized and scattered development. (Balancing Land Use Objective B) 

• Encourage innovative, safe, and sustainable design for new development and/or 
infrastructure. (Land Use Objective F) 

• Promote aesthetically pleasing commercial development with appropriate access, 
signage and landscaping while discouraging strip commercial development. (Land Use 
Objective H) 

• Promote the continued operation and expansion of commercial facilities. (Growing the 
Economy Objective A) 

>" A H-C (Highway Commercial) zoning classification is appropriate, because: 

• Hwy 60 WIS Green Street, has been widened to allow for a greater volume of 
vehicular traffic in addition to the construction of bike lanes and sidewalks. This 
allows for multi-modal forms of transportation. 

• The historical use of the Parcel has been Highway Commercial - it has been and is 
now a convenience store/automobile service station, which is mainly oriented to 
vehicular traffic. 

• The parcel is served by adequate utilities. 
• The parcels in the general area have mixed uses, none are inconsistent with the 

recommendation. 
• This recommended Highway Commercial zoning classification of the subject Parcel 

will not adversely affect the other properties in the area. 

ALL IN FAVOR: A YE 
OPPOSED: NONE 

Attached is a copy of the transcript of the public hearing, and documents related to the 
annexation. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Brian Bishop 
Executive Director, AICP 
Henderson City-County Planning Commission 

BB/tgc 
Cc: Dawn Kelsey 

2 
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STAFF REPORT - PROPOSED ZON}NG #1063

ANNEXATION RECOMMENDING ZONE
CLASSIFICATION TO CITY

DA TE: 1 1 /01 /201 6

l

[

l

The City of Henderson proposes annexation of 1.28 acres from the County of Henderson to the City of
Henderson; and, the City has referred this matter to the Planning Commission pursuant to KRS 100.209(1),
for the Planning Commission recommend a zoning classification to the City. The property is currently used
as a convenience store with gas sales, located on the South/East side of Green Street/U. S. Highway 60 West;
and, is known as the E-Z Shop. The current County zoning classification is Agricultural; and staff recommends
a Highway Commercial (City) zoning classification. It is the role of the Planning Commission to hold a Public
Hearing to hear testimony, then recommend to the City an appropriate new zoning classification. Among
other things, the Planning Commission should consider: 1) current use, 2) Iikely or desired future use, and 3)
potential growth patterns; all for, a) the subject property, b) the surrounding property, c) the general area,
and, d) the effect such recommendation will have on surrounding parcels.

l

1

GENERAL INFORMA TION
Applicant: PALMER OIL COMPANY lnfrastructure
Site Location: 2120 S. GREEN STREET Water: 18"
PID# #46-89 Sewer: 8"
Applicant's Request: City Highway Commercial Flood and Drainage: N/A

City/County limitsf- ' County
Current Zoning: County Agricultural
Proposed Zoning: City Highway Commercial
Size (in acres): 1.28 acres

ZONING DISTRCT NFORMA TION
Current C un AG Pro osed District Cit H-C

Min, Lot Size 1.0 acre N/A
Min. Lot Width 100 ft. 50
Front Setback 25 ft. 30

Side Setback 10 ft. 10

Rear Setback 25 ft. 20

Building Height: N/A 30

SURROUNDING ZONING, LAND USEAND REQUIRED BUFFERS
Setbacks for Adaacent Zonin Buffer re uired if rezonedAdaacent Zonin Ad'acent Land

North: H-C (County) Front: 30ft. Side:20ft. Rear: lOft. N/A
South: Ag (City) Front: 25ft. Side:15ft. Rear: 25ft. N/A -
East: M-1 (County) Front: 50ft. Side:25ft. Rear: 25ft. N/A
West: H-C (City) Front: 25ft. Side:15ft. Rear: 25ft. N/A
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STAFF REPORT - PROPOSED ZONING #1063

ANNEXATION RECOMMENDING ZONE
CLASSIFICATION TO CITY

l
[ ZONING

1
]

The existing County zoning classification is Agricultural (Ag), which allows a number of permitted uses. Such
permitted uses include single family residential units, green houses, stables, farms, including Iivestock, pork
and poultry raising, dairying, horticulture and other similar bona fide agriculture endeavors or use of land

Staff recommends assigning a Highway Commercial zoning district (H-C) or zoning classification, Permitted H-
C uses include any use permitted in the general business district such as automobile service
stations/convenience stores, banks, grocery stores, in addition to other uses such as automobile service
stations, and restaurants.

][
Future Land Use:

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND USE

I

I

l

I

I

Guide development to existing centralized areas served by adequate infrastructure to avoid I
I

decentralized and scattered development. (Balancing Land Use Objective B) l

IEncourage innovative, safe, and sustainable design for new development and/or infrastructure. (Land i
Use Objective F) l
Promote aesthetically pleasing commercial development with appropriate access, signage and I

llandscaping while discouraging strip commercial development. (Land Use Objective H) l
Promote the continued operation and expansion of commercial facilities. (Growing the Economy ?
Objective A)

The future Iand use map depicts this area developing as Commercial. The Future Land Use element of the
Comprehensive Plan is consistent with the recommended H-C (Highway Commercial) classification.

*

@

*

*

l

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend that the City of Henderson assign a H-C
(Highway Commercial) zoning classification to the above described Parcel and a proposed motion is attached' l(yobu 'areycert'a:Wly'fr'ee'to catJa?nge o;a;dd-toathe ;roposed m-ot:on). l

l

Date Advertised: 10/18/16
. Date Posted: 10/18/16

I

2



PROPOSED MOTION
November 1, 2016

Proposed Annexation, Recommendation of Zoning Classification to City of Henderson
#1063 - 2'l20 S. Green Street, Parcel ID Number #46-89.

This City of Henderson proposes to annex the above parcel into the City and the City has
relerred this matter to the Planning Commission pursuant to KRS 100.209(1) for the
Planning Commission to give notice, advertise and conduct a public hearing regarding
the amendment of the Comprehensive Plan and for the Planning Commission to
recommend a zoning classification to the City of Henderson for this Parcel.

/ move the Planning Commission recommend the assignment of a H-C (Highway
Commercial), zoning classification to the above described Parcel and that the
Comprehensive Plan be amended to include this Parcel in the City Zoning Map, if and
when it is annexed and a zoning classification assigned by the City, and / leave the
motion open for other members of the Planning Commission fo add findings of fact in
support of this motion, because:

A H-C (Highway Commercial) zoning classification is in agreement with the
Comprehensive Plan because the Future Land Use Element (Future Land Use Map)
shows this Parcel and this area as Commercial.

The H-C (Highway Commercial) zoning classification is in agreement with the Goals and
Objectives of the Comprehensives Plan, in that:

Guide development to existing centralized areas served by adequate infrastructure to avoid
decentralized and scattered development. (Balancing Land Use Objective B)

*

*

Encourage innovative, safe, and sustainable design for new development and/or
infrastructure. (Land Use Objective F)
Promote aesthetically pleasing commercial development with appropriate access,
signage and landscaping while discouraging strip commercial development. (Land Use
Objective H)
Promote the continued operation and expansion of commercial facilities. (Growing the
Economy Objective A)

A H-C (Highway Commercial) zoning classification is appropriate, because:
*

*

*

*

*

Hwy 60 W/S Green Street, has been widened to allow for a greater volume of
vehicular traffic in addition to the construction of bike Ianes and sidewalks. This
allows for multi-modal forms of transportation.
The historical use of the Parcel has been Highway Commercial - it has been and is
now a convenience store/automobile service station, which is mainly oriented to
vehicular traffic.

The parcel is served by adequate utilities.
The parcels in the general area have mixed uses, none are inconsistent with the
recommendation.

This recommended Highway Commercial zoning classification of the subject Parcel
will not adversely affect the other properties in the area.

PROPOSED ANNEXATION #l063 MOTION



REZONING #1063 ANNEXATION
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Steve Austin, Mayor 

Commissioners: 
JanM. Hite 
Jesse L. Johnston rv 
Robert M. Mills 
X Robert Royster, III 

'atbe <tit!' of T!}enber~on 

Russell R. Sights, City Manager 
William L. Newman. Jr., Assistant City Manager 
Dawn S. Kelsey, City Attorney 
Maree Collins, City Oerk 
Donna Stinnett, Public Information Officer 

P.O.Box 716 
Henderson, Kentucky 42419~716 

October 12, 2016 

Mr. Brian Bishop, Executive Director 
Henderson-Henderson County Planning Commission 
1990 Barrett Court, Suite C 
Henderson, KY 42420 

Dear Mr. Bishop: 

As you know, the City has been requested to annex a parcel of land containing 
approximately 1.28 acres located on South Green Street by the property owner, Mary 
Anne Gonnella, President of Palmer Oil Co., Inc. Enclosed is a copy of the letter of 
request, with attachments. 

At its meeting on October 11, 2016, the Board of Commissioners directed that the request 
be forwarded to the Planning Commission for the assignment of a zoning classification 
for the property into the corporate limits of the City. Consequently, please proceed with 
bringing the matter before the Planning Commission for formal action at your earliest 
convenience. 

Thank you for your cooperation and assistance. 

Very truly yours, 

&..Sights 
City Manager 

Attachment 

c: William L. Newman, Jr. 
Doug Boom 



DESCRIPTION 

PALMER OIL COMP ANY PROPERTY 
DEED BOOK 284 PAGE 732 

HENDERSON,K.ENTUCKY 

A certain tract or parcel located on the south side of US Highway 60, 
approximately 3 miles west of the City of Henderson, in Henderson County, Kentucky 
and being more specifically described as follows: 

Unless stated otherwise, any monument referred to herein as a "set iron pin" is a 
l /2" diameter rebar, 18" in length set with an orange plastic cap stamped "PLS #2939". 
All bearings stated herein are referred to the 1983 NAD Kentucky South Zone coordinate 
system. 

Beginning at an iron pin set in the southern line of the US Highway 60 right-of
way as described in Deed Book 548 Page 352 in the Henderson County Court Clerk's 
Office, said iron pin also being in the western line of the Harold Stinson property 
described in Deed Book 581 Page 386; thence with the line of said Stinson property, 
South 24 DEGREES 47 MINUTES 32 SECONDS East, a distance of 338.33 feet to an 
iron pin set in the line of the Matthew 25 Aids Services property described in Deed Book 
559 Page 9; thence with the line of said Matthew 25 Aids Services property the following 
two (2) calls: 

1) North 86 DEGREES 19 MINUTES 32 SECONDS West, a distance of 227.42 feet 
to an iron pin set at a comer of said Matthew 25 Aids Services property; 

2) North 24 DEGREES 47 MINUTES 32 SECONDS West, a distance of221.08 feet 
to an iron pin set in said right-of-way line of US Highway 60; 

thence with said right-of-way line and along a curve to the left having a radius of 5694.03 
feet an arc distance of200.13 feet along said curve, said curve having a chord direction of 
North 62 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 31 SECONDS East and a chord length of 200.12 feet 
to the point of beginning and containing 1.28 acres. This description was prepared from a 
physical survey conducted under the direction of Bruce K. Bailey, PLS #2939 of Bailey 
Surveys, Inc. on September 16, 2016. 
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Palmer Oil Company
':?E-Z Shops, EZ Serve Stores, & Pmlmer's Msnrkets

June 13, 2016

To the City of Henderson,

Palrney OiN Co., Inc. requests annexation of EZ Shop # 1, 2120 S. Green st., Henderson,
Ky. 42420.

Thank You-

Mary Anne GonneNla
President of Palrner Oi} Co.
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Henderson City-County 

Planning Commission 

November 1, 2016 

Chairman McKee: Next on the agenda is Rezoning #1063, Mr. Bishop are 

you going to lead this discussion? 

Brian Bishop: Yes sir. 

Chairman McKee: Please proceed. 

Brian Bishop: This is submitted by Palmer Oil Company for the property 

located in Henderson County at 2120 South Green Street (Parcel ID# 46-

89), containing 1.28 acres. Applicants are requesting applicants from the 

County Agricultural zone to City Highway Commercial zone. 

This is not a traditional rezoning that we would typically hear; the 

Planning Commissions responsibility is to recommend a zoning 

classification when a property is to be annexed from the county into the 

city. This property has historically been used as a gas station, and is 

currently being used as a gas station, and is currently zoned agricultural 

as I mentioned before. I have met with Mr. Stroud from City Codes, and 

we both believe that Highway Commercial is the best zoning 

classification for this. So my recommendation is that we recommend to 

the City Commission a zone of Highway Commercial. 

If you would, please take note of a proposed motion that Mr. Fridy was 

kind enough to help prepare, it looks like this in your agenda. You will 

see a proposed motion in red, and then proposed findings of fact at the 

bottom of the page. Mr. Fridy was very helpful in this, and is something 

we will try to do a better job of when we have other rezoning's in the 

near future. 
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If you have any questions, I will do my best to answer them. 

Chairman McKee: Questions for staff? 

David Dixon: What are the other surrounding zones other than 

agriculture? 

Brian Bishop: The dark blue is going to be Heavy Industrial, the lighter 

blue is Light Industrial, the purple is commercial as well, and the white is 

all agricultural. 

David Dixon: Thank you. 

Chairman McKee: Any other questions for staff? Is there anyone here 

that would like to speak for or against this zoning classification change in 

conjunction with annexation? Seeing none, any comments from 

Commissioners? 

David Williams: This area is already commercially developed? 

Brian Bishop: Yes sir. 

David Williams: The Comprehensive Plan says that it's going to continue 

to develop commercially? 

Brian Bishop: That is correct. 

David Williams: The existing business fits within the use of land around 
't? I • 

Brian Bishop: Yes sir. 

Chairman McKee: Any other comments? 

Mac Arnold: Does this place any extra burden on the land owner and the 

fact of like say screening since now it's going to become Highway 

Commercial instead of it being Ag? 

2 



Brian Bishop: No sir. This is all existing, this is not going through a 

rezoning hearing, the short answer is no. 

Mac Arnold: Ok. 

Chairman McKee: Comments? 

David Williams: Mr. Moderator, will you entertain a motion? 

Chairman McKee: The Chair will entertain a motion. 

MOTION WAS MADE BY DAVID WILLIAMS, SECONDED BY DICKIE 

JOHNSON THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND THE 

ASSIGNMENT OF A H-C {HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL), ZONING 

CLASSIFICATION TO THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PARCEL AND THAT THE 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN BE AMENDED TO INCLUDE THIS PARCEL IN THE 

CITY ZONING MAP, IF AND WHEN IT IS ANNEXED AND A ZONING 

CLASSIFICATION ASSIGNED BY THE CITY, AND I LEAVE THE MOTION 

OPEN FOR OTHER MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION TO ADD 

FINDINGS OF FACT IN SUPPORT OF THIS MOTION, BECAUSE: H-C 

{HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL} ZONING CLASSIFICATION IS IN AGREEMENT 

WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN BECAUSE THE FUTURE LAND USE 

ELEMENT {FUTURE LAND USE MAP} SHOWS THIS PARCEL AND THIS 

AREA AS COMMERCIAL. THE H-C {HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL) ZONING 

CLASSIFICATION IS IN AGREEMENT WITH THE GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

OF THE COMPREHENSIVES PLAN, IN THAT: GUIDE DEVELOPMENT TO 

EXISTING CENTRALIZED AREAS SERVED BY ADEQUATE 

INFRASTRUCTURE TO AVOID DECENTRALIZED AND SCATTERED 

DEVELOPMENT. (BALANCING LAND USE OBJECTIVE BJ 

• ENCOURAGE INNOVATIVE, SAFE, AND SUSTAINABLE DESIGN FOR 
NEW DEVELOPMENT AND/OR INFRASTRUCTURE. (LAND USE 
OBJECTIVE F} 
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• PROMOTE AESTHETICALLY PLEASING COMMERCIAL 
DEVELOPMENT WITH APPROPRIATE ACCESS, SIGNAGE AND 
LANDSCAPING WHILE DISCOURAGING STRIP COMMERCIAL 
DEVELOPMENT. (LAND USE OBJECTIVE HJ 

• PROMOTE THE CONTINUED OPERATION AND EXPANSION OF 
COMMERCIAL FACILITIES. (GROWING THE ECONOMY OBJECTIVE 
A) 

H-C {HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL} ZONING CLASSIFICATION IS 

APPROPRIATE, BECAUSE: 

• HWY 60 W/S GREEN STREET, HAS BEEN WIDENED TO ALLOW 
FOR A GREATER VOLUME OF VEHICULAR TRAFFIC IN ADDITION 
TO THE CONSTRUCTION OF BIKE LANES AND SIDEWALKS. THIS 
ALLOWS FOR MULTI-MODAL FORMS OF TRANSPORTATION. 

• THE HISTORICAL USE OF THE PARCEL HAS BEEN HIGHWAY 
COMMERCIAL - IT HAS BEEN AND IS NOW A CONVENIENCE 
STORE/AUTOMOBILE SERVICE STATION, WHICH IS MAINLY 
ORIENTED TO VEHICULAR TRAFFIC. 

• THE PARCEL IS SERVED BY ADEQUATE UTILITIES. 

• THE PARCELS IN THE GENERAL AREA HAVE MIXED USES, NONE 
ARE INCONSISTENT WITH THE RECOMMENDATION. 

• THIS RECOMMENDED HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL ZONING 
CLASSIFICATION OF THE SUBJECT PARCEL WILL NOT ADVERSELY 
AFFECT THE OTHER PROPERTIES IN THE AREA. 

Chairman McKee: We have a motion and a second, Madame Clerk will 

you please call the roll? 

ALL IN FAVOR: A YE 

OPPOSED: NONE 
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Chairman McKee: So mote it be. That is all the public hearing items so I 

will entertain a motion to go out of public hearing. 

MOTION WAS MADE BY DAVID WILLIAMS1 SECONDED BY GARY GIBSON 

TO GO OUT OF PUBLIC HEARING. 

ALL IN FAVOR: A YE 

OPPOSED: NONE 

5 



ORDINANCE NO. 37-16 

ORDINANCE REGARDING ANNEXATION 

SUMMARY: AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING CERTAIN UNINCORPORATED 
TERRITORY TO THE CITY OF HENDERSON, KENTUCKY, 
BEING LOCATED AT 2120 SOUTH GREEN STREET, IN 
HENDERSON COUNTY, CONTAINING 1.28 ACRES,MORE OR LESS, 
OWNED BY MARY ANNE GONNELLA, d/b/a/ PALMER OIL 
COMPANY 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of KRS 81A.412, the City of Henderson, 
Kentucky, desires to annex within the corporate limits of the City of Henderson that certain 
unincorporated area, which is located at 2120 South Green Street in Henderson County, containing 
approximately 1.28 acres, more or less, and which is hereinafter described; and 

WHEREAS, the real property to be annexed meets all of the requirements of KRS 
81A.410; and 

WHEREAS, the owner of record of the land to be annexed has given prior consent in 
writing to the annexation and has waived the waiting period therefor, copies of which consent and 
waiver are attached hereto, cumulatively marked Exhibit "A," and incorporated herein by reference. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City of Henderson, Kentucky, as 
follows: 

I. TI1at th~ real property located on 2120 South Green Street in Henderson County, 
containing approximately 1.28 acres, more or less, owned by Mary Anne Gonnella d/b/a Palmer Oil 
Company, as described fa Exhibit "A-1", and as shown on the plat attached hereto marked Exhibit 
"B," which exhibits are incorporated herein by reference, be and.said real property is her~by annexed 
to and made a part of the City of Henderson, Kentucky. 

2. The zoning classification of said property shall be H-C (Highway Commercial), 
pursuant to the recommendation of the Henderson City-County Planning Commission by letter dated 
November 8, 2016, a copy of which letter, is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference 
marked Exhibit "C". 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed and 
superseded to the extent of such conflict. 

This ordinance shall become effective upon its legal adoption. 

On the first reading of this ordinance, it was moved by Commissioner 
x R. Royster , seconded by Commissioner Jan Hite , that 

the ordinance be adopted on its first reading. 

PUBLICATION DATE: 

-1-
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FIRST READ: 11/22/2016 
SECOND READ: 



ORDINANCE NO. 37-16 (CONT.) 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted on first reading and 
ordered that it be presented for a second reading at a meeting of the Board of Commissioners. 

On second reading of the ordinance, it was moved by Commissioner 
___________ , seconded by Commissioner , that the 
ordinance be adopted. 

WHEREUPON, the vote was called. On roll call the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston: Commissioner Mills: ----- -----
Commissioner Hite: Mayor Austin: 
Commissioner Royster: 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted, affixed his signature 
and the date and ordered that it be recorded. 

ATTEST: 

Maree Collins, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
LEGALITY THIS J..2 DAY OF 
NOVEMB R, 2016. 

By: 

Steve Austin, Mayor 
Date: ------------

-2-
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CONSENT TO ANNEXATION 

ORDINANCE NO. 37-16 (CONT.) 
Exhibit "A" 

Mary Anne Gonnella, d/b/ a Palmer Oil Company, 231 Hancock Street, Henderson, 

Kentucky 42420 is the owner of certain real property located at 2120 South Green Street in 

Henderson County, which property is more particularly described in Exhibit "A-1" attached hereto; 

and as said owner does hereby consent in writing to the annexation into the City of Henderson, 

Kentucky the property as described in said Exhibit. Also, Mary Anne Gonnella does hereby waive all 

notice requirements with respect to such annexation, including, but not limited to the notices 

otherwise required by KRS 8IA.420(1), KRS 8IA.425, and the sixty(60) day waiting period provided 

for in KRS 8IA.420(2); and Mary Anne Gonnella, states that she is the sole owner of the property to 

be annexed as described in the attached Exhibit. 

SIGNED this~ day of Jk,r. , 2016. 

~lb.a~~ ary e Gonnella, President ) 

STATE OF KENTUCKY 

COUNTY OF HENDERSON ... SCT. 

THE foregoing CONSENT TO ANNEXATION was signed and acknowledged before 
me, a N~~ary Public, by Mary Anne Gonnella, President of Palmer Oil Company, this /(p day of 

j)_(')IJeMiA , 2016. 

(Seal) 

My commission expires ~ I 31 2017., rJ 
WJf~~ 

Notary Public, Kentucky State-At-Large 
My Commission Expires: June 13, 2017 
lD# 489944 

ORDINANCE NO. 37-16 
Exhibit "A" 
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ORDINANCE NO. 37-16 (CONT.) 
Exhibit "A-1" 

DESCRIPTION 

PALMER OIL COMP ANY PROPERTY 
DEED BOOK 284 PAGE 732 

HENDERSON,KENTUCKY 

A certain tract or parcel located on the south side of US Highway 60, 
approximately 3 miles west of the City of Henderson, in Henderson County, Kentucky 
and being more specifically described as follows: 

Unless stated otherwise, any monument referred to herein as a "set iron pin" is a 
1/2" diameter rebar, 18" in length set with an orange plastic cap stamped "PLS #2939". 
All bearings stated herein are referred to the 1983 NAD Kentucky South Zone coordinate 
system. 

Beginning at an iron pin set in the southern line of the US Highway 60 right-of
way as described in Deed Book 548 Page 352 in the Henderson County Court Clerk's 
Office, said iron pin also being in the western line of the Harold Stinson property 
described in Deed Book 581 Page 386; thence with the line of said Stinson property, 
South 24 DEGREES 47 MINUTES 32 SECONDS East, a distance of 338.33 feet to an 
iron pin set in the line of the Matthew 25 Aids Services property described in Deed Book 
559 Page 9; thence with the line of said Matthew 25 Aids Services property and the 
existing city limit line as described in ORD 52-87 the following two (2) calls: 

1) North 86 DEGREES 19 MINUTES 32 SECONDS West, a distance of227.42 feet 
to an iron pin set at a corner of said Matthew 25 Aids Services property; 

2) North 24 DEGREES 47 MINUTES 32 SECONDS West, a distance of221.08 feet 
to an iron pin set in said right-of-way line of US Highway 60; 

thence with said right-of-way line and along a curve to the left having a radius of 5694.03 
feet an arc distance of 200.13 feet along said curve, said curve having a chord direction of 
North 62 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 31 SECONDS East and a chord length of200.12 feet 
to the point of beginning and containing 1.28 acres. This description was prepared from a 
physical survey conducted under the direction of Bruce K. Bailey, PLS #2939 of Bailey 
Surveys, Inc. on September 16, 2016. 

ORDINANCE NO. 37-16 
Exhibit "A-1" 

EXHIBIT "A-1" 
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ORDINANCE NO. 37-16 (CONT.) 
Exhibit "B" 

100 

Scnle, l' 50' 

HMOUl STINSON 
DB 581 PG 386 

~. 'I!/ CN' Sf..wl'ED "!'ls 2939• 
.. ,-. ________ N12~~-~-~~17\-------l SET 1;,:' REBAR, 18* LONG 

N 86"1932 w {l'Yl'ICAI.) 

EXISTING ClTY LIMIT 

NUMBER DEGREE OF CURVE RAO/US ARC LENGTH CHORD DIRECTION CHORD LENGTH SEE ORD 52-87~ -
01*00'22" 5694.03 200.13 N 62.40'31" E 200.12 

VICINITY MAP 
1" = 500 FT 

ti-Cf ·10 
Date 

~~ .. 
\\ MA11ttEW 25 AIDS S£1MCES 

DB 559 PG 9 

FOUND 5/8" IRON ROO 
NO C/v' 

SURVEY PLAT 
PALMER OIL COMPANY 

DEED BOOK 284 PAGE 732 
HENDERSON COUNTY, KENTUCKY 

OWNERS: PAI.MER Oil COMPANY 
1638 Cl.AY STREEr 
HENDERSON. ICY 42420 

CUENT: PAI.MER on. COIIPIH\' 
1638 a.AY STREET 
HENDERSON, KY 424Zl 

~{///////////////tq SOURCE OF TITLE: PROPERTY LOCATION: 

~ ~~A~ :Ff~~ti::~~ ~ DB 284 ro 732 ~ ~~ 
~ • BRUCE K. • ~ t----------------------41 
~: BAILEY : ~ 
~: .. -~~~~ ... : ~ 
~ LICENSED ~ 
~ PROFESSIONAL ~ 
~ LAND SURVEYOR '-
0///////////////// o 

P.o. ~~~;EY +· P:~~o~:~~ 
HENDERSON, KY 42419 EMAIL: bruce@baileysurveys.com 

FIELD DATE 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2016 

SCALE 

1· = 50• 
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Pl/A #46-89 

OWG NAME - PALMER 
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Plannlng the Future

ORDINANCE No. 37-16 (CONT.)
Exhibit "C"

Henderson City-County Planning Commission
1990 Barret Ct. Suite C

Henderson, KV 42420

Brian Bishop, Executive Diredor, Al(J)
bbishop@hendersonplanning.org
270-831-1289

November 8, 2016

Mayor Steve Austin
City Commissioners
Henderson Municipal Center
Henderson, KY 42420

ATTN: Russell Sights, City Manager

Please be advised on Tuesday, November 1 , 2016 the Henderson City-County Planning
Commission held a Public Hearing to consider the following:

#1063 ASSIGNMENT OF ZONING CLASSIF?CATION IN CONJUNCTION WITH

ANNEXATION - Submitted by Palmer Oil Company for the property located in
Henderson County at 2120 South Green Street (Parcel ID #46-89), containing 1 .28
acres. Applicants are requesting an annexation from County Agricultural (AG) to City
Highway Commercial (HC).

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION- The City of Henderson proposes
to annex the above parcel into the City and the City has referred this matter to the
Planning Commission pursuant to KRS 100.209(1) for the Planning Commission
to give notice, advertise and conduct a public hearing regarding the amendment
of the Comprehensive Plan and for the Planning Commission to recommend a
zoning classification to the City of Henderson for this Parcel.

Motion was made by David Williams, seconded by Dickie Johnson that the
Planning Commission recommend the assignment of a H-C (Highway
Commercial), zoning classification to the above described Parcel and that the
Comprehensive Plan be amended to include this Parcel in the City Zoning Map, if
and when it is annexed and a zoning classification assigned by the City, and /
leave the motion open for other members of the Planning Commission to add
findings of fact in support of this motion, because:

> A H-C (Highway Commercial) zoning classification is in agreement with the
Comprehensive Plan because the Future Land Use Element (Future Land Use
Map) shows this Parcel and this area as Commercial.

> The H-C (Highway Commercial) zoning classification is in agreement with the
Goals and Objectives of the Comprehensives Plan, in that:

1
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ORDINANCE NO. 37-16 (CONT.) 
Exhibit "C" 

Guide development to existing centralized areas served by adequate infrastructure to avoid 
decentralized and scattered development. (Balancing Land Use Objective B) 

• Encourage innovative, safe, and sustainable design for new development and/or 
infrastructure. (Land Use Objective F) 

• Promote aesthetically pleasing commercial development with appropriate access, 
signage and landscaping while discouraging strip commercial development. (Land Use 
Objective H) 

• Promote the continued operation and expansion of commercial facilities. (Growing the 
Economy Objective A) 

~ A H-C (Highway Commercial) zoning classification is appropriate, because: 

• Hwy 60 W /S Green Street, has been widened to allow for a greater volume of 
vehicular traffic in addition to the construction of bike lanes and sidewalks. This 
allows for multi-modal forms of transportation. 

• The historical use of the Parcel has been Highway Commercial - it has been and is 
now a convenience store/automobile service station, which is mainly oriented to 
vehicular traffic. 

• The parcel is served by adequate utilities. 
• The parcels in the general area have mixed uses, none are inconsistent with the 

recommendation. 
• This recommended Highway Commercial zoning classification of the subject Parcel 

will not adversely affect the other properties in the area. 

ALL IN FAVOR: A YE 
OPPOSED: NONE 

Attached is a copy of the transcript of the public hearing, and documents related to the 
annexation. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Brian Bishop 
Executive Director, AICP 
Henderson City-County Planning Commission 

BB/tgc 
Cc: Dawn Kelsey 

ORDINANCE NO. 37-16 
Exhibit "C" 
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December 2, 2016 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

City Commission Memorandum 
16-250 

Mayor Steve Austin and the Board of Commissioners 

Russell R. Sights, City Manager/.) 

Annexation of ROW -Palmer Oil Co., Inc. EZ Shop #1 

An item for the agenda of Tuesday, December 6, 2016, is final reading of an 
ordinance annexing a right-of-way located in Henderson County on South Green Street. 

The total area for the proposed annexation is approximately 0.034 acres in size. It 
is a portion of right-of-way purchased by the Kentucky Transportation Cabinet (KYTC) 
as part of the US 60 Widening Project which was completed in 2011. 

The KYTC granted consent to the annexation in writing and has waived the 
waiting period, a copy of which is attached to the ordinance. Staff concurs in this 
recommendation and annexation of property. 

Your approval of the attached ordinance is requested. 

c: Brian Bishop 
Doug Boom 
Tom Williams 
Owen Reeves 
Robert Gunter 



ORDINANCE NO. 38-16 

ORDINANCE REGARDING ANNEXATION 

SUMMARY: AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING CERTAIN UNINCORPORATED 
TERRITORY TO THE CITY OF HENDERSON, KENTUCKY, 
BEING U.S.HWY60 RIGHT-OF-WAYLOCATED AT2120SOUTH 
GREEN STREET, IN HENDERSON COUNTY, CONTAINING 0.034 
ACRES, MORE OR LESS, OWNED BY THE KENTUCKY 
TRANSPORTATION CABINET (KYTC) 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of KRS 81A.412, the City of Henderson, 
Kentucky, desires to annex within the corporate limits of the City of Henderson that certain 
unincorporated area, which is located at 2120 South Green Street in Henderson County, containing 
approximately 0.034 acres, more or less, and which is hereinafter described; and 

WHEREAS, the real property to be annexed meets all of the requirements of KRS 
81A.410; and 

WHEREAS, the owner of record of the land to be annexed has given prior consent in 
writing by letter dated November 22, 2016 to the annexation and has waived the waiting period 
therefor, copies of which letter and waiver are attached hereto, cumulatively marked Exhibit "A," 
and incorporated herein by reference. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City of Henderson, Kentucky, as 
follows: 

1. That the real property is a right-of-way located on 2120 South Green Street in 
Henderson County, containing approximately 0.034 acres, more or less, owned by the Kentucky 
Transportation Cabinet (KYTC), as described in Exhibit "A-1 ", and as shown on the plat attached 
hereto marked Exhibit "B," which exhibits are incorporated herein by reference, be and said real 
property is hereby annexed to and made a part of the City of Henderson, Kentucky. 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed and 
superseded to the extent of such conflict. 

This ordinance shall become effective upon its legal adoption. 

On the first reading of this ordinance, it was moved by Commissioner 
Jesse Johnston , seconded by Commissioner that 

the ordinance be adopted on its first reading. 

On roll call the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston: AYE Commissioner Mills: AYE ----
Commissioner Hite: AYE Mayor Austin: AYE 

Commissioner Royster: AYE 

PUBLICATION DA TE: 
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ORDINANCE NO. 38-16 (CONT.) 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted on first reading and 
ordered that it be presented for second reading at a meeting of the Board of Commissioners. 

On second reading of the ordinance, it was moved by Commissioner 
__________ , seconded by Commissioner , that the 
ordinance be adopted. 

WHEREUPON, the vote was called. On roll call the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston: Commissioner Mills: ----
Commissioner Hite: Mayor Austin: 
Commissioner Royster: 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted, affixed his signature 
and the date and ordered it be recorded. 

ATTEST: 

Maree Collins, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
LEGALITY THIS )J- DAY OF 
NOVEMBER, 2016. 

Dawn S. Kelsey 
City Attorney 

Steve Austin, Mayor 
Date: ------------

-2-
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ORDINANCE NO. 38-16 (CONT.)

Exhibit ?A"

Matthew G. Beyin

Governor

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
TRANSPORTATION CAEIINET

Department of Highways, District 2 0ffice
1840 North Main Street

Madisonville, KY 42431-5003
(270) 824-7080

Greg Thomas
Secretary

November 22, 2016

Mr. Douglas R. Boom, P.E.
Engineer
City of Henderson
p.o. Box 716

Henderson, KY 42419-0716

Dear Mr. Boom,

The Kentucky Transportation Cabinet (KYTC) has received your
correspondence dated November 16, 2016 in regards to a request for KYTC to grant
permission to the City of Henderson for tbe annexation of a 0.034 acre area of Right-of-
Way adjacent to u.s. Highway 60 in Henderson, KY. KYTC has completed a review of
this request and does grant permission to the City of Henderson for the annexation of the
noted portion of Right-of-Way and further does hereby waive all notice requirements
with respect to such annexation, including, but not limited to the notices otherwise
required by KRS 814.420(l), KRS 81 A.425, and the sixty (60) day waiting period
provided for in KRS 81A.420(2).

If you have any questions or would like to discuss this issue further, please
contact my office at your earliest convenience.

Sincerely,

?? %

Wade Clements, P.E.
Chief District Engineer
KYTC-District Two

uNl!IRlDLtD SfilRIT

](@ffH?
An Equal Opportunity Employer M;':10
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Description 

ORDINANCE NO. 38-16 (CONT.) 
Exhibit "A-1" 

Annexation of purchased Right-of-Way in Deed Book 546 Page 352 

Beginning at a point In the old U.S. Hwy 60 right-of-way line, said point being an 
original corner to the Harold Stinson property recorded in Deed Book 581 Page 386 
in.the Henderson County Court Clerk's Office and being in the existing Henderson 
City Limits as shown in Ordinance Book 8 Page 575; thence with said Stinson 
property, SOUTH 24 DEGREES 47 MINUTES 32 SECONDS EAST, a distance of 5.45 
feet to a point in said line and being the current U.S. Hwy 60 right-of-way line, and 
being a corner to the Henderson City Limits as established by Ordinance Number 
37-16; thence with said existing right-of-way line and said City Limits by said 
Ordinance Number 37-16, around a curve to the right, through a central angle of 02 
DEGREES 00 MINUTES 50 SECONDS, an arc distance of 200.13 feet, a chord 
bearing of SOUTH 62 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 31 SECONDS WEST, a distance of 
200.12 feet to a point in said current right-of-way line, said point being in the line of 
the Matthew 25 Aids Services property as recorded in Deed Book 559 Page 9, and 
being in the existing Henderson City Limits as established by Ordinance Number 
52-87; thence with said Matthew 25 property and with said City Limits by said 
Ordinance Number 37-16, NORTH 24 DEGREES 47 MINUTES 32 SECONDS WEST, a 
distance of 9.27 feet to a point in said old U.S. Hwy 60 right-of-way line, and being in 
the line Henderson City Limits as shown in said Ordinance Book 8 Page 575; thence 
with said old right-of-way line, and said Henderson City Limits line as shown in said 
Ordinance Book 8 Page 575, around a curve to the left, through a central angle of 01 
DEGREES 56 MINUTES 39 SECONDS, an arc distance of 200.00 feet, a chord 
bearing of NORTH 63 DEGREES 46 MINUTES 02 SECONDS EAST, a distance of 
199.99 feet to the point of beginning containing 0.034 acres. This description was 
prepared by Dennis E. Branson, Ky PLS # 2532 and was prepared using information 
from a survey by Bruce K. Bailey, Ky PLS # 2939, dated 9-16-2016, deeds in the 
Henderson County Court Clerk's Office, plans of the Ky Dept of Hwys. It does not 
constitute a boundary survey per minimum standards for land surveying in the 
State of Kentucky. 

I 
i 
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December 2, 2016 

City Commission Memorandum 
16-251 

TO: Mayor Steve Austin and the Board of Commissioners 

FROM: Russell R. Sights, City Manager /211 
SUBJECT: Regulating Sale of Merchandise on Sidewalk in the Central Business 

District 

An item for the agenda of Tuesday, December 6, 2016, is final reading of an 
ordinance regulating the use of sidewalks in the Central Business District. 

As you are aware, this ordinance presented for first reading at the September 27, 
2016 meeting after being redrafted from an earlier presentation. The redrafted ordinance 
reflects clarification of the portion of the sidewalk that may be used for the display and 
sale of merchandise on city sidewalks in the Central Business District. 

Mrs. Kelsey, City Attorney, will be available to answer any questions you may 
have. Your approval of the attached ordinance is requested. 

c: Dawn Kelsey 



ORDINANCE NO. 36-16 ----

ORDINANCE RELATING TO MERCHANTS USE OF 
SIDEWALK IN CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT 

SUMMARY: ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING SECTION 20-11, SALE OF MERCHANDISE ON 
SIDEWALK IN CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT, OF ARTICLE I, IN GENERAL OF CHAPTER 
20, STREETS, SIDEWALKS, AND OTHER PUBLIC PLACES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
OF THE CITY OF HENDERSON PERMITTED TO BUSINESSES LOCATED IN THE 
CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT 

BE IT ORDAINED, by the City of Henderson that Section 20-11, Sale of 
Merchandise on Sidewalk in Central Business District, of Article I, In General, of Chapter 20, 
Streets Sidewalks, and Other Public Places, of the City's Code of Ordinances pertaining to certain 
permitted businesses within the Central Business District is hereby established as follows: 

Section: 20-11- Sale of merchandise on sidewalk in the Central Business District. 

(a) Any merchant who regularly engages in the retail sales of merchandise in the Central 
Business District shall have the right to display and sell merchandise regularly sold by such 
merchant on any city sidewalk which adjoins the place of business of such merchant without the 
necessity of procuring a permit which is otherwise required pursuant to section 20-1. Provided, 
however, such activities shall not extend into any adjoining street or thoroughfare. 

(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing authorization, any merchant who displays and sells 
merchandise on city sidewalks in the Central Business District shall comply with the following 
regulations: 

(l)The display and sale of merchandise on any city sidewalk shall only take place during the 
business hours of the merchant, and all merchandise, including any display apparatus, and 
any equipment or other related apparatus, together with any trash and debris, shall be 
removed from the city sidewalk immediately upon the close of business. 

(2)The display and sale of merchandise on any city sidewalk shall be done in an orderly and 
reasonable manner, next to the business, and extend no more than three (3) feet onto the 
sidewalk and must leave a minimum of four and one-half ( 4-1/2) feet of unobstructed 
sidewalk (pavers next to the curb are not to be counted as part of the measurement of 
unobstructed sidewalk) and shall at no time obstruct the public's reasonable access upon 
and across any city sidewalk or right-of-way, nor shall it in any manner be adverse to any 
necessary emergency or safety access. 

(3)Any merchant who displays and sells merchandise on any city sidewalk shall regularly 
inspect the city sidewalk which adjoins the place of business of the merchant for defects or 
hazardous conditions, and, should any defect or hazardous condition be found, the merchant 

-1-
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ORDINANCE NO. 36-16 (CONT.) 

shall immediately notify the City Manager and the Public Works Department. Merchants 
shall refrain from displaying or selling merchandise on any city sidewalk during inclement 
weather. 

(4) The business, at its sole expense, shall maintain comprehensive general 
liability insurance, protecting against all claims for personal injury, death or property 
damage occurring upon, in or about the premises resulting from the use of occupancy 
thereof, with a minimum of $1,000,000 ( one million dollars) in coverage from an 
insurance company with an A rating. The city must be named in this policy as an 
additional insured entity. The merchant shall also indemnify the city and save it harmless 
from any claim or cause of action which may be asserted by any person against the city 
by reason of the merchant's use and operation upon the city sidewalk, or by reason of the 
merchant's violation of any provision as set forth herein. Before a merchant displays any 
merchandise on city sidewalks, they must produce their insurance to the City Manager for 
his/her approval and sign the city's indemnification form. 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed and 
superseded to the extent of such conflict. 

This ordinance shall become effective upon its legal adoption. 

On first reading of the foregoing ordinance, it was moved by Commissioner 
Robert M. Mills , seconded by Commissioner Jan Hite , that 

the ordinance be adopted on its first reading. On roll call the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston: 
Commissioner Hite: 
Commissioner Royster: 

AYE 
AYE 
AYE 

Commissioner Mills 
Mayor Austin: 

AYE 
AYE 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted on first reading and 
ordered that it be presented for second reading at a meeting of the Board of Commissioners. 

On second reading of the ordinance, it was moved by Commissioner 
____________ , seconded by Commissioner , that the 
ordinance be adopted. 

WHEREUPON, the vote was called. On roll call the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston: 
Commissioner Hite: 
Commissioner Royster: 

-2-

Commissioner Mills 
Mayor Austin: 
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ORDINANCE NO. 36-16 (CONT.) 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted, affixed his signature 
and the date and ordered that it be recorded. 

ATTEST: 

Maree Collins, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
LEGALITY THIS /11'/ DAY OF 
NOVEMEBER 2016. 

By: 

Steve Austin, Mayor 

Date: -----------

-3-
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December 2, 2016 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

City Commission Memorandum 
16-252 

Mayor Steve Austin and the Board of Commissioners 

Russell R. Sights, City Manager /)J 
' 

Amendment of 201 7 Appropriation Ordinance 

An item for consideration at the meeting of Tuesday, December 6, 2016, is final 
reading of an ordinance amending the Fiscal 201 7 Budget and Appropriation ordinance 
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017. 

I discussed with the Board of Commissioners a couple of meetings ago that the 
City of Henderson had filed a Homeland Security grant for the purchase of a new 
telephone system upgrade for our 911 Center. As shown in the attached memo from 
Police Chief Charles Stauffer, the grant was not approved. In order to have state-of-the
art telephone equipment capable of interacting with our CAD system and for receiving 
text 911 messages, this upgrade is necessary. 

Therefore, I am recommending to the Board of Commissioners a supplemental 
appropriation for the purchase of this equipment in addition to other changes that have 
become necessary since the adoption of the original budget. These changes are itemized 
by Finance Director Robert Gunter in the attached Finance Department Memorandum 16-
72. 

Appropriation 
General Fund: 

Administration Department 
Salaries - Supervision 

Parks & Recreation Department 
Salaries - Supervision 
Salaries - Overtime 
Professional Services 

Police Department 
Salaries - Overtime 

Transfers 
Transfer to Construction - Braxton Park Drive 
Transfer to 911 - 911 Phone System Replacement 

Construction Fund 
Land Acquisition-Fire Station 

HOME Fund 
HOME Program Grant 

Increase/(Decrease) 

$ 249,000 

$ 6,000 

$ 9,000 
$ 1,000 
$ 6,000 

$ 4,000 

$ 13,000 
$ 210,000 

$ 625,000 

$ 80,000 

Your approval of the attached ordinance is requested. 

c: Robert Gunter 
Chip Stauffer 
Buzzy Newman 

Revised 

$ 32,650,000 



POLICE DEPARTMENT MEMORANDUM

16-44

September 30, 2016

TO: Russell Sights
City Manager

FROM: Chip Stauffer
Chief of Police

SUBJECT: 911 Telephone System Upgrade

As you are aware, the Henderson Police Department did not successfully receive any
award amount from the 2016 Homeland Security Grant application. Therefore, I am
requesting approval for appropriated funds to purchase the necessary 911 telephone
system upgrade equipment for our Communications Center.

I am attaching to this correspondence the proposal provided by AT&T which compares
our current system costs to the new upgrade system. The proposal lists a non-recurring
cost of $280,000 with a monthly recurring fee of $5,849. These are the same figures that
were used when preparing the grant application request.

It should be noted that there are only four (4) Kentucky 911 Service Board approved
vendors at this time. In order to qualify for future Kentucky 911 Board Service grants an
approved vendor must be utilized.

Should you need any additional information regarding this matter, please let me know.

d?
Chip Stauffer
Chief of Police

CHS/wds



k A

,)s "?)
?

atsct
Kim Rankin

Application Specialist PSS

May 3rd, 2016

City of Henderson

Kentucky

I current AT&T Monthly Billing-911
Combined ALI/Selective Routing-Jointly Provided

ICombined Auto Number, Location ID-Selective Routing
4
lPower Ml-S
lWorkstation Computer
1
IVIPER Base System
IVIPER CAMA Gateway Shelf
jVlPER CIM Card
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r
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FINANCE DEPARTMENT MEMORANDUM 
16-72 

November 17, 2016 

TO: Russell Sights, City Manager 

FROM: Robert Gunter, Finance Director 

SUBJECT: Budget Amendments 

The following are the requested budget amendments. The revised budget ordinance is 
attached. 

General Fund - Administration Department: Additional appropriation for supervision 
salaries in the City Manager's division due to the pay reclassification of the public 
information officer. Proceeds will come from general fund surplus. 

Current Budget Proposed Budget 
10-10-011-4101 Salaries - Supervision $288,360 $294,360 

General Fund - Parks Department: Additional appropriation for supervision salaries in 
the Golf division due to the pay reclassification of the golf course manager. Proceeds 
will come from general fund surplus. 

10-35-452-4101 Salaries - Supervision 
Current Budget 
$39,050 

Proposed Budget 
$48,050 

General Fund - Parks Department: Additional appropriation for overtime in the 
Recreation division due to the reclassification of the recreation facilities supervisor from 
exempt to non-exempt. Proceeds will come from general fund surplus. 

Current Budget Proposed Budget 
10-35-456-4104 Salaries - Overtime $2,870 $3,870 

General Fund - Parks Department: Additional appropriation in the amount of $6,000 for 
one-half of the cost for protective netting at the girls' softball fields. Proceeds will come 
from general fund surplus. Note: the budget below includes the funding for all sports 
agencies. 

10-35-456-4419 Professional Services 
Current Budget 
$23,000 

Proposed Budget 
$29,000 

General Fund - Police Department: Additional appropriation for overtime in the police 
department due to the reclassification of the lieutenants from exempt to non-exempt. 
Proceeds will come from general fund surplus. 

10-40-231-4104 Salaries - Overtime 
Current Budget 
$155,150 

Proposed Budget 
$159,150 



General Fund - Transfers to Construction Fund: An additional appropriation in the 
amount of $13,000 for the construction of Braxton Park Drive. One-half of the cost will 
be reimbursed by H Properties, LLC. The balance of the funding will come from general 
fund surplus. 

Current Budget 
10-90-599-4707 Transfer to Construction $488,000 

Proposed Budget 
$501,000 

General Fund - Transfers to 911 Fund: An additional appropriation in the amount of 
$210,000 for the replacement of the phone system in the 911 centers. The total cost for 
both centers will be approximately $280,000. The City will apply for a capital grant 
through Homeland Security in the hopes of covering $175,000 of the cost. In the event 
that the grant is not approved, the City will be responsible for 75% with the County 
paying 25%. Proceeds will come from general fund surplus. 

10-90-599-4714 Transfer to 911 Fund 
Current Budget 
$1,038,000 

Proposed Budget 
$1,248,000 

Construction Fund - Fire Station: An appropriation in the amount of $625,000 for 
purchase of the Immanuel Baptist Temple property on 2nd Street. Proceeds will come 
from a future general obligation bond issue. 

51-90-298-4626 Land Acquisition 
Current Budget 
$0 

Proposed Budget 
$625,000 

Construction Fund - Streets: An additional appropriation in the amount of $13,000 for 
the construction of Braxton Park Drive. One-half of the cost will be reimbursed by H 
Properties, LLC. As shown above, funding will come from the General Fund. 

51-90-298-4612 Streets 
Current Budget 
$592,500 

Proposed Budget 
$605,500 

911 Fund: An additional appropriation in the amount of $280,000 for the replacement of 
the phone system in the 911 centers. The City will apply for a capital grant through 
Homeland Security in the hopes of covering $175,000 of the cost. In the event that the 
grant is not approved, the City will be responsible for 75% with the County paying 25%. 
Funding will come from the General Fund and Henderson County. 

58-3764 County Contribution 
58-3851 Transfer from General 
58-40-018-4608 Instruments & Apparatus 

Current Budget 
$345,000 
$1,038,000 
$0 

Proposed Budget 
$ 415,000 
$1,248,000 
$ 280,000 



HOME Fund: An appropriation in the amount of $84,000. The City was awarded a
HOME GAP grant. The grant will be used for new construction and grant administration.

84-3766 HOME Program
84-10-017-4863 ConstructionCosts
58-40-018-4865 Administration

Current Budget
$0
$0
$0

Proposed Budget
$84,000
$80,000
$ 4,000

Robert Gunter

Attachment



ORDINANCE NO. 39-16 

ORDINANCE AMENDING BUDGET AND APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE 

SUMMARY: AN ORDINANCE AMENDING BUDGET AND APPROPRIATION 
ORDINANCE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR COMMENCING JULY 1, 
2016 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2017 FOR THE CITY OF 
HENDERSON,KENTUCKY 

WHEREAS, on June 18, 2016, the City of Henderson adopted its annual budget and 
appropriation ordinance for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017, being 
Ordinance No. 21-16, and, 

WHEREAS, on October 11, 2016, the City of Henderson amended its annual budget 
and appropriation ordinance for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017, 
being Ordinance No. 33-16, and, 

WHEREAS, the City Manager recommends that the following additional amendments 
be adopted. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City of Henderson, Kentucky, that 
Ordinance No. 33-16 is amended as follows: 

1. 

GENERAL FUND 

ADMINISTRATION 
FINANCE 
FIRE 
PARKS & RECREATION 
POLICE 
PUBLIC WORKS 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
TRANSFERS/ AGENCIES 

TOTAL 

$ 

$ 

2,672,330 
2,349,210 
6,959,750 
1,891,470 
7,031,420 
2,794,760 
1,099,510 
7,602,550 

32,401,000 

$ 

$ 

2,678,330 
2,349,210 
6,959,750 
1,907,470 
7,035,420 
2,794,760 
1,099,510 
7,825,550 

32,650,000 

2. There is hereby appropriated from the General and Special Fund Accounts of the 
City of Henderson and allocated to the various Funds of the City the following 
amounts: 

PUBLICATION DA TE: 

ORDINANCE NO. 39-16 
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ORDINANCE NO. 39-16 (CONT.) 

GENERAL FUND 

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURE TOTAL $ 26,985,000 $ 27,011,000 
TRANSFER TO PWI 1,176,000 1,176,000 
TRANSFER TO MASS TRANSIT 684,000 684,000 
TRANSFER TO CONSTRUCTION FUND 488,000 501,000 
TRANSFER TO EMERGENCY COMM. 1,038,000 1,248,000 
TRANSFER TO POLICE/FIRE PENSION 404,000 404,000 
TRANSFER TO CIVIL SERVICE PENSION 179,000 179,000 
TRANSFER TO CEMETERY 204,000 204,000 
TRANSFER TO BOND FUND 1,243,000 1,243,000 
TOTAL GENERAL FUND $ 32,401,000 $ 32,650,000 

NATURAL GAS FUND $ 16,613,000 

HEALIB REIMBURSEMENT ARRANGE. $ 420,000 

CIVIL SERVICE PENSION FUND $ 185,000 

POLICE & FIRE PENSION FUND $ 404,000 

CEMETERY FUND $ 405,000 

HEALIB INSURANCE FUND $ 7,543,000 

BONDFUND $ 4,308,000 

PUBLIC WAY IMPROVEMENT FUND $ 1,832,000 

CONSTRUCTION FUND $ 9,192,000 $ 9,830,000 

FLOOD MlTIGATION FUND $ 861,000 

HART OPERATING FUND $ 1,649,000 

SANITATION FUND $ 3,262,000 

EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS FUND $ 1,933,000 $ 2,213,000 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND $ 510,000 

HOMEFUND $ 84,000 

POLICE INVESTIGATION FUND $ 20,000 

TRI-COUNTY RECYCLING $ 20,000 

2 
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ORDINANCE NO. 39-16 (CONT.) 

3. This Ordinance shall be effective as of July 1, 2016. 

This ordinance of amendment shall become effective upon its legal adoption. 

On first reading of the foregoing ordinance, it was moved by Commissioner 
x R. Royster _seconded by Commissioner Jan Hite , that 

the ordinance be adopted on its first reading. 

On roll call the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston: AYE Commissioner Mills: AYE -~~-- -----
Commissioner Hite: AYE Mayor Austin: AYE 

Commissioner Royster: AYE 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted on first reading and 
ordered that it be presented for second reading at a regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners. 

On second reading of the foregoing ordinance, it was moved by Commissioner 
seconded by Commissioner , that the ordinance be adopted. 

WHEREUPON, the vote was called, on roll call the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston: Commissioner Mills: ----- -----
Commissioner Hite: Mayor Austin: 
Commissioner Royster: 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted, affixed his signature 
and the date and ordered it be recorded. 

ATTEST: 

Maree Collins, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
LEGALITY THIS /'7DAY_ OF 
NOVEMB~, 2016. r // 

Steve Austin, Mayor 

Date 

l~/ .M ,~/' ;~,' 

B /r ""///r-·v .r 
y: /'i~~'.A,,{/',A l .. ! ;,:;../---f:~ 

'-Dawn Kelsey (j 
City Attorney 
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December 2, 2016 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

City Commission Memorandum 
16-253 

Mayor Steve Austin and the Board of Commissioners 

Russell R. Sights, City Manager ;Ji 
Job Classification and Pay Plan Amendment-Exempt to Non
exempt Status and Salary Adjustment to Meet Department of 
Labor Regulation Effective December 1, 2016 

As you have been advised previously, a federal judge in Texas has issued an 
injunction regarding the new overtime law and the issue of employees being exempt or 
non-exempt. Since the law will not go into effect on December 1, 2016 as originally 
planned, I am recommending that the Board of Commissioners not pass the ordinance on 
second reading which defines new exempt and non-exempt positions within our pay 
structure. 

As further detailed in the attached Legal Department memorandum, the City 
Attorney recommends the ordinance not be passed on second reading, due to the fact that 
if the U.S. Court overturns the U.S. Department of Labor's new Exempt Threshold Rules, 
the City will not be able to return the Job Classification/Pay Plan back to its previous 
status. 

I would suggest that this proposed ordinance be read on second reading and that 
the board members vote "no" on passage. 

Your approval of this recommendation is requested. 

c: Dawn Kelsey 
Connie Galloway 
Robert Gunter 



To: 

From: 

Dated: 

Subject: 

LEGAL DEPARTMENT 

MEMORANDUM 16-10 

Russell Sights, City Manager 
Connie Galloway, Human Resources Director 
Trace Stephens, Park & Recreation Director 
Charles "Chip" Stauffer, Chief of Henderson Police Department 

Dawn S. Kelsey, City Attorney 

December 1, 2016 

Job Classification and Pay Plan Amendment-Exempt to Non-exempt Status and 
Salary Adjustment to Meet Department of Labor Regulation Effective December 

1,2016 

At the November 15, 2016 Work Session, the Commissioners discussed the new 

requirements of the new Department of Labor's exempt and non-exempt employees threshold 
salary requirements which were scheduled to take effect as of December 1, 2016. In compliance 
with the Commission's direction, an Ordinance adjusting the Pay Plan to bring the City in 
compliance with the new rules was prepared. The Ordinance passed first reading at the 
November 22, 2016 meeting. However, before the meeting was completed, I learned that U.S. 
District Judge Amos L. Mazzant from Texas had just issued a nationwide injunction regarding 
the new overtime law that was to take effect December 1, 2016, putting the FLSA Exempt 
thresholds on hold. The Board of Commissioners declined to make any changes at that time to 

the Ordinance. 

After the meeting, in thinking through the effect of the Ordinance, if the Commission 

approves second reading of the Ordinance, and the U.S. Court overturns the U.S. Department of 

Labor's new Exempt Threshold Rules, the City will not be able to return the Job 
Classification/Pay Plan back to its previous status. Specifically, in regard to the Civil Service 
employees, pursuant to KRS 90.380, "When the number of employees and their classification 
has been fixed by ordinance, no employee shall be dismissed, suspended, or reduced in grade 
or pay for any reasons except that set out in KRS 90.360" [Emphasis added] The reasons 
allowable for a reduction in grade or pay in KRS 90.360 (1) "are "inefficiency, misconduct, 

insubordination, or violation of law involving moral turpitude or violation of any rule adopted by 
the city legislative body or civil service commission." Moreover, any attempt to reduce a civil 

service employee's grade or pay would require a hearing in front of the Civil Service 
Commission. Further, under KRS 95.450, the police have similar protection in that they cannot 



be reduced in grade or pay for any reason except inefficiency, misconduct, insubordination or 
violation of law or of the rules adopted by the legislative body, and only after charges are 
preferred and a hearing conducted by the legislative body. 



Human Resources Memorandum 
16 -120 

November 16, 2016 

TO: Russell R. Sights, City Manager 

FROM: Connie Galloway, Human Resources Director 

SUBJECT: Positions Revised to Comply with Final FLSA Regulation Changes 

The final regulations making changes governing overtime exemptions under the Federal Labor 
Standards Act (FLSA) become effective December 1, 2016. The key elements of the new regulations are: 

• Minimum salary threshold changed to $913/week ($47,476 annually). The previous minimum 
salary threshold was $455/week ($23,660 annually). 

• Automatic salary threshold increases every 3 years to maintain the level at the 40th percentile in 
the lowest-wage census region. 

• The standard duties test remains unchanged. 

The 4 exempt positions affected by the final regulations are [1] Police Lieutenant - four positions; [2] 
Golf Course Manager - one position; [3] Recreation Facilities Supervisor - one position; and [4] Public 
Information Officer - one position. These positions were presented to and reviewed by the Board of 
Commissioners at the November 151h work session. The Board directed staff to submit the following 
changes to these positions at the November 22nd Board of Commission meeting. 

1. Maintain the exempt status of the Golf Course Manager and Public Information Officer 
classifications by raising the annual salary of both employees to the new minimum annual 
salary threshold of $47,476. 

2. Change the Police Lieutenant and Recreation Facilities Supervisor classifications to non-exempt 
status. 

The positions that are changing to non-exempt will become eligible for overtime. As with other non
exempt positions, the department heads will manage the use of overtime for these positions. The 
change to the seven affected employees in these classifications will begin with the pay period containing 
December 1st. 

A revised job classifications and grades summary is attached. 

Cc Dawn Kelsey, City Attorney 
Robert Gunter, Finance Director 
Chip Stauffer, Chief of Police 
Trace Stevens, Parks & Recreation Director 

Attachment 



City of Henderson, Kentucky 
Job Classifications & Grades 

Code Grade Classification Title FLSA 

A 
0301 7 Account Clerk N 
0306 9 Account Representative N 
0304 l l Account Technician N 
0305 14 Account Technician, Senior N 
0314 35 Accounting Manager E 
0307 9 Administrative Clerk N 
0063 14 Administrative Secretary N 
0230 33 Applications Programming Manager E 
0315 36 Assistant Finance Director E 
I 110 27 Assistant Fire Chief N 

B 
0062 14 Benefits Coordinator N 
3701 10 Bus Operator N 
4204 10 Bus Preventive Maintenance Technician N 

C 
0020 25 City Clerk E 
2320 37 City Engineer E 
1210 30 Code Administrator E 
1204 16 Code Inspector N 
1208 24 Code Inspector, Senior N 
1302 12 Communications Officer N 
1304 l3 Communications Officer, Lead N 
1311 22 Communications Supervisor E 
8100 16 Community Development Specialist N 
4003 6 Crew Worker N 
4004 9 Crew Worker, Senior N 
6000 3 Custodial Worker N 

D 
0201 8 Data Entry Operator N 
1016 35 Deputy Police Chief E 
1203 16 Development Liaison N 
0321 47 Director, Finance E 
3020 45 Director, Gas System E 
0520 38 Director, Human Resources E 

E 
2310 31 Engineer E 
3104 13 Engineering Technician N 
4040 9 Equipment Operator N 
4041 II Equipment Operator, Senior N 
0010 17 Executive Assistant N 
8020 21 Executive Director, Human Relations Commission E 

F 
I 106 20 Fire Captain N 
1120 43 Fire Chief E 
1103 15.5 Fire Driver - Engineer N 
l 104 18 Fire Lieutenant N 
I 102 13.5 Firefighter N 
l JOO 13.5 Firefighter-In-Training (hourly) N 
I IOI 13.5 Firefighter-In-Training (shift) N 



City of Henderson, Kentucky 
Job Classifications & Grades 

Code Grade Classification Title FLSA 

G 
4l06 28 Garage Superintendent E 
3004 21 Gas Construction Supervisor N 
3002 17 Gas Distribution Crew Leader N 
3008 33 Gas Distribution Engineer E 
3006 30 Gas Distribution Superintendent E 
3005 11 Gas Distribution Technician N 
3l05 12 Gas Measurement Technician N 
3106 19 Gas Measurement Technician Leader N 
3010 37 Gas Operations Manager E 
3108 14 Gas Servicer N 
3003 20 Gas System Analyst N 
3001 12 Gas System Equipment Operator N 
3012 9 Gas System Worker N 
4006 9 Golf Course Maintenance Worker N 
4010 18 Golf Course Manager E 
4000 5 Grounds/Maintenance Worker N 

H 
4043 14 Heavy Equipment Operator N 
4044 15 Heavy Equipment Operator, Senior N 
0507 II Human Resources Generalist N 
0510 17 Human Resources Specialist N 
0063 14 HWU Administrative Assistant N 
4341 21 HWU Assistant Utility System Superintendent N 
4339 33 HWU Automation Manager E 
4338 21 HWU Automation Specialist N 
4308 37 HWU Chief Engineer E 
4303 17 HWU Construction Crew Leader N 
4337 18 HWU Construction Inspector N 
4329 30 HWU Construction Superintendent E 
4310 42 HWU Director ofField Operations E 
4357 38 HWU Director of Plant Operations E 
3104 13 HWU Engineering Technician N 
4355 16 HWU Environmental Compliance & Pretreatment Coordinator N 
4340 17 HWU GIS Analyst N 
4339 30 HWU GIS Manager E 
4331 33 HWU Information System Manager E 
0302 10 HWU Inventory Control Technician N 
4335 20 HWU Maintenance Team Leader N 
4325 JO HWU Maintenance Technician I N 
4326 14 HWU Maintenance Technician II N 
4327 18 HWU Maintenance Technician, Senior N 
4206 14 HWU Mechanic N 
4314 31 HWU Projects & Compliance Manager E 
4328 25 HWU Purchasing Manager E 
4349 9 HWU Receiving/Inventory Clerk N 
4307 20 HWU Safety & Training Coordinator N 
0060 9 HWU Secretary N 
0061 II HWU Secretary, Senior N 
4306 9 HWU (SOC) Secretary N 
4305 II HWU (SOC) Secretary, Senior N 
4313 13 HWU Utility Locator/Geospatial Technician N 
4302 17 HWU Utility System Crew Leader N 
4304 17 HWU Utility System Specialist N 
4311 30 HWU Utility System Superintendent E 
4312 9 HWU Utility System Worker I N 
4315 II HWU Utility System Worker II N 



City of Henderson, Kentucky 
Job Classifications & Grades 

Code Grade Classification Title FLSA 

4319 14 HWU Utility System Worker III N 
4334 21 HWU Wastewater Treatment Operator Chief N 
4330 JO HWU Wastewater Treatment Operator I N 
4326 16 HWU Wastewater Treatment Operator II N 
4356 17 HWU Water Quality Specialist N 
4333 21 HWU Water Treatment Operator Chief N 
4321 JO HWU Water Treatment Operator I N 
4334 18 HWU Water Treatment Operator II N 
3100 16 HWU Welder/Fabricator N 

I 
0210 13 Information Technology Operations Technician N 
0302 JO Inventory Control Technician N 

L 
4007 7 Landscape Technician N 
0064 13 Legal Secretary N 

M 
3100 16 Maintenance Welder N 
3304 9 Meter Reader N 
6102 8 Municipal Facilities Assistant N 
6110 31 Municipal Facilities Superintendent E 
6104 13 Municipal Facilities Worker N 
6106 15 Municipal Facilities Worker, Senior N 

N 
0214 18 Network Administrator I N 
0213 22 Network Administrator II N 

0 
0389 17 Occupational Tax Representative Administrator N 
0391 9 Occupational Tax Representative N 
0112 7 Office Assistant N 

p 
1000 7 Parking Enforcement Officer N 
4101 21 Parks and Cemeteries Superintendent E 
1020 44 Police Chief E 
1012 22 Police Lieutenant fet N 
1014 27 Police Major E 
1004 13.5 Police Officer N 
1008 18 Police Sergeant N 
0221 24 Programmer/ Analyst N 
1202 12 Property Maintenance Inspector N 
4117 30 Public Works Engineer E 

R 
1306 17 Radio Network Systems Technician N 
7005 8 Recreation Center Worker N 
7006 15 Recreation Facilities Supervisor fet N 
7010 23 Recreation Program Manager E 
0312 20 Revenue Supervisor N 

s 
0515 20 Safety & Training Coordinator N 
4108 30 Sanitation Superintendent E 
4001 5 Sanitation Worker N 
4002 6 Sanitation Worker, Senior N 
4009 9 Scale Operator N 
1001 3 School Crossing Guard N 
0060 9 Secretary N 
0061 11 Secretary, Senior N 



City of Henderson, Kentucky 
Job Classifications & Grades 

Code Grade Classification Title FLSA 

4110 30 Street Superintendent E 
0212 17 System Administrator N 

T 
4039 12 Traffic Control Supervisor N 
4211 16 Transit Mechanic Supervisor N 
3711 30 Transit Superintendent E 

u 
3309 20 Utility Billing Supervisor N 
3303 12 Utilities Servicer N 

V 
4206 14 Vehicle Mechanic N 
4203 8 Vehicle Servicer N 
4202 6 Vehicle Servicer Helper N 



City of Henderson, Kentucky 
Job Classifications & Grades 

Code Grade Classification Title FLSA 

6000 3 Custodial Worker N 
1001 3 School Crossing Guard N 
4000 5 Grounds/Maintenance Worker N 
4001 5 Sanitation Worker N 
4003 6 Crew Worker N 
4002 6 Sanitation Worker, Senior N 
4202 6 Vehicle Servicer Helper N 
0301 7 Account Clerk N 
4007 7 Landscape Technician N 
0112 7 Office Assistant N 
1000 7 Parking Enforcement Officer N 
0201 8 Data Entry Operator N 
6102 8 Municipal Facilities Assistant N 
7005 8 Recreation Center Worker N 
4203 8 Vehicle Servicer N 
0306 9 Account Representative N 
0307 9 Administrative Clerk N 
4004 9 Crew Worker, Senior N 
4040 9 Equipment Operator N 
3012 9 Gas System Worker N 
4006 9 Golf Course Maintenance Worker N 
4306 9 HWU (SOC) Secretary N 
4349 9 HWU Receiving/Inventory Clerk N 
0060 9 HWU Secretary N 
4312 9 HWU Utility System Worker I N 
3304 9 Meter Reader N 
0391 9 Occupational Tax Representative N 
4009 9 Scale Operator N 
0060 9 Secretary N 
3701 10 Bus Operator N 
4204 10 Bus Preventive Maintenance Technician N 
0302 10 HWU Inventory Control Technician N 
4325 10 HWU Maintenance Technician I N 
4330 10 HWU Wastewater Treatment Operator I N 
4321 IO HWU Water Treatment Operator I N 
0302 10 Inventory Control Technician N 
0304 II Account Technician N 
4041 II Equipment Operator, Senior N 
3005 11 Gas Distribution Technician N 
0507 II Human Resources Generalist N 
4305 II HWU (SOC) Secretary, Senior N 
0061 II HWU Secretary, Senior N 
4315 II HWU Utility System Worker II N 
0061 II Secretary, Senior N 
1302 12 Communications Officer N 
3105 12 Gas Measurement Technician N 
3001 12 Gas System Equipment Operator N 
1202 12 Property Maintenance Inspector N 
4039 12 Traffic Control Supervisor N 
3303 12 Utilities Servicer N 



City of Henderson, Kentucky 
Job Classifications & Grades 

Code Grade Classification Title FLSA 

1304 13 Communications Officer, Lead N 
3104 13 Engineering Technician N 
3104 13 HWU Engineering Technician N 
4313 13 HWU Utility Locator/Geospatial Technician N 
0210 13 Information Technology Operations Technician N 
0064 13 Legal Secretary N 
6104 13 Municipal Facilities Worker N 
1102 13.5 Firefighter N 
1100 13.5 Firefighter-In-Training (hourly) N 
1101 13.5 Firefighter-In-Training (shift) N 
1004 13.5 Police Officer N 
0305 14 Account Technician, Senior N 
0063 14 Administrative Secretary N 
0062 14 Benefits Coordinator N 
3108 14 Gas Servicer N 
4043 14 Heavy Equipment Operator N 
0063 14 HWU Administrative Assistant N 
4326 14 HWU Maintenance Technician II N 
4206 14 HWU Mechanic N 
4319 14 HWU Utility System Worker III N 
4206 14 Vehicle Mechanic N 
4044 15 Heavy Equipment Operator, Senior N 
6106 15 Municipal Facilities Worker, Senior N 
7006 15 Recreation Facilities Supervisor g N 
1103 15.5 Fire Driver - Engineer N 
1204 16 Code Inspector N 
8100 16 Community Development Specialist N 
1203 16 Development Liaison N 
4355 16 HWU Environmental Compliance & Pretreatment Coordinator N 
4326 16 HWU Wastewater Treatment Operator II N 
3100 16 HWU Welder/Fabricator N 
3100 16 Maintenance Welder N 
4211 16 Transit Mechanic Supervisor N 
0010 17 Executive Assistant N 
3002 17 Gas Distribution Crew Leader N 
0510 17 Human Resources Specialist N 
4303 17 HWU Construction Crew Leader N 
4340 17 HWU GIS Analyst N 
4302 17 HWU Utility System Crew Leader N 
4304 17 HWU Utility System Specialist N 
4356 17 HWU Water Quality Specialist N 
0389 17 Occupational Tax Representative Administrator N 
1306 17 Radio Network Systems Technician N 
0212 17 System Administrator N 
1104 18 Fire Lieutenant N 
4010 18 Golf Course Manager E 
4337 18 HWU Construction Inspector N 
4327 18 HWU Maintenance Technician, Senior N 
4334 18 HWU Water Treatment Operator II N 
0214 18 Network Administrator I N 
1008 18 Police Sergeant N 
3106 19 Gas Measurement Technician Leader N 



City of Henderson, Kentucky 
Job Classifications & Grades 

Code Grade Classification Title FLSA 

1106 20 Fire Captain N 
3003 20 Gas System Analyst N 
4335 20 HWU Maintenance Team Leader N 
4307 20 HWU Safety & Training Coordinator N 
0312 20 Revenue Supervisor N 
0515 20 Safety & Training Coordinator N 
3309 20 Utility Billing Supervisor N 
8020 21 Executive Director, Human Relations Commission E 
3004 21 Gas Construction Supervisor N 
4341 21 HWU Assistant Utility System Superintendent N 
4338 21 HWU Automation Specialist N 
4334 21 HWU Wastewater Treatment Operator Chief N 
4333 21 HWU Water Treatment Operator Chief N 
4101 21 Parks and Cemeteries Superintendent E 
1311 22 Communications Supervisor E 
0213 22 Network Administrator II N 
1012 22 Police Lieutenant fEl Ji 
7010 23 Recreation Program Manager E 
1208 24 Code Inspector, Senior N 
0221 24 Programmer/ Analyst N 
0020 25 City Clerk E 
4328 25 HWU Purchasing Manager E 
1110 27 Assistant Fire Chief N 
1014 27 Police Major E 
4106 28 Garage Superintendent E 
1210 30 Code Administrator E 
3006 30 Gas Distribution Superintendent E 
4329 30 HWU Construction Superintendent E 
4339 30 HWU GIS Manager E 
4311 30 HWU Utility System Superintendent E 
4117 30 Public Works Engineer E 
4108 30 Sanitation Superintendent E 
4110 30 Street Superintendent E 
3711 30 Transit Superintendent E 
2310 31 Engineer E 
4314 31 HWU Projects & Compliance Manager E 
6110 31 Municipal Facilities Superintendent E 
0230 33 Applications Programming Manager E 
3008 33 Gas Distribution Engineer E 
4339 33 HWU Automation Manager E 
4331 33 HWU Information System Manager E 
0314 35 Accounting Manager E 
1016 35 Deputy Police Chief E 
0315 36 Assistant Finance Director E 
2320 37 City Engineer E 
3010 37 Gas Operations Manager E 
4308 37 HWU Chief Engineer E 
0520 38 Director, Human Resources E 
4357 38 HWU Director of Plant Operations E 
4310 42 HWU Director of Field Operations E 
1120 43 Fire Chief E 
1020 44 Police Chief E 
3020 45 Director, Gas System E 
0321 47 Director, Finance E 



ORDINANCE NO. 40-16 

ORDINANCE AMENDING JOB CLASSIFICATION AND PAY PLAN 

SUMMARY: ORDINANCE AMENDING JOB CLASSIFICATION AND PAY PLAN 
TO COMPLY WITH FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS ACT (FLSA) BY MAINTAINING 
THE EXEMPT STATUS OF THE GOLF COURSE MANAGER AND INCREASING HIS 
ANNUAL SALARY TO THE THRESHOLD OF $47,476; AND CHANGING FOUR (4) 
POLICE LIEUTENANTS POSITIONS AND ONE (1) RECREATION FACILITIES 
SUPERVISOR POSITION TO NON-EXEMPT STATUS 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No.27-16, as amended, adopted a job classification and pay 
plan; and 

WHEREAS, in order to comply with the Federal Labor Standards Act (FLSA) 
governing overtime exemptions which becomes effective December 1, 2016, it has been determined 
necessary and advisable to modify the plan by maintaining the exempt status of the Golf Course 
Manager and increasing his annual salary to the threshold of $47,476; and changing four (4) police 
lieutenants positions and one (1) recreation facilities supervisor position to non-exempt status. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City of Henderson, Kentucky, that 
the job classification and pay plan is amended as follows: 

Class Code: 

1012 
7006 

Classified Title: FLSA: 

Police Lieutenants 
Recreation Facilities Supervisor 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, by the City of Henderson, Kentucky, that the salary 
increase for the Golf Course Manager position in the amount of $47,476.00 is hereby approved, and 
a copy of the revised job classifications and grades summary is attached hereto and made a part 
hereof by reference. 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed and 
superseded to the extent of such conflict. 

This ordinance shall become effective upon its legal adoption. 

On first reading of the foregoing ordinance, it was moved by Commissioner 
Jan Hite , seconded by Commissioner Robert M. Mills 

that the ordinance be adopted on its first reading. 

-1-

PUBLICATION DATE: 

ORDINANCE NO. 40-16 

FIRST READ: 11/22/2016 
SECOND READ: 



ORDINANCE NO. 40-16 (CONT.) 

On roll call the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston: --==--- Commissioner Mills: AYE 

Commissioner Hite: Mayor Austin: --=A=Y=E'------
Commissioner Royster: AYE 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted on first reading and 
ordered that it be presented for a second reading at a meeting of the Board of Commissioners. 

On second reading of the ordinance, it was moved by Commissioner 
_____________ , seconded by Commissioner ___________ _ 
that the ordinance be adopted. 

WHEREUPON, the vote was called. On roll call the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston: Commissioner Mills: ----- -----
Commissioner Hite: Mayor Austin: 
Commissioner Royster: 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted, affixed his signature 
and the date and ordered that it be recorded. 

ATTEST: 

Maree Collins, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO .:WRM AND 
LEGALITY THIS .f!f_ DAY OF :;VEz~ 

Dawn S. Kelsey 
City Attorney 

-2-

Steve Austin, Mayor 
Date: ------------

ORDINANCE NO. 40-16 



Code Grade 

0301 7 
0306 9 
0304 11 
0305 14 
0314 35 
0307 9 
0063 14 
0230 33 
0315 36 
1110 27 

0062 14 
3701 10 
4204 10 

0020 25 
2320 37 
1210 30 
1204 16 
1208 24 
1302 12 
1304 13 
1311 22 
8100 16 
4003 6 
4004 9 
6000 3 

0201 8 
1016 35 
1203 16 
0321 47 
3020 45 
0520 38 

2310 31 
3104 13 
4040 9 
4041 11 
0010 17 
8020 21 

1106 20 
1120 43 
1103 15.5 
1104 18 
1102 13.5 
! JOO 13.5 
1101 13.5 

City of Henderson, Kentucky 
Job Classifications & Grades 

Classification Title 

A 
Account Clerk 
Account Representative 
Account Technician 
Account Technician, Senior 
Accounting Manager 
Administrative Clerk 
Administrative Secretary 
Applications Programming Manager 
Assistant Finance Director 
Assistant Fire Chief 

B 
Benefits Coordinator 
Bus Operator 
Bus Preventive Maintenance Technician 

C 
City Clerk 
City Engineer 
Code Administrator 
Code Inspector 
Code Inspector, Senior 
Communications Officer 
Communications Officer, Lead 
Communications Supervisor 
Community Development Specialist 
Crew Worker 
Crew Worker, Senior 
Custodial Worker 

D 
Data Entry Operator 
Deputy Police Chief 
Development Liaison 
Director, Finance 
Director, Gas System 
Director, Human Resources 

E 
Engineer 
Engineering Technician 
Equipment Operator 
Equipment Operator, Senior 
Executive Assistant 
Executive Director, Human Relations Commission 

F 
Fire Captain 
Fire Chief 
Fire Driver - Engineer 
Fire Lieutenant 
Firefighter 
Firefighter-In-Training (hourly) 
Firefighter-In-Training (shift) 

ORDINANCE NO. 40-16 
Attachment 

ORDINANCE NO. 40-16 (CONT.) 
Attachment 

FLSA 

N 
N 
N 
N 
E 
N 
N 
E 
E 
N 

N 
N 
N 

E 
E 
E 
N 
N 
N 
N 
E 
N 
N 
N 
N 

N 
E 
N 
E 
E 
E 

E 
N 
N 
N 
N 
E 

N 
E 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 



ORDINANCE NO. 40-16 (CONT.) 

City of Henderson, Kentucky 
Attachment 

Job Classifications & Grades 

Code Grade Classification Title FLSA 

G 
4106 28 Garage Superintendent E 
3004 21 Gas Construction Supervisor N 
3002 17 Gas Distribution Crew Leader N 
3008 33 Gas Distribution Engineer E 
3006 30 Gas Distribution Superintendent E 
3005 11 Gas Distribution Technician N 
3105 12 Gas Measurement Technician N 
3106 19 Gas Measurement Technician Leader N 
3010 37 Gas Operations Manager E 
3108 14 Gas Servicer N 
3003 20 Gas System Analyst N 
3001 12 Gas System Equipment Operator N 
3012 9 Gas System Worker N 
4006 9 Golf Course Maintenance Worker N 
4010 18 Golf Course Manager E 
4000 5 Grounds/Maintenance Worker N 

H 
4043 14 Heavy Equipment Operator N 
4044 15 Heavy Equipment Operator, Senior N 
0507 11 Human Resources Generalist N 
0510 17 Human Resources Specialist N 
0063 14 HWU Administrative Assistant N 
4341 21 HWU Assistant Utility System Superintendent N 
4339 33 HWU Automation Manager E 
4338 21 HWU Automation Specialist N 
4308 37 HWU Chief Engineer E 
4303 17 HWU Construction Crew Leader N 
4337 18 HWU Construction Inspector N 
4329 30 HWU Construction Superintendent E 
4310 42 HWU Director of Field Operations E 
4357 38 HWU Director of Plant Operations E 
3104 13 HWU Engineering Technician N 
4355 16 HWU Environmental Compliance & Pretreatment Coordinator N 
4340 17 HWU GIS Analyst N 
4339 30 HWU GIS Manager E 
4331 33 HWU Information System Manager E 
0302 10 HWU Inventory Control Technician N 
4335 20 HWU Maintenance Team Leader N 
4325 10 HWU Maintenance Technician I N 
4326 14 HWU Maintenance Technician II N 
4327 18 HWU Maintenance Technician, Senior N 
4206 14 HWU Mechanic N 
4314 31 HWU Projects & Compliance Manager E 
4328 25 HWU Purchasing Manager E 
4349 9 HWU Receiving/Inventory Clerk N 
4307 20 HWU Safety & Training Coordinator N 
0060 9 HWU Secretary N 
0061 11 HWU Secretary, Senior N 
4306 9 HWU (SOC) Secretary N 
4305 11 HWU (SOC) Secretary, Senior N 
4313 13 HWU Utility Locator/Geospatial Technician N 
4302 17 HWU Utility System Crew Leader N 
4304 17 HWU Utility System Specialist N 
4311 30 HWU Utility System Superintendent E 
4312 9 HWU Utility System Worker I N 
4315 11 HWU Utility System Worker II N 

2 
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ORDINANCE NO. 40-16 (CONT.} 

City of Henderson, Kentucky 
Attachment 

Job Classifications & Grades 

Code Grade Classification Title FLSA 

4319 14 HWU Utility System Worker III N 
4334 21 HWU Wastewater Treatment Operator Chief N 
4330 10 HWU Wastewater Treatment Operator I N 
4326 16 HWU Wastewater Treatment Operator II N 
4356 17 HWU Water Quality Specialist N 
4333 21 HWU Water Treatment Operator Chief N 
4321 10 HWU Water Treatment Operator I N 
4334 18 HWU Water Treatment Operator II N 
3100 16 HWU Welder/Fabricator N 

I 
0210 13 Information Technology Operations Technician N 
0302 10 Inventory Control Technician N 

L 
4007 7 Landscape Technician N 
0064 13 Legal Secretary N 

M 
3100 16 Maintenance Welder N 
3304 9 Meter Reader N 
6102 8 Municipal Facilities Assistant N 
6110 31 Municipal Facilities Superintendent E 
6104 13 Municipal Facilities Worker N 
6106 15 Municipal Facilities Worker, Senior N 

N 
0214 18 Network Administrator I N 
0213 22 Network Administrator II N 

0 
0389 17 Occupational Tax Representative Administrator N 
0391 9 Occupational Tax Representative N 
0112 7 Office Assistant N 

p 
1000 7 Parking Enforcement Officer N 
4101 21 Parks and Cemeteries Superintendent E 
1020 44 Police Chief E 
1012 22 Police Lieutenant fE} t{ 
1014 27 Police Major E 
1004 13.5 Police Officer N 
1008 18 Police Sergeant N 
0221 24 Programmer/ Analyst N 
1202 12 Property Maintenance Inspector N 
4117 30 Public Works Engineer E 

R 
1306 17 Radio Network Systems Technician N 
7005 8 Recreation Center Worker N 
7006 15 Recreation Facilities Supervisor fEt N 
7010 23 Recreation Program Manager E 
0312 20 Revenue Supervisor N 

s 
0515 20 Safety & Training Coordinator N 
4108 30 Sanitation Superintendent E 
4001 5 Sanitation Worker N 
4002 6 Sanitation Worker, Senior N 
4009 9 Scale Operator N 
1001 3 School Crossing Guard N 
0060 9 Secretary N 
0061 11 Secretary, Senior N 

3 
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Code Grade 

4110 30 
0212 17 

4039 12 
4211 16 
3711 30 

3309 20 
3303 12 

4206 14 
4203 8 
4202 6 

City of Henderson, Kentucky 
Job Classifications & Grades 

Classification Title 

Street Superintendent 
System Administrator 

T 
Traffic Control Supervisor 
Transit Mechanic Supervisor 
Transit Superintendent 

u 
Utility Billing Supervisor 
Utilities Servicer 

V 
Vehicle Mechanic 
Vehicle Servicer 
Vehicle Servicer Helper 

4 

ORDINANCE NO. 40-16 
Attachment 

ORDINANCE NO. 40-16 (CONT.) 
Attachment 

FLSA 

E 
N 

N 
N 

E 

N 
N 

N 
N 
N 



Code Grade 

6000 3 
1001 3 
4000 5 
4001 5 
4003 6 
4002 6 
4202 6 
0301 7 
4007 7 
0112 7 
1000 7 
0201 8 
6102 8 
7005 8 
4203 8 
0306 9 
0307 9 
4004 9 
4040 9 
3012 9 
4006 9 
4306 9 
4349 9 
0060 9 
4312 9 
3304 9 
0391 9 
4009 9 
0060 9 
3701 10 
4204 10 
0302 10 
4325 10 
4330 10 
4321 10 
0302 10 
0304 11 
4041 11 
3005 II 
0507 11 
4305 II 
0061 11 
4315 11 
0061 11 
1302 12 
3105 12 
3001 12 
1202 12 
4039 12 
3303 12 

City of Henderson, Kentucky 
Job Classifications & Grades 

Classification Title 

Custodial Worker 
School Crossing Guard 
Grounds/Maintenance Worker 
Sanitation Worker 
Crew Worker 
Sanitation Worker, Senior 
Vehicle Servicer Helper 
Account Clerk 
Landscape Technician 
Office Assistant 
Parking Enforcement Officer 
Data Entry Operator 
Municipal Facilities Assistant 
Recreation Center Worker 
Vehicle Servicer 
Account Representative 
Administrative Clerk 
Crew Worker, Senior 
Equipment Operator 
Gas System Worker 
Golf Course Maintenance Worker 
HWU (SOC) Secretary 
HWU Receiving/Inventory Clerk 
HWU Secretary 
HWU Utility System Worker I 
Meter Reader 
Occupational Tax Representative 
Scale Operator 
Secretary 
Bus Operator 
Bus Preventive Maintenance Technician 
HWU Inventory Control Technician 
HWU Maintenance Technician I 
HWU Wastewater Treatment Operator I 
HWU Water Treatment Operator I 
Inventory Control Technician 
Account Technician 
Equipment Operator, Senior 
Gas Distribution Technician 
Human Resources Generalist 
HWU (SOC) Secretary, Senior 
HWU Secretary, Senior 
HWU Utility System Worker II 
Secretary, Senior 
Communications Officer 
Gas Measurement Technician 
Gas System Equipment Operator 
Property Maintenance Inspector 
Traffic Control Supervisor 
Utilities Servicer 

5 

ORDINANCE NO. 40-16 
Attachment 

ORDINANCE NO. 40-16 (CONT.} 
Attachment 

FLSA 

N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 



Code Grade 

1304 13 
3104 13 
3104 13 
4313 13 
0210 13 
0064 13 
6104 13 
1102 13.5 
1100 13.5 
1101 13.5 
1004 13.5 
0305 14 
0063 14 
0062 14 
3108 14 
4043 14 
0063 14 
4326 14 
4206 14 
4319 14 
4206 14 
4044 15 
6106 15 
7006 15 
1103 15.5 
1204 16 
8100 16 
1203 16 
4355 16 
4326 16 
3100 16 
3100 16 
4211 16 
0010 17 
3002 17 
0510 17 
4303 17 
4340 17 
4302 17 
4304 17 
4356 17 
0389 17 
1306 17 
0212 17 
1104 18 
4010 18 
4337 18 
4327 18 
4334 18 
0214 18 
1008 18 
3106 19 

ORDINANCE NO. 40-16 (CONT.) 

City of Henderson, Kentucky 
Attachment 

Job Classifications & Grades 

Classification Title FLSA 

Communications Officer, Lead N 
Engineering Technician N 
HWU Engineering Technician N 
HWU Utility Locator/Geospatial Technician N 
Information Technology Operations Technician N 
Legal Secretary N 
Municipal Facilities Worker N 
Firefighter N 
Firefighter-In-Training (hourly) N 
Firefighter-In-Training (shift) N 
Police Officer N 
Account Technician, Senior N 
Administrative Secretary N 
Benefits Coordinator N 
Gas Servicer N 
Heavy Equipment Operator N 
HWU Administrative Assistant N 
HWU Maintenance Technician II N 
HWU Mechanic N 
HWU Utility System Worker III N 
Vehicle Mechanic N 
Heavy Equipment Operator, Senior N 
Municipal Facilities Worker. Senior N 
Recreation Facilities Supervisor g N 
Fire Driver - Engineer N 
Code Inspector N 
Community Development Specialist N 
Development Liaison N 
HWU Environmental Compliance & Pretreatment Coordinator N 
HWU Wastewater Treatment Operator II 
HWU Welder/Fabricator 
Maintenance Welder 
Transit Mechanic Supervisor 

Executive Assistant 
Gas Distribution Crew Leader 
Human Resources Specialist 
HWU Construction Crew Leader 
HWU GIS Analyst 
HWU Utility System Crew Leader 
HWU Utility System Specialist 
HWU Water Quality Specialist 
Occupational Tax Representative Administrator 
Radio Network Systems Technician 
System Administrator 
Fire Lieutenant 
Golf Course Manager 
HWU Construction Inspector 
HWU Maintenance Technician, Senior 
HWU Water Treatment Operator II 
Network Administrator I 

Police Sergeant 
Gas Measurement Technician Leader 

6 

ORDINANCE NO. 40-16 
Attachment 

N 
N 
N 
N 

N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
E 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 



Code Grade 

1106 20 
3003 20 
4335 20 
4307 20 
0312 20 
0515 20 
3309 20 
8020 21 
3004 21 
4341 21 
4338 21 
4334 21 
4333 21 
4101 21 
1311 22 
0213 22 
1012 22 
7010 23 
1208 24 
0221 24 
0020 25 
4328 25 
1110 27 
1014 27 
4106 28 
1210 30 
3006 30 
4329 30 
4339 30 
4311 30 
4117 30 
4108 30 
4110 30 
3711 30 
2310 31 
4314 31 
6110 31 
0230 33 
3008 33 
4339 33 
4331 33 
0314 35 
1016 35 
0315 36 
2320 37 
3010 37 
4308 37 
0520 38 
4357 38 
4310 42 
1120 43 
1020 44 
3020 45 
0321 47 

City of Henderson, Kentucky 
Job Classifications & Grades 

Classification Title 

Fire Captain 
Gas System Analyst 
HWU Maintenance Team Leader 
HWU Safety & Training Coordinator 
Revenue Supervisor 
Safety & Training Coordinator 
Utility Billing Supervisor 

Executive Director, Human Relations Commission 
Gas Construction Supervisor 
HWU Assistant Utility System Superintendent 
HWU Automation Specialist 
HWU Wastewater Treatment Operator Chief 
HWU Water Treatment Operator Chief 
Parks and Cemeteries Superintendent 
Communications Supervisor 
Network Administrator II 
Police Lieutenant 

Recreation Program Manager 
Code Inspector, Senior 
Programmer/ Analyst 
City Clerk 
HWU Purchasing Manager 
Assistant Fire Chief 
Police Major 
Garage Superintendent 
Code Administrator 
Gas Distribution Superintendent 
HWU Construction Superintendent 
HWU GIS Manager 
HWU Utility System Superintendent 
Public Works Engineer 
Sanitation Superintendent 
Street Superintendent 
Transit Superintendent 

Engineer 
HWU Projects & Compliance Manager 
Municipal Facilities Superintendent 
Applications Programming Manager 
Gas Distribution Engineer 
HWU Automation Manager 
HWU Information System Manager 
Accounting Manager 
Deputy Police Chief 
Assistant Finance Director 
City Engineer 
Gas Operations Manager 
HWU Chief Engineer 
Director, Human Resources 
HWU Director of Plant Operations 

HWU Director of Field Operations 
Fire Chief 
Police Chief 
Director, Gas System 
Director, Finance 

7 

ORDINANCE NO. 40-16 
Attachment 

ORDINANCE NO. 40-16 (CONT.) 
Attachment 

FLSA 

N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 

E 
N 
N 
N 
N 
N 
E 
E 
N 

f£-} Ji 
E 
N 
N 
E 
E 
N 
E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
E 

E 
E 
E 
E 
E 



December 2, 2016 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

City Commission Memorandum 
16-257 

Mayor Steve Austin and the Board of Commissioners 

Russell R. Sights, City Manager f}.J 
Separate Pay Plan for Police Department Sworn Officer Employees 

Enclosed is an ordinance proposing to adopt a separate pay plan for Police 
Department Sworn Officers, as well as the supporting ordinances that will be required if 
this proposal is approved by you. This proposal has been submitted by Commissioner 
Jan Hite with a request that it be considered for first reading at the called meeting on 
December 6, 2016. 



December 1, 2016 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

Mayor Steve Austin, Commissioner Robert M. "Robby" Mills, 
Commissioner Jesse L. Johnston IV, and Commissioner X R Royster 

Commissioner Jan M. Hite 

Henderson Police Department Sworn Officer Job Classification and Pay Plan 
Revision 

Enclosed for the agenda of Tuesday, December 6, 2016, is first reading of an ordinance that proposes 
a revision to the Henderson Police Department's sworn officer job classification and pay plan. The intent of 
this ordinance is to meaningfully reduce attrition, balance pay with years of service and time in-grade/rank, 
and make the City more competitive with other police departments within the Commonwealth. 

In the last five years, the City has lost 29 sworn officers to either retirement (20 years) or other police 
departments. This is an annual average of 9.5% attrition rate. The approximate cost to the City to replace one 
officer, from advertisement through training, is $58,000. This presents a cumulative cost of $1,682,000. 
Despite the seemingly large initial investment, the City will statistically realize a decrease in spending by 
approximately $136,000-$158,000, depending on "spiking."In addition to the fiscal expense of replacing an 
officer, we need to recognize the length of time a new recruit spends training (23 weeks of Basic Training, 13 
weeks of Field Training, and 1,440 hours of partner training) and the demands of an understaffed department. 

Also in this classification, you will notice the sworn officers will operate under a pay plan that better 
compliments the structure of the department. This classification also provides a rank structure that ensures 
equitable compensation based on years of service and time in-grade. This pay plan eliminates merit-based 
salary increases as well as longevity pay, and will be affected by only cost-of-living adjustment granted 
annually by the Board of Commissioners. 

Lastly, this classification and pay plan provides a means to brings each rank's average pay closer to 
the median pay (50%) for cities with a population of 20,000 - 99,999,published by the Kentucky League of 
Cities (Wage Study, 2016). This will improve our retention rates, increase our competitiveness with other 
police departments, as well as provide our sworn officers with compensation commensurate to the duties they 
perform. 

I want to express my sincere appreciation to all City Employees who participated in any way with the 
preparation of this proposal. 

Your approval of the attached ordinance is requested. 

c: Russell Sights, City Manager 
Charles Stauffer, Chief of Police 
Dawn S. Kelsey, City Attorney 
Robert Gunter, Finance Director 
Connie Galloway, Human Resources Director 



Human Resources Memorandum
16-124

December 1, 2016

TO: Russell R. Sights, City Manager

FROM: Connie Galloway, Human Resources Director

SUBJECT: Separate Pay Plan for Police Department Sworn Officer Employees

Pursuant to instructions of Commissioner Jan Hite, attached are the supporting documents
outlining her recommendation to move the following police job classifications to the attached
separate pay plan.

lThe?puty Police Chief
Police Chief

Police Lieutenant

Pqlice Major
Fl

l

Police Officer

Police Sergeant

1016

1020

1012

1014

"i004

1008

E

E

E

E

N

N

l
l
l

Hl
Commissioner Hite in conversation also instructed that employees in job classifications in the
police pay plan would be ineligible for a 2.5% merit increase at six (6) month probationary
periods and also ineligible for longevity pay.

Attached are amended Employee Manual articles that reflect the corresponding changes with
Commissioner Hite's recommendation.

l?le 2!"I O Z ?alary Schedule
l?iezrzZ Entrance?RateofPay
EArticle 214 - Pay Plan
Article 220 - Rate of Pay Upon Job Classification Change

I
l
1
l

w.

}

?, ,,.-a'?,tq,a -a

Connie Galloway
=1

Cc Dawn Kelsey, City Attorney
Robert Gunter, Finance Director

Attachments

K'j  M  lii '!m !' J *lem

5%--I. .md -..... . T..i.. .i.i A* ..



Pay & Leave : Salaries & Wages - OPM.gov Page 1 of 2

u.s. OFFICE OF PERSONNEL MANAGEMENT

PAY & LEAVE SAIARIES & WAGES

SAIARY TABLE :?oi6-GS

INCORPORATING THE i% GENERAL SCHEDULE INCREASE

EFFECTIVE JANUARY 2016

Annual Rates by Grade and Step

Grade Step x Step 2 Step3 Step4Step5 Step 6 Step7 Step8 Step g Step to WGI

t 18343 :t8g56 tg566 20173 20783 21140 21743 22351 22375 22941 VARIES

2 20623 21114 21797 22375 22629 23295 23961 24627 25293 25959 VARIES

3 22502 23252 24002 24752 25502 26252 27002 27752 28502 29252 750

4 25261 26103 26945 27787 28629 29471 30313 31155 31997 32839 842

s 28262 29204 30146 31088 32030 32972 33gi4 34856 357g8 3674o 942

6 31504 32554 33604 34654 35704 36754 37804 38854 39904 40954 1050

7 35009 36176 37343 38510 39677 40844:42011 43178 44345 45512 1167

8 38771 40063 41355 42647 43939 45231 46523 47815 49107 50399 1292

9 42823 44250 45677 47104 48531 49958 51385 52812 54239 55666 1427

10 47158 48730 50302 51874 53446 55018 56590 58162 59734 61306 1572

it 5i8ii 53538 55265 56992 58719 60446 62173 63goo 65627 67354 1727

12 62101 64171 66241 68311 7o38i 72451 74521 765gi 7866i 8o73i :?o7o

s3 73846 763o8 7877o 81232 836g4 86i56 886i8 gio8o 93542 g6oo4 2462

i4 87263 90172 g3o8i g5ggo 98899 101808104717107626 110535 113444 2909

15 102646 106068 109490 112912 116334 119756 123178 126600 130022 133444 3422

https://www.opm.gov/policy-data-oversight/pay-leave/salaries-wages/salary-tables/16Tab... 11/29/2016



OFFICERS 

YE":_ - -INAM~ . ~~ = GSl~~!:~$~~::FE~ ~~1~F:RE~~I88~ 
--- -~---------- --- $16.4~ $16.83 I . $74-8.8-0 

----------------~~~=~~-----· i -- ~i~::H~i~:: 1 

;~::::~ 

I 
$16.471 $16.83 $748.80 ---- --==r--- ----~-~::_~-~~:-t-i-=---:~-:-::--;-r ~ ~i~::1 ;~::: 

I $16.471 $16.83 I $748.80 
1------------

I-Y-E--A-=--R--=--2-=--=~--=---~-=--=-~-~!--!_N_A_M-~E---~=--=---_--_-----G-S~l7_S_TEP 2 - $3-~6-,1-92 ____ ___.L.l __ s_s_,9_9_0._4_-lo 

[CURRENT _N_E_W ____ I D-IF-FE~ENCE 

$16.76 $17.40 $1,331.2Q_ 
$17.14 $17.40 $540.80 

t----------+-------------t-·· 

$17.18 $17.40 $457.60 
1------------·-i---------------------+---

$17 .18 $17.40 $457.60 ~----------------------+-----------
$2,787.20 

-------- I GS 7 STEP 3 - $37,356 
YEAR 3 --- INAM~-----------TCURRENT INEW·---,~D-1-FFERENCE _____ _ 
--------------- !--------------- ! - $17 .18 ----$-17 .961 -- $1,622:4·() 

~- . - ··--1 -----$17.22Ll, --$17 '.~ .$1,539.20 

,------,----------------- I --~- s17.44 --- s17.961 ---siosi:60 
I-----------+-----------+---- $17.44 $17 .96

1 

$1,081.~Q_ 
$17.22 $17.96 $1,539.20 
$17.18 $17.96 $1,622.40 

~-----------------

$17.40 $17.96 $1,164.80 
l-----------+--------------+---------+----1-------

$17.181 $17.96 $1,622.40 
1----------------f-----------------------

t-----------+-------------------+------$ __ 5_,-__ $17 .961 $1,268.80 
$17.35 $17.961 $1,268.80 

1-----------------------
I $13,s11.20 

YEAR 5 GS 7 STEP 4 - $38,521 
----tURRENI !NEW ~[QiicFERENCE -

~---------,---------_-_-__ -__ -_-_-_-_-_--_:_I ;~~3iHf · ;i:!!~~~ 
1----------------------------I_____ $17 .61 1 _ $18.5_?_H_l,892.8Cl 

$17.61 $18.52
1 

$1,892.80 

NAME 

I $6,739.20 



OFFICERS 

YEAR 7 GS 7 STEPS - $39,686 
----------· 

NAME CURRENT NEW DIFFERENCE 
f--- --

$17.9i $19.08 $2,308.80 
-- --

$18.33 $19.08 $1,560.00 

I $17.97 $19.08 $2,308.80 
$6,177.60 

--
YEAR9 _J GS 7 STEP 6 - $40,851 

$19.641 
--

$19.07i $1,185.60 
$1,185.60 

YEAR 10 GS 9 STEP 1 - $42, 827 
--- - -·--

$19.89 $20.59 $1,456.00 
-- -----·---- ~ 

$19.02 $20.59 $3,265.60 
$4,721.60 

YEAR 11 GS 9 STEP 2 - $44,262 
- - --

NAME CURRENT NEW I DIFFERENCE 
$20.29 $21.28 $2,059.20 

$2,059.20 
f----

I 
~-

YEAR 12 GS 9 STEP 3 - $45,677 
-

$21.18 $21.96 $!,622.40 
-·--

$21.25 $21.96 $1,476.80 
$3,099.20 

--

YEAR 14 GS 9 STEP 4 - $47,112 
~-

-=--=~_$22.021 --- $22.65 
··-----

$1,}10.4!:)_ 
$21.89, $22.65 $1,580.80 

---

$21.41 $22.65 $2,579.20 

$S,470.4_Q 

YEAR 16 GS 9 STEP S - $48,526 
--

$22.02 $23.33 $2,724.80 
-

$22.02 $23.33 $2,724.80 

$22.021 $23.33 $2,724.80 
j $8,174.40 

f---- t 



OFFICERS 
YEAR 18 GS 9 STEP 6 - $49,961 

~" 

$22.02 $24.02 $4,160.00 
-

$22.02 $24.02 $4,160.00 

"" -" -·--
$8,320~.Q~ 

I . -··- " "" ----

YEAR 20 GS 11 STEP 1 - $51,812 
-" ""---·--··-

$24.911 
. -·····-

$22.02 $6,011.20 

I I $6,011.2.Q 
" 

j 
""" 

YEAR 22 GS 11 STEP 2 - $53,539 

LAST, FIRST $25.74 
""-

YEAR 24 GS 11 STEP 4 - $56,992 
"" --

$22.02 $27.40 $11,190.40 

$11,190.40 

---

YEAR 26 GS 11 STEP 5 - $58,718 

I RST $28.23 

""" 
_____ .,. 

YEAR 28 GS 11 STEP 6 - $60,444 1---~- - ""-"" ----~----

LAST, FIRST I i $29.06 

YEAR 30 GS 11 STEP 7 - $62,192 
"" 

LAST, FIRST I $29.90 

I 
OFFICER GRAND TOTAL $85,737.60 

CURRENT HPD OFFICER AVERAGE PAY: $38,745.78 
-" 

PROPOSED HPD OFFICER AVERAGE PAY: $40,651.06 
" 

KLC MEDIAN (50%): I $40,760.00 



SERGEANTS 

YEAR 1 GS 9 STEP 1 $42827 

NAME I CURRENT INEW 
LAST FIRST $20.59 .. 

YEAR2 GS 9 STEP 2 • 544.241 

NAME I CURRENT !NEW l)!FFFRFNCE 
------

$19.22 $21.27 $4.264.00 ------
$4.264.00 

YEAR3 GS 9 STEP 3 · $45 667 

NAME CURRENT INFW iDIFFFO<<iCF 

$19.22 $21.96 $5,699.20 

$19.75 $21.96 $4,596.80 

$10,296.00 

YEARS GS 9 STEP 4 • $47,112 ---
NAME CURRENT NEW 

~- LAST, FIRST $22.65 

YEAR 7 GS 9 STEP 5 · $48.526 

NAME I CURRENT INEW 

LAST, FIRST $23.33 

GS 9 STEP 6 - $49,961 

YEAR 9 LAST, FIRST $24.02 

___ ___L I 
. 

GS 11 STEP 1 • $51,812 
YEAR 10 .i==:J_2_4_:~______i_24.90 $852.80 YEAR HAVE YEARS OF S ANOMALY IN ORDER TO 

i $24.29 $24.90 $1.268.80 AVOID DECREASE IN PAY, WE DID THE GRADE UP, TWO STEPS DOWN 

$2,121_.60 CONVERSION. :-· -
f------·----

GS 11 STEP 2 - $52.539 I 
-- - --- ·'"· 

YEAR 11 NAME CURRENT NEW ', 

------ ... , ______ -------···· 

LAST, FIRST $25.74 

----------

GS 11 STEP 3 $55,265 

YEAR 13 $24.41- $26.57 $4.492.80 

$4.492.80 -----

GS 11 STEP 4 - S56.992 

!YEAR 15 LAST, FIRST $27.40 

GS 11 STEP 5 - $58,718 

YEAR 17 LAST, FIRST $28.23 ... 

-·------··· 

---~-----

GS 11 STEP 6 - $60.444 

IYEAR 19 1 LAST. FIRST $29.06 

-

GS 12 STEP 1 • 562.108 

IYEAR20 I I.AST. FIRST $29.86 

Janu,..:.t;T GRAND TOTAL $21,174.40 

.... 
I CURRENT HPDSERGEANT AVERAGE PAY: $45,545.07 -----
• PROPOSED HPD SERGEANT AVERAGE PAY: $49,074.13 

KLC MEDIAN /50%1: cr::n 1n.c nn 



LIEUTENANT ·-----~ --
YEAR 1 GS 11 STEP 1 S5l 812 

NAME I CURRENT NEW -. 
LAST FIRST S24 go[ 

YEAR 2 GS 1 STEP 2 · <;s, ssq 

NAME CURRENT NEW --
$23.32 $25.79 $5,137.60 
524.70 S25.79 SJ n1.20 

$7,404.80 

YEAR3 GS 11 STEP 3 S5S .265 

NAME lrURRENT NFW --
·---- ---------··---

LAST FIRST 526.57 

YEAR 5 GS 11 STEP 4- $56.992 

NAME I CURRENT NEW -. 2 YEAR LIEU II 16 IUI AL YEARS OF SERVILt. ANOMALY IN O UJtK TO AVUIU DECREASE 
$26.80 $27.40 51.248.00 IN PAY WE DID NOT DO THE GRADE UP, TWO STEPS DOWN CONVERSION BECAUSE IT WOULD ~-

$1,248.00 ' 
I 

YEAR 7 GS 11 STEP 5 - SSS,718 

NAME rtJRRENT NFW DIFF_ERENCE I ·--
LAST, FIRST $28.23 I 

-· 

YEAR 9 GS 11 STEP 6- $60.444 --
NAME rtJRRENT NFW ·-

·-
I LAST, FIRST $29.06 

-------- ----====----+-----
YEAR 10 GS 11 STEP 7· ~62,173 .. 

NAME CURRENT ~ I DIFFERENCE 3 YEAR LIEUTENANT, 27 YEARS OF SERVICE. ANOMALY, IN ORDER TO AVOID DECREASE IN PAY, 
·-·· 

$28.87 $29.89 $2,121.60 WE DID THE GRADE UP TWO STEPS DOWN ·-
$2,121.601 ..... !-·--··--··---

.. 
LIEUTENANT GRAND TOTAL $10,774.40 

~ 
-

CURRENT HPD LIEUTENANT AVERAGE PAY: .. , ____ ~_3.918.80 ------·-
PROPC5°SED HPD LIEUTENANT AVERAGE PAY: I $56,612.40 

------

KLC MEDIAN (50%): $55,476.001 



Major 

YEAR 1 --~:~c= GS 12 STEP 1- $62,108 
~ -------- C_URRENT_. I NEW 1, DIFFERENCE 

. - LAST, FIRST I $29.86 1 

---+--'---------+------+------i'-----i 
----------+--------·--··-----+--------t----------+-------------1 

---------+------·--------~------~----~-------· 
YEAR 2 GS 12 STEP 2- $64,168 
i-------------1-'N=A=M==E--===~-..=-_--lcuRRENT ____ N_E_W _____ -i-D-IF-FE_R_E_N-CE-I 

LAST, FIRST $30.85 

GS 12 STEP 3 - $66,248 
1---------N-1A-.M-E----------------·cuRRENT-~I--N--E·w--lP~FEREN~E 

---------·---1-L_AS-''--------i-----_,._ __ $3_1_.8_5_r ___ _ 

YEAR 3 

I f------·------+----------------+--------i--------
1 

~·----·---+--------------·~~------~-------~i ---·-

YEAR 5 GS 12 STEP 4- $68,307 
f--·------1-Ji___-A_M_E _____ ---

1 

CURRENT 1---N-EW-- DIFFERENCE 

, LAST, FIRST I I $32.84 
f------·---·- I 1 

-----·r-- ___ _,_I --

1-:!.~.E~_A=R=-7--_-____ --=r=---· --=---- -~~ 12 STEP 5-$70,387 . _ 

INAME _____ ·----·-------- lcuRRENT+' NEW ]

1
D1FFERENCE .. 

LAST, FIRST 
1 

$33.84 ~·-----------1----------------+----------l I I I 
f-----------

1 ·· ---~--1 . · I --------=~--- ---~= ---t--- GS 12 STEP 6 - $72,446 ========~ ___ :~~URRENT \ NEW DIFFERENCE 
LAST, FIRST ---r $34.84 ---------------------------------1 

YEAR 9 

YEAR 10 GS 12 STEP 7 - $74,526 
i NA·--M-E ________ I_C_U_R_R_E-NT ___ N_E_W_ I DIFFERENCE 

------===---------·------+"""~====----1------===----+--====:c:==-l 
LAST, FIRST $35.83 I 

·~-=--=----.=====~-:1:==--------_-M-A-JO--R-_-~-.-RA~N-D-TO ___ T_A_L_, _______ +N-:-LA-_~~------

1--------~RENT HPD MAJOR AVER~GE PAY: I IN/A 
~OPOSED HPD MAJOR AVERAGE PAY: \NIA --

---------jKLC M EDIAN-(50%) :--- - ------------11--·· $71,769 



DEPUTY CHIEF 
~·--------~----·---··--·-·-------·---·--------·-------~-----·--~ 

YEAR 1 1 GS 13 STEP 1 - $73,840 

=--=--=--=----==------·--+1-NA_M_E ------ tCU RR~1~. 
65 
r N ~~:~~~DIF;~,~-~~-~J~ 

~----------+----------+-----+----,----'----! 
$5,928.00 

1---------+-------·-------+-------+-------+----·--

YEAR 2 GS 13 STEP 2 - $76,315 
1---:::~:·:::::;:-N::A::M::E::_-_-_-:__-~:_-_-_-_-_-_~URRENT NEW JWEF_E_RENCE_ 

LAST, FIRST 1 $36.69 ! 

YEAR 3--·--F--· :s 13 STEP 3 - $78,769 
,~-A_M_E _________ jC~~ENT r--N-EW-_-~1-D-~-FE_R_E_N-CE-

---··-----,1-L--AS_T_, F-1-RST ·-·---·--- :, r $36.39, 
--------··-+-------------------------! 

I 

------·-

YEAR 5 GS 13 STEP 4 - $81,224 
NAME CU RR ENT r_N_E_W ____ D_I_ F--FE_R_E_N_C_E_ 

LAST, FIRST i $39.05 -·--·-------+-----------------------

=----- _______ -· I b----+------------
YEAR 9 --~ GS 13 STEP 6 - $86,153 ·--

_____ --t_ ~-------~URRENT_ I -~EW __]DIFFERENCE 

-··-·-·---- LAST, FIRST · ! $41.421 

YEAR 10 GS 13 STEP 7 - $88,618 

l---------+=N!=AM::::,_E ______ ---4-=:"C=U=R=RE==N=T"--+---"'N EW I DI_F FER ENCE 
LAST, FIRST $41.95 1 

------ _______ D_E_P_U_T_Y_C_H-·I--E-F-~G-RA-N--D-TO_T_A~L--------;..-$-5,-9·28.00 
t--·--------- ·-----------~----~-----

-~-~-~-~~~~-~---[-' c-u-~_-R_E=NT=H_P_D ___ 6E_P_U_T_Y _C __ H _I E~F -AV_E __ R_A_G_E_P~A_
1

_ Y=: ===~-----.-f f tf ,~Oci 
l_PROPOSED HPD DEPUTY CHIEF AVERAGE PAY: I $73,840.00 

1----------IKLC MEDIAN {50%): i-------· I -· $70,678 



POLICE CHIEF 
1-------------------"---

I 
-·---·-----·------~-~----·--------·-· . -·-----~---··----------

YEAR 1 GS 14 STEP 2 - $90,172 
1---------------------

- " !CURRENT T NEW """ I DIFFERENCE NAME ,......._...... ________ ---------·-----~---··-~ 

$37.22+ $43.35
1 

$12,750.40 

I $12,750.40 
------

YEAR2 GS 14 STEP 3 - $93,080 
-

NAME CURRENT NEW DIFFERENCE 

LAST, FIRST I I $44.75 

YEAR 3 GS 14 STEP 4 - $95,992 
-"-

--=-~CURRENT I 
-·-· 

NEW !DIFFERENCE __ ~NAME 
! LAST, FIRST $46.15 

_" _________ " --···-------" 

YEAR 5 I GS 14 STEP 5 - $98,904 i -- " " I --------"--"-------" , _______ " ____ ! " ""T ______ ""_"_"-"""" 

~-"_____1™ __________ " ______ ~URRENT ---+---fil.yY ___ 1 DIFFERENCfa_ 
LAST, FIRST $46.15; 

--- ---··--

-- --·- --~---,_ ___ 

I 

YEAR 7 GS 14 STEP 6 - $101,816 
-" 

I 

--
NAME CURRENT NEW DIFFERENCE 

LAST, FIRST $48.95 

I ---j --=±--- I --·-------

I 
"" - -------·-

YEAR 9 I GS 14 STEP 7 - $104,717 --"--------------+---- I CUR-RENT 1- _ NEW -1 NAME DIFFERENCE 
~· 

LAST, FIRST $49.35 
--·---

I 
I t ------------·-· .... _ 

j~ ____ .L ---··--

YEAR 10 GS 14 STEP 8 - $107,626 

E ---~CURRENT I NEW I DIFFERE~CE-

i LAST, FIRST i $51.741 
~" 

I I 

~· "---_-1 
I 

-

POLICE CHIEF GRAND TOTAL $12,750.40 
"" 

I 
---

CURRENT HPD POLICE CHIEF AVERAGE PAY: $77,417.60 ' "" 

PROPOSED HPD POLICE CHIEF AVERAGE PAY: I $90,168.00 

KLC MEDIAN (50%): $89,330.00 



OFFICERS 
$85,737.60 

SERGEANTS 
$21,174.40 

LIEUTENANTS 
$10,774.40 

MAJOR 
N/A 

DEPUTY CHIEF 

$5,928.00 

POLICE CHIEF 

$12,750.40 

TOTAL INITIAL SALARY INVESTMENT 

$136,364.80 

TOTAL INITIAL PENSION INVESTMENT (31.06%) 

$42,354.91 

INITIAL INVESTMENT GRAND TOTAL 

$178,719.71 



City of Henderson, Kentucky 

Police Grade & Salary Ranges 

Effective December 2016 

Grade Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 Step 8 Step 9 Step 10 

PD1 18,343.00 18,956.00 19,566.00 20,173.00 20,783.00 21,140.00 21,743.00 22,351.00 22,375.00 22,941.00 

P02 20,623.00 21,114.00 2:1,797.00 22,375.00 22,629.00 23,295.00 23,961.00 24,627;00 25,293.00 25,959.00 

PD3 22,502.00 23,252.00 24,002.00 24,752.00 25,502.00 26,252.00 27,002.00 27,752.00 28,502.00 29,252.00 

P04 25;261.,00 26,.103.00 26,945.00 27,787.00 28,629.00 29,471,00 30,313;00 31,155.00 31,997.00 32,839.00 

PD5 28,262.00 29,204.00 30,146.00 31,088.00 32,030.00 32,972.00 33,914.00 34,856.00 35,798.00 36,740.00 

PO§ 31,504,00 32;5S4,00 33,604.00 34,654.00 35,704.00 36,754.00 37,804.00 38,854.00 39,904.00 40,954.00 

PD7 35,009.00 36,176.00 37,343.00 38,510.00 39,677.00 40,844.00 42,011.00 43,178.00 44,345.00 45,512.00 

PPS · 38,771.00 40,063.00 41,355.00 42,647.00 43,939:00 45,231.00 46,523.00 47,815.00 49,107.00 50,399.00 

PD9 42,823.00 44,250.00 45,677.00 47,104.00 48,531.00 49,958.00 51,385.00 52,812.00 54,239.00 55,666.00 

POlO 47,158.00 48,730.00 50,302.00 51,874.00 53,446.00 55;018.00 56,590.00 58,162.00 59,734.00 61,306.00 

PD11 51,811.00 53,538.00 55,265.00 56,992.00 58,719.00 60,446.00 62,173.00 63,900.00 65,627.00 67,354.00 

PD12 62,101.00 64,171.00 66,241.00 68,311.00 70,381.00 72,451.00 74,521.00 76,591.00 78,661.00 80,731.00 

PD13 73,846.00 76,308.00 78,770.00 81,232.00 83,694.00 86,156.00 88,618.00 91,080.00 93,542.00 96,004.00 

P0:14 87,263,00 90,172.00 93,081.00 95,990.00 98,899.00 101,808.00 104,717.00 107,626.00 110,535.00 113,444.00 

PD15 102,646.00 106,068.00 109,490.00 112,912.00 116,334.00 119,756.00 123,178.00 126,600.00 130,022.00 133,444.00 

Police Job Classifications & Grades 

Code Grades Classification Title FLSA 

1016 PD13 Deputy Police Chief E 

1020 P014 Police Chief E 
1012 PD11 Police Lieutenant E 

1014 PD12 Police Major E 

1004 
PD7, PD9, 

Police Officer N 
PD11 

1008 
P09, P011, 

PD12 
Police Sergeant N 



SUMMARY: 

ORDINANCE NO. -----

ORDINANCE RELATING TO PAY PLAN 

ORDINANCE ADOPTING AMENDED JOB CLASSIFICATION 
AND PAY PLAN FOR THE CITY OF HENDERSON WHICH 
RECLASSIFIES THE JOB CLASSIFICATION AND PAY 
PLAN FOR THE SWORN OFFICERS OF THE POLICE 
DEPARTMENT WITH EFFECTIVE DATE OF ORDINANCE OF 
DECEMBER 19, 2016. 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners has recognized the need to revise the 
job classification and pay plan for the sworn officers of the Henderson Police Department, so 
that the sworn officers will be compensated on a fair and equitable basis for the jobs they 
perform for the City; and 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest to make the pay for sworn officers of the 
Henderson Police Department more competitive with other police departments in the 
Commonwealth of Kentucky, so as to encourage sworn officers to remain with the Henderson 
Police Department; and 

WHEREAS, in the last five years, the annual attrition rate for the Henderson Police 
Department's sworn officers has been an average of 9.5% at full compliment, at an expense to the 
City of $1,682,000 to hire and train replacements; and 

WHEREAS, the revised job classification and pay plan will promote better 
retention rates and greater engagement of sworn officers, will boost morale, and will provide for 
improved community-based policing and relations. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City of Henderson, Kentucky as 
follows: 

The Amended Job Classifications and Grades which includes new classification 
for sworn police officers as listed on the attached Exhibit A, and the Grades and Salary Ranges 
which includes new grade and salary for sworn police officers as listed on the attached Exhibit 
B, both being incorporated herein by reference, are hereby adopted as the Job Classification and 
Pay Plan of the City of Henderson effective December 19, 2016. 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed and 
superseded to the extent of such conflict. 

This ordinance shall become effective on December 19, 2016. 

On first reading of the foregoing ordinance, it was moved by Commissioner 
___________ , seconded by Commissioner , that 
the ordinance be adopted on its first reading. 

On roll call the vote stood: 



On first reading of the foregoing ordinance, it was moved by Commissioner 
___________ , seconded by Commissioner , that 
the ordinance be adopted on its first reading. 

On roll call the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston: Commissioner Mills: -----
Commissioner Hite: Mayor Austin: 
Commissioner Royster: 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted on first reading and 
ordered that it be presented for a second reading at a meeting of the Board of Commissioners. 

On second reading of the ordinance, it was moved by Commissioner 
____________ , seconded by Commissioner , that 
the ordinance be adopted. 

WHEREUPON, the vote was called. On roll call the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston: Commissioner Mills: -----
Commissioner Hite: Mayor Austin: 
Commissioner Royster: 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted, affixed his signature and the 
date and ordered that it be recorded. 

ATTEST: 

Maree Collins, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
LEGALITY THIS 2 DAY OF 
DECEMBER, 2016. 

By: 

2 

Steve Austin, Mayor 

Date: 



City of Henderson, Kentucky 
Job Classifications & Grades 

Code Grade Classification Title FLSA 

A 
0301 7 Account Clerk N 
0306 9 Account Representative N 
0304 11 Account Technician N 
0305 14 Account Technician, Senior N 
0314 35 Accounting Manager E 
0307 9 Administrative Clerk N 
0063 14 Administrative Secretary N 
0230 33 Applications Programming Manager E 
0315 36 Assistant Finance Director E 
1110 27 Assistant Fire Chief N 

B 
0062 14 Benefits Coordinator N 
3701 10 Bus Operator N 
4204 10 Bus Preventive Maintenance Technician N 

C 
0020 25 City Clerk E 
2320 37 City Engineer E 
1210 30 Code Administrator E 
1204 16 Code Inspector N 
1208 24 Code Inspector, Senior N 
1302 12 Communications Officer N 
1304 13 Communications Officer, Lead N 
1311 22 Communications Supervisor E 
8100 16 Community Development Specialist N 
4003 6 Crew Worker N 
4004 9 Crew Worker, Senior N 
6000 3 Custodial Worker N 

D 
0201 8 Data Entry Operator N 
1016 ~ PDl3 Deputy Police Chief E 
1203 16 Development Liaison N 
0321 47 Director, Finance E 
3020 45 Director, Gas System E 
0520 38 Director, Human Resources E 

E 
2310 31 Engineer E 
3104 13 Engineering Technician N 
4040 9 Equipment Operator N 
4041 11 Equipment Operator, Senior N 
0010 17 Executive Assistant N 
8020 21 Executive Director, Human Relations Commission E 

F 
1106 20 Fire Captain N 
1120 43 Fire Chief E 
1103 15.5 Fire Driver - Engineer N 
1104 18 Fire Lieutenant N 
1102 13.5 Firefighter N 
1100 13.5 Firefighter-In-Training (hourly) N 
1101 13.5 Firefighter-In-Training (shift) N 

EXHIBIT A 



City of Henderson, Kentucky 
Job Classifications & Grades 

Code Grade Classification Title FLSA 

G 
4106 28 Garage Superintendent E 
3004 21 Gas Construction Supervisor N 
3002 17 Gas Distribution Crew Leader N 
3008 33 Gas Distribution Engineer E 
3006 30 Gas Distribution Superintendent E 
3005 11 Gas Distribution Technician N 
3105 12 Gas Measurement Technician N 
3106 19 Gas Measurement Technician Leader N 
3010 37 Gas Operations Manager E 
3108 14 Gas Servicer N 
3003 20 Gas System Analyst N 
3001 12 Gas System Equipment Operator N 
3012 9 Gas System Worker N 
4006 9 Golf Course Maintenance Worker N 
4010 18 Golf Course Manager E 
4000 5 Grounds/Maintenance Worker N 

H 
4043 14 Heavy Equipment Operator N 
4044 15 Heavy Equipment Operator, Senior N 
0507 11 Human Resources Generalist N 
0510 17 Human Resources Specialist N 
0063 14 HWU Administrative Assistant N 
4341 21 HWU Assistant Utility System Superintendent N 
4339 33 HWU Automation Manager E 
4338 21 HWU Automation Specialist N 
4308 37 HWU Chief Engineer E 
4303 17 HWU Construction Crew Leader N 
4337 18 HWU Construction Inspector N 
4329 30 HWU Construction Superintendent E 
4310 42 HWU Director of Field Operations E 
4357 38 HWU Director of Plant Operations E 
3104 13 HWU Engineering Technician N 
4355 16 HWU Environmental Compliance & Pretreatment Coordinator N 
4340 17 HWU GIS Analyst N 
4339 30 HWU GIS Manager E 
4331 33 HWU Information System Manager E 
0302 10 HWU Inventory Control Technician N 
4335 20 HWU Maintenance Team Leader N 
4325 10 HWU Maintenance Technician I N 
4326 14 HWU Maintenance Technician II N 
4327 18 HWU Maintenance Technician, Senior N 
4206 14 HWU Mechanic N 
4314 31 HWU Projects & Compliance Manager E 
4328 25 HWU Purchasing Manager E 
4349 9 HWU Receiving/Inventory Clerk N 
4307 20 HWU Safety & Training Coordinator N 
0060 9 HWU Secretary N 
0061 11 HWU Secretary, Senior N 
4306 9 HWU (SOC) Secretary N 
4305 11 HWU (SOC) Secretary, Senior N 
4313 13 HWU Utility Locator/Geospatial Technician N 
4302 17 HWU Utility System Crew Leader N 
4304 17 HWU Utility System Specialist N 
4311 30 HWU Utility System Superintendent E 
4312 9 HWU Utility System Worker I N 
4315 11 HWU Utility System Worker II N 



City of Henderson, Kentucky 
Job Classifications & Grades 

Code Grade Classification Title FLSA 

4319 14 HWU Utility System Worker III N 
4334 21 HWU Wastewater Treatment Operator Chief N 
4330 10 HWU Wastewater Treatment Operator I N 
4326 16 HWU Wastewater Treatment Operator II N 
4356 17 HWU Water Quality Specialist N 
4333 21 HWU Water Treatment Operator Chief N 
4321 10 HWU Water Treatment Operator I N 
4334 18 HWU Water Treatment Operator II N 
3100 16 HWU Welder/Fabricator N 

I 
0210 13 Information Technology Operations Technician N 
0302 10 Inventory Control Technician N 

L 
4007 7 Landscape Technician N 
0064 13 Legal Secretary N 

M 
3100 16 Maintenance Welder N 
3304 9 Meter Reader N 
6102 8 Municipal Facilities Assistant N 
6110 31 Municipal Facilities Superintendent E 
6104 13 Municipal Facilities Worker N 
6106 15 Municipal Facilities Worker, Senior N 

N 
0214 18 Network Administrator I N 
0213 22 Network Administrator II N 

0 
0389 17 Occupational Tax Representative Administrator N 
0391 9 Occupational Tax Representative N 
0112 7 Office Assistant N 

p 
1000 7 Parking Enforcement Officer N 
4101 21 Parks and Cemeteries Superintendent E 
1020 f44f PD14 Police Chief E 
1012 ~ PD!l Police Lieutenant E 
1014 R-+t PD12 Police Major E 

1004 PD7, PD9, PDll Police Officer N 
fH-H 

1008 PD9, PDll, 
Police Sergeant N 

843- PD12 
0221 24 Programmer/ Analyst N 
1202 12 Property Maintenance Inspector N 
4117 30 Public Works Engineer E 

R 
1306 17 Radio Network Systems Technician N 
7005 8 Recreation Center Worker N 
7006 15 Recreation Facilities Supervisor E 
7010 23 Recreation Program Manager E 
0312 20 Revenue Supervisor N 

s 
0515 20 Safety & Training Coordinator N 
4108 30 Sanitation Superintendent E 
4001 5 Sanitation Worker N 
4002 6 Sanitation Worker, Senior N 
4009 9 Scale Operator N 
1001 3 School Crossing Guard N 



City of Henderson, Kentucky 
Job Classifications & Grades 

Code Grade Classification Title FLSA 

0060 9 Secretary N 
0061 11 Secretary, Senior N 
4110 30 Street Superintendent E 
0212 17 System Administrator N 

T 
4039 12 Traffic Control Supervisor N 
4211 16 Transit Mechanic Supervisor N 
3711 30 Transit Superintendent E 

u 
3309 20 Utility Billing Supervisor N 
3303 12 Utilities Servicer N 

V 
4206 14 Vehicle Mechanic N 
4203 8 Vehicle Servicer N 
4202 6 Vehicle Servicer Helper N 



City of Henderson, Kentucky 
Grade & Salary Ranges 

Effective July 1, 2016 

Grade Minimum Midpoint Maximum 
1 18,469.76 22,164.44 26,780.72 
2 19,563.11 23,47457 28,365.65 
3 20,655.31 24,785.92 29,950.61 
4 21,748.67 26,097.20 31,534.37 
5 22,840.84 27,408.51 33,119.33 
6 23,931.80 28,719J!3 34,701.91 
7 25,026.35 30,031.17 36,288.04 
8 26,117.35 31,341.28 37,870.62 
9 27,210.71 32,652.60 39,455.58 
10 28,302.87 33,963.93 41,04052 
II 29,396.21 35,274.03 42,623.10 
12 30,488.40 36,58653 44,208.06 
13 31,580.57 37,896.68 45,791.82 

13.S 34..262.43 40.02654 45,79L82 
14 32,673.93 39,208.01 47,377.97 
15 33,766.09 40,519.32 48,959.37 

15.5 34,996.84 41,978.70 48,959.37 
16 34,858.26 41,829.4-6 50544.29 
17 35,951.63 43,140.78 52,129.26 

18 37,043.81 44,452.08 53,714.20 
19 38,135.98 45,763.40 55,297.98 
20 39,22lH4 47,014.72 56,880.58 
21 40,321.49 48,386.05 58,466.70 

22 41,413.66 49,69617 60,049.28 
23 42,505.84 51,007.46 61,634.22 
24 43,599.21 52,318.80 63,219J8 
25 44,691.38 53,628.92 64,802.94 
26 45,784.72 54,94L41 66,386.71 
27 46,875.71 56,710.00 67,970.48 
28 47,970.24 57,562.88 69,556.63 
29 49,061.24 58,874.17 71,138.01 
30 50,155.77 60,185.52 72,725.35 
31 51,246.74 61,495.65 74,307.92 

32 52,34111! 62,806.93 75,892.87 
33 53,432.28 64,118.26 77,476.64 
34 54,52327 65,429.59 79,059.20 
35 55,617.81 66,740.89 80,645.36 

36 56,708.78 68,051.03 82,229.ll 
37 57,803.32 69,363.54 83,814.07 
38 58,894.32 70,673.67 85,397.83 
39 59,987.69 71,983.79 86,981.61 
40 61,079.83 73,296.30 88,565.37 
41 62,172.01 74,606.43 90,149.15 
42 63,265.39 75,917.75 91,735.28 
43 64,357.55 77,229.07 93,317.85 

44 65,450.91 78,540.37 94,903.99 
45 66,543.07 79,850.50 96,486.57 

46 67,635.27 81,161.82 98,071.54 
47 68,727.42 82,473.14 99,656.47 
48 69,819.59 83,784A5 101,237.89 
49 70,912.97 85,095.77 102,824.02 
50 72,005.12 8MOSJl9 104,407.78 

page 1 of2 EXHIBIT B 



Police Department Sworn Officers Grade & Salary Ranges 
Effective December , 2016 

PD15 102,646.00 106,068.00 109,490.00 112,912.00 116,334.00 119,756.00 123,178.00 126,600.00 130,022.00 133,444.00 

page 2 of2 



ORDINANCE NO. ----

ORDINANCE AMENDING EMPLOYEE MANUAL 

SUMMARY: ORDINANCE AMENDING AR TI CLE 136 -TRANSFER POLICY, 
ARTICLE 212-ENTRANCE RATE OF PAY, ARTICLE 220-RATE 
OF PAYUPONJOBCLASSIFICATIONCHANGE, ARTICLE2l0-
BASIC SALARY SCHEDULE AND ARTICLE 214 PAY PLAN OF 
THE EMPLOYEE MANUAL OF THE CITY OF HENDERSON 

WHEREAS, as part of the Police Department Sworn Officer Job Classification and 
Pay Plan amendment to the Job Classifications and Pay Plan, sworn police officers will no longer be 
eligible for a merit increase at six ( 6) months probationary periods or eligible for longevity pay; 

WHEREAS, the amended Job Classifications and Pay Plan which includes the Police 
Department Sworn Officer Job Classification and Pay Plan will prevent police officers from being 
eligible to transfer to the Fire Department because they are no longer in the same job classifications; 
and 

WHEREAS, the applicable portions of the Employee Manual must be amended to 
reflect these changes. 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City of Henderson, Kentucky, that Articles 136-Transfer 
Policy, Article 212-Entrance Rate of Pay, Article 220-Rate of Pay Upon Job Classification Change, 
Article 210-Basic Salary Schedule and Article 214- Pay Plan of the City's Employee Manual is 
hereby amended, copies of which are attached hereto, marked Exhibit "A", and made a part hereof by 
reference. 

This ordinance shall become effective upon its legal adoption. 

On first reading of the foregoing ordinance, it was moved by Commissioner 
___________ , seconded by Commissioner , that the 
ordinance be adopted on its first reading. 

On roll call the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston: Commissioner Mills: ----
Commissioner Hite: Mayor Austin: 
Commissioner Royster: 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted on first reading and 
ordered that it be presented for a second reading at a meeting of the Board of Commissioners. 



On second reading of the ordinance, it was moved by Commissioner
, seconded by Commissioner , that the

ordinance be adopted.

WHEREUPON, the vote was called. On roll call the vote stood:

Commissioner Johnston: Commissioner Mills:

Commissioner Hite: Mayor Austin:
Commissioner Royster:

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted, affixed his signature and
the date and ordered that it be recorded.

Steve Austin, Mayor

Date:

ATTEST:

Maree Collins, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND

LEGALITY THIS l DAY OF
DECEMBER, 2016.

By:
?i

awn S. elsey
City Attorney

-2-



ARTICLE 136 - TRANSFER POLICY 

A There are two types of transfer: Department initiated and employee initiated. Qualified employees 
may transfer between Departments or Divisions, provided the following conditions are met: 
1. Department Initiated: 

a. Department Heads of affected Departments are aware of the need for a transfer and agree in 
writing that the transfer is the best interest of the City and/ or employee before official contact is 
made with the employee. 

b. The employee shall have the best qualifications to fill the position. 
c. The employee's position classification will not change as a result of the transfer except as 

referred to in (i.). 
i. For the purpose of the Transfer Policy, the position classifications of police officer or firefighter 

may also be considered a transfer provided the employee has fulfilled all contractual 
obligations including thirty-six (36) months of service following the completion of all initial 
training. 

d. All transfers must be handled through the Human Resources Department and be approved 
by the City Manager upon written request of each Department Head as appropriate. 

2. Employee Initiated: 
a. The employee, through the chain of command, must notify his/her current Department 

Head of the desire to transfer and the reason(s) for making such a request should be 
submitted in writing. 

b. The employee shall have the best qualifications to fill the position. 
c. The employee's position classification will not change as a result of the transfer. [e>ccept as 

referred to in (i.). 
i. For the purpose of the Transfer Policy, the position classifications of police officer or 

firefighter may also be considered a transfer provided the employee has fulfilled all 
contractual obligations including thirty six (36) months of service follov,ring the completion 
of all initial training.] 

d. All transfers must be handled through the Human Resources Department and be approved 
by the City Manager upon written request of both Department Heads. 

B. The transfer will require a 6-month non-merit evaluation and a 12-month probationary period 
evaluation and the annual performance evaluation date of the transferred employee will remain the 
same. 

EXHIBIT "A" 



ARTICLE 212 - ENTRANCE RATE OF PAY 

The minimum rate of pay for a class shall normally be offered for recruitment purposes and shall be paid 
upon appointment to the class. However, an exception may be granted in the following cases: 

A Original appointments above the minimum rate may be paid if a Department Head submits a 
written request outlining reasons for such actions and such request is approved in writing by the 
Human Resources Director and the City Manager. 

B. When a former City employee is approved for re-employment (subject to Article 142, herein) to a 
class in which he or she was previously employed, the reappointment may be based on the rate of 
pay which the employee had been receiving at the termination of the most recent previous 
employment. A request for such reappointment must be made in writing by the Department Head 
and must outline reasons for such action and is subject to the approval of the Human Resources 
Director. 

C. Any employee who is temporarily appointed to a higher classified position than their regular 
position shall be temporarily compensated at the entry rate assigned to the range of the higher 
classified position or a five percent (5%) increase in salary, whichever is greater, provided said 
employee shall serve in the temporary position for thirty (30) days or more. Employees who serve 
in such temporary capacity shall receive payment retroactive to the first day of service in the higher 
classified position. An employee on the police department sworn officer pay plan who is 
temporarily appointed to higher classification than their regular position shall be temporarily 
compensated at the entry rate assigned to the range of the higher classified position or the next step 
in grade, whichever is greater, provided said employee shall serve in the temporary position for 
thirty (30) days or more. Upon completion of the temporary appointment, said employee shall 
revert to the salary appropriate for the grade of his/her regular classified position. 



ARTICLE 220 - RATE OF PAY UPON JOB CLASSIFICATION CHANGE 

A. Demotion 

1. Upon demotion due to a reduction in forces or other cause which is not the fault of the 
employee, pay shall be at the same rate of pay in the lower grade in which the employee is 
placed unless the maximum rate for the lower grade has been reached in which case the 
rate of pay shall be the maximum rate of the lower grade. 

2. Upon demotion for cause, the rate of pay in the lower grade shall be established by a 
disciplinary authority after considering the circumstances of the demotion. 

B. Promotion 

1. Any employee who is promoted to a higher classified position shall receive an increase in 
base pay which will result in a five percent (5%) increase unless the five percent (5%) 
increase results in reaching or exceeding the maximum rate for the new grade in which 
case the rate of pay shall be the maximum rate of pay for the grade. Employees in 
classifications on the police department sworn officer pay plan will move to the grade and 
step as established in the police department sworn officer pay plan. 

2. Upon completion of a probationary period of six (6) months of service and based upon a 
satisfactory evaluation and approved by the respective Department Head and the City 
Manager, said employee shall be eligible for an additional increase of two and one-half 
percent (21/2%) of base pay provided, however, that rate of pay shall not exceed the 
maximum rate established for the grade. Employees in the classifications on the police 
department sworn officer pay plan are not eligible for an increase at completion of the six 
(6) months of service in the probationary period. 

3. At the end of one year, and based upon a satisfactory performance evaluation and 
approved by the respective Department Head and the City Manager, the employee shall 
have successfully completed his/her positional probationary period of employment in the 
higher classification and shall be eligible for additional merit pay increase per Article 152. 

4. If an employee fails to successfully complete the positional probationary period of 
employment following a promotion and is recommended by his/her Department Head to 
return to a former classification and said recommendation is approved by the City 
Manager, pay shall be as though a promotion had not been granted. Said employee shall 
be eligible for any increases which would have been received had the promotion not 
occurred. However, there exists no inherent right of return to a previous classification. 



ARTICLE 210 - BASIC SALARY SCHEDULE 

A The salary schedule provides a series of grades with a salary range for each grade; each grade 
represents an increase in the salary range above the preceding grade. 

B. The salary schedule for each pay grade is based on proper analysis of all facets affecting salary 
levels. 

C. The ranges of pay shall consist of a minimum rate, midpoint rate, and a maximum rate. 
D. The police department sworn officer grade and salary ranges shall consist of grades and steps. 



ARTICLE214 - PAY PLAN 

Except for differentials specifically authorized by this manual, every employee in the classified service shall 
be paid within a range established for the classification to which the employee is assigned. The specific rate 
to be paid each employee shall be in accordance with applicable sections of this manual. 

A. Each employee having successfully completed a probationary period of six (6) months of service 
immediately subsequent to their initial employment date with the City in a Civil Service position 
and based upon a satisfactory evaluation approved by the respective Department Head and by 
the City Manager shall be eligible for an increase of two and one-half percent (2112%) of base pay, 
provided that such initial employment began at the minimum rate of his/her grade and 
classification. Employees in classifications on the police department sworn officer pay plan are 
not eligible for an increase at the six (6) month probationary period. At the end of one (1) year 
the employee will be eligible for up to an additional percentage increase as approved in the 
current budget based upon a satisfactory evaluation and approved by the respective Department 
Head and the City Manager. All subsequent advancements in salary shall be based on a 
satisfactory annual evaluation and approved by the respective Department Head and the City 
Manager. The same probationary salary increases are applicable to Police and Fire Department 
probationary employees. 

B. All employees will be eligible to receive up to an additional percentage merit salary increase as 
approved in the current budget if they have not reached the maximum rate within their assigned 
grade and classification, with such merit adjustment being based upon a satisfactory performance 
evaluation approved by the respective Department Head and by the City Manager. Employees 
in classifications on the police pay plan will be eligible to move to the next step as established in 
the police department sworn officer pay plan as approved in the current budget if they have not 
reached the maximum rate within their assigned grade and classification, with such merit 
adjustment being based upon a satisfactory performance evaluation approved by the Police Chief 
and by the City Manager. 

C. Any employee who has served at the maximum rate of his/her assigned classification for one (1) 
full year shall be eligible to receive longevity pay of up to the same percentage increase as the merit 
increase percentage in the current budget of the salary approved for that employee's grade in the 
annual budget, and is ineligible for merit salary increases. The percentage of longevity payment is 
determined by his/her annual performance evaluation. All longevity payments shall be based 
upon a satisfactory annual evaluation approved by the respective Department Head and by the 
City Manager. Longevity payments will be paid through the payroll system and shall be subject to 
all withholding requirements. Longevity payments are not added to the employee's base salary. 
Employees in classifications on the police department sworn officer pay plan shall not be eligible to 
receive longevity pay. 

D. Any employee who advances to the maximum rate at any time this plan is in effect will be eligible 
for any annual cost of living salary increase in the amount approved by the Board of 
Commissioners. 

E. The annual salary amounts approved by the Board of Commissioners each fiscal year shall be used 
as the basis for determining bi-weekly payroll amounts. The annual salary will be based on 2,080 
hours of work annually for all employees except Fire Department members who work a 24-hour 
shift every third work day. The annual salary of shift employees in the Fire Department shall be 
based on a combination of 2,080 hours of work at regular salary rates and 832 hours of work at 
overtime rates. 

F. All City employees are paid bi-weekly on every other Friday. Each paycheck will include earnings 
for all work performed through the end of the previous payroll period. 

G. Police and Firefighters who qualify receive monthly incentive pay for on-going training on the last 
day of the month. 



H. In the event that a regularly scheduled payday falls on a day off (e.g., a weekend or holiday), 
employees will receive pay on the last day of work before the regularly scheduled payday. 

I. Employees shall have pay directly deposited into approved credit union or bank accounts if they 
have completed all proper forms and the bank or credit union has sent a payroll authorization form 
to Human Resources. Employees will receive their check stub for wages when the City makes 
direct deposit on their behalf. 

J. Only the Department Head or designee from the Department is authorized to receive paychecks 
from the City Clerk's Office on the designated payday. Any employee absent from work may send 
a signed and dated statement to his/her Department Head requesting that his/her paycheck be 
released to a specific family member. Paychecks will be distributed to employees at the 
Department level. Human Resources may hold the paycheck of any employee who has not 
properly completed all required payroll forms in accordance with State and Federal wage and hour 
regulations. 



ORDINANCE NO. ---

ORDINANCE AMENDING BUDGET AND APPROPRlA TION ORDINANCE 

SUMMARY: AN ORDINANCE AMENDING BUDGET AND APPROPRlATION 
ORDINANCE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR COMMENCING JULY 1, 
2016 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2017 FOR THE CITY OF 
HENDERSON,KENTUCKY 

WHEREAS, on June 18, 2016, the City of Henderson adopted its annual budget and 
appropriation ordinance for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017, being 
Ordinance No. 21-16, and, 

WHEREAS, on October 11, 2016, the City of Henderson amended its annual budget 
and appropriation ordinance for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017, 
being Ordinance No. 33-16, and, 

WHEREAS, on December 6, 2016, the City of Henderson amended its annual budget 
and appropriation ordinance for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017, 
being Ordinance No. 39-16, and, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City of Henderson, Kentucky, that 
Ordinance No. 39-16-16 is amended as follows: 

1. 
GENERAL FUND 

ADMINISTRATION 
FINANCE 
FIRE 
PARKS & RECREATION 
POLICE 
PUBLIC WORKS 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
TRANSFERS/AGENCIES 

TOTAL 

$ 

$ 

2,678,330 
2,349,210 
6,959,750 
1,907,470 
7,035,420 
2,794,760 
1,099,510 
7,825,550 

32,650,000 

$ 

$ 

2,678,330 
2,349,210 
6,959,750 
1,907,470 
7,141,420 
2,794,760 
1,099,510 
7,825,550 

32,756,000 

2. There is hereby appropriated from the General and Special Fund Accounts of the 
City of Henderson and allocated to the various Funds of the City the following amounts: 



GENERAL FUND 

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURE TOTAL $ 27,011,000 $ 27,117,000 
TRANSFER TO PWI 1,176,000 1,176,000 
TRANSFER TO MASS TRAN SIT 684,000 684,000 
TRANSFER TO CONSTRUCTION FUND 501,000 501,000 
TRANSFER TO EMERGENCY COMM. 1,248,000 1,248,000 
TRANSFER TO POLICE/FIRE PENSION 404,000 404,000 
TRANSFER TO CIVIL SERVICE PENSION 179,000 179,000 
TRANSFER TO CEMETERY 204,000 204,000 
TRANSFER TO BOND FUND 1,243,000 1,243,000 
TOTAL GENERAL FUND $ J2,e§O,OOO $ 32,756,000 

NATURAL GAS FUND $ 16,613,000 

HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT ARRANGE. $ 420,000 

CIVIL SERVICE PENSION FUND $ 185,000 

POLICE & FIRE PENSION FUND $ 404,000 

CEMETERY FUND $ 405,000 

HEALTH INSURANCE FUND $ 7,543,000 

BONDFUND $ 4,308,000 

PUBLIC WAY IMPROVEMENT FUND $ 1,832,000 

CONSTRUCTION FUND $ 9,830,000 

FLOOD MITIGATION FUND $ 861,000 

HART OPERATING FUND $ 1,649,000 

SANITATION FUND $ 3,262,000 

EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS FUND $ 2,213,000 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND $ 510,000 

HOMEFUND $ 84,000 

POLICE INVESTIGATION FUND $ 20,000 

TRI-COUNTY RECYCLING $ 20,000 



3. This Ordinance shall be effective as of July 1, 2016. 

This ordinance of amendment shall become effective upon its legal adoption. 

On first reading of the foregoing ordinance, it was moved by Commissioner 
______________ seconded by Commissioner ___________ , that 
the ordinance be adopted on its first reading. 

On roll call the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston: Commissioner Mills: ----- -----
Commissioner Hite: Mayor Austin: 
Commissioner Royster: 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted on first reading and 
ordered that it be presented for second reading at a regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners. 

On second reading of the foregoing ordinance, it was moved by Commissioner 
seconded by Commissioner , that the ordinance be adopted. 

WHEREUPON, the vote was called, on roll call the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston: Commissioner Mills: ----- -----
Commissioner Hite: Mayor Austin: 
Commissioner Royster: 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted, affixed his signature 
and the date and ordered it be recorded. 

Steve Austin, Mayor 

Date 
ATTEST: 

Maree Collins, City Clerk 



December 2, 2016 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

City Commission Memorandum 
16-261 

Mayor Steve Austin and the Board of Commissioners 

Russell R. Sights, City Manager /4/ 
' 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017 A and General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2017B and 2017C 

An item for the meeting on Tuesday, December 6, 2017, is first reading of an 
ordinance authorizing the issuance of City General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017 A and 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017B and 2017C for the purpose of 
providing funds for various public improvements in the City; refunding outstanding 
Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2006A; refunding a portion of the outstanding 
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2007; and related costs in the principal amount of 
approximately $3,155,000.00, $2,530,000.00 and $2,330,000.00, respectively. 

The accompanying documents, prepared by Bond Counsel, include provisions for 
the terms and conditions for issuance, ordering and providing for the levy of an annual 
tax, to the extent necessary, sufficient to pay the principal and interest, revenue transfers, 
and provide for a public sale of the bonds. The Bonds will be payable from the tax 
revenues of the City and secured by an irrevocable pledge of the full faith, credit and 
taxing power of the City. The Bonds will be issued in fully registered form with Series 
2017A scheduled to mature on March 1, 2037; Series 2017B scheduled to mature on 
November 1, 2026; and Series 2017C scheduled to mature on April 1, 2027 and to bear 
interest semiannually at rates established by competitive bidding. 

Your approval of the attached ordinance is requested. 

c: Dawn Kelsey 
Robert Gunter 



HENDERSON WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

Resolution No. 2016 - 30 

Requesting Issuance of City of Henderson 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 20178 

The following Resolution was duly adopted by the Board of Commissioners of the Henderson 

Water & Sewer Commission at a regular meeting held on Monday, 21 November 2016, at which meeting 

a quorum was present. 

WHEREAS, The Henderson Water and Sewer Commission (the "Commission"), a component unit 

of the City of Henderson, Kentucky (the "City") has jurisdiction and control over the construction, 

equipping, management and operation of the City's water treatment and distribution system and the 

wastewater collection and treatment system (collectively, the "System"); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to an Ordinance adopted on August 8, 2006 (the "Prior System Ordinance"), 

the City, at the request of the Commission, heretofore issued its Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 

2006A (the "Prior Bonds"), which Prior Bonds are secured by a first pledge of the revenues of the System 

on a parity with any future parity bonds issued under the Prior System Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission has determined that the present conditions of the municipal market 

are more favorable than at the time the Prior Bonds were issued, and it would therefore be advantageous 

and in the best interests of the City and the Commission for the City to proceed with the issuance of its 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017B in the approximate principal amount of $2,530,000 

(which amount may be increased or decreased by up to $255,000) (the "Series 2017B Bonds") to currently 

refund and retire the outstanding Prior Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, in order to induce the City to issue the Series 2017B Bonds, it is necessary for the 

Commission to authorize and direct that excess System revenues be transferred to the City's General 



Fund (the "General Fund") on a timely basis in amounts sufficient to reimburse the General Fund for 

payment of that portion of semiannual debt service for the Series 2017B Bonds, all as authorized and 

prescribed by the Prior System Ordinance.; now, 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Henderson Water and Sewer Commission by and through its Board of 

Commissioners under the authority granted to the Board of Commissioners under Chapter 23 Article II 

Division 3 Sections 23-36 through 23-45.1 of the City Code of Ordinances, as follows: 

Section 1. Request and Petition for Issuance of Series 20178 Bonds by City. The Commission 

hereby requests and petitions the City to proceed with the authorization, sale and issuance of the City's 

Series 2017B Bonds in the approximate principal amount of $2,530,000 (which amount may be increased 

or decreased by up to $255,000) to currently refund and retire the outstanding Prior Bond, thereby 

realizing substantial debt service savings. 

Section 2. Transfer of System Revenues to City's General Fund. In order to induce the City to 

issue the Series 2017B Bonds, the Commission authorizes and directs that excess System revenues be 

transferred to the City's General Fund (the "General Fund") on a timely basis in amounts sufficient to 

reimburse the General Fund for payment of that portion of semiannual debt service for the Series 2017B 

Bonds, all as authorized and prescribed by the Prior System Ordinance. 

Section 3. Effective Date. This resolution shall be effective from and after its date of adoption. 

The General Manager is hereby authorized to deliver this Resolution to the City of Henderson, for 

action by the City Commission. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, having come before the Board of Commissioners on Monday, 21 November

2016, and upon Motion made by Commissioner .)J(Jie lJ)is4r, and seconded by Commissioner

Jol/lh V';emJeif.? , the Board of Commissioners voted as follows:

Commissioner, R. Paul Bird, Jr.
Commissioner, George Jones, 111
Commissioner, John Henderson

Commissioner, Gary Jennings
Commissioner, Julie Wischer
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Tom Williams, P.E.

HWU General Manager



ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HENDERSON, KENTUCKY 
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF (i) GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, 
SERIES 2017A IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $3,155,000 
(WHICH AMOUNT MAY BE INCREASED OR DECREASED BY UP TO 
$315,000) TO FINANCE VARIOUS PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS, (ii) 
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2017B IN THE 
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $2,530,000 (WHICH AMOUNT 
MAY BE INCREASED OR DECREASED BY UP TO $255,000) TO 
CURRENTLY REFUND THE OUTSTANDING CITY OF HENDERSON, 
KENTUCKY WATER AND SEWER REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2006A; 
AND (iii) GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2017C IN 
THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $2,330,000 (WHICH 
AMOUNT MAY BE INCREASED OR DECREASED BY UP TO $235,000) TO 
CURRENTLY REFUND A PORTION OF THE OUTSTANDING CITY OF 
HENDERSON, KENTUCKY GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 
2007; APPROVING THE FORMS OF BONDS; AUTHORIZING 
DESIGNATED OFFICERS TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER THE BONDS; 
PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT AND SECURITY OF THE BONDS; 
CREATING BOND PAYMENT FUNDS; MAINTAINING THE 
HERETOFORE CREATED SINKING FUND; AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE 
OF THE BIDS OF THE BOND PURCHASER OR PURCHASERS FOR THE 
PURCHASE OF THE BONDS; AND REPEALING INCONSISTENT 
ORDINANCES. 

WHEREAS, the City of Henderson, Kentucky (the "City") has determined the necessity 

of financing various improvements (collectively, the "New Project") for use in furtherance of 

proper public purposes of the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City heretofore issued its Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 

2006A (the "Prior 2006A Bonds"), the proceeds of which were used to finance the costs of the 

acquisition, construction, installation and equipping of certain improvements (the "2006 

Project") to the City's combined and consolidated municipal water, sanitary sewer and storm 

sewer system (the "System"); and 

WHEREAS, the City further heretofore issued its General Obligation Bonds, Series 2007 

(the "Prior 2007 Bonds"), the proceeds of which were used to finance and refinance a portion of 

the costs of the acquisition, construction and installation of various public improvements in the 



City (the "2007 Project"), and together with the New Project and the 2006 Project, the 

"Projects"); and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that it is in the best interests of the City that the City 

proceed at this time to finance the New Project through the issuance by the City of its General 

Obligation Bonds, Series 2017A in the approximate principal amount of $3,155,000 (which 

amount may be increased or decreased by up to $315,000) (the "Series 2017 A Bonds"); and 

WHEREAS, the City has further determined that the present conditions of the municipal 

market are more favorable than at the time the Prior 2006A Bonds and Prior 2007 Bonds were 

issued, and it is therefore advantageous and in the best interests of the City for the City to 

proceed with the issuance of its (i) General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 201 7B in the 

approximate principal amount of $2,530,000 (which amount may be increased or decreased by 

up to $255,000) (the "Series 2017B Bonds") to currently refund and retire the outstanding Prior 

2006A Bonds, and (ii) General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017C in the approximate 

principal amount of $2,330,000 (which amount may be increased or decreased by up to 

$235,000) (the "Series 2017C Bonds," and together with the Series 2017A Bonds and Series 

20 l 7B Bonds, the "Bonds") to currently refund and retire a portion of the outstanding Prior 2007 

Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Constitution and Laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, 

and particularly Sections 66.011 et. seq of the Kentucky Revised Statutes, as amended (the 

"General Obligation Act"), a city may issue bonds or refunding bonds, subject to the 

requirements of the General Obligation Act, to pay all or any portion of the costs of financing or 

refinancing any public project that such city is authorized to acquire, improve or construct; and 
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WHEREAS, the Bonds are to be sold and awarded to the successful bidders ( each a 

"Purchaser," and collectively, the "Purchasers") at public, competitive sale in accordance with 

the provisions of Chapter 424 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes, as amended. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 

THE CITY OF HENDERSON, KENTUCKY, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1 -- Necessity, Authorization and Purpose. The City hereby declares that it is 

desirable and necessary to issue and authorizes the issuance of its General Obligation Bonds, 

Series 2017A, in the approximate principal amount of $3,155,000, subject to a permitted 

adjustment (the "Series 2017 A Permitted Adjustment") increasing or decreasing the principal 

amount of Series 2017A Bonds awarded to the purchasers thereof by up to $315,000, for the 

purpose of (i) paying the costs of the New Project and (ii) paying the costs of issuance of the 

Series 201 7 A Bonds. 

The City hereby further declares that it is desirable and necessary to issue and authorizes 

the issuance of its General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017B, in the approximate 

principal amount of $2,530,000, subject to a permitted adjustment (the "Series 2017B Permitted 

Adjustment") increasing or decreasing the principal amount of Series 201 7B Bonds awarded to 

the purchasers thereof by up to $255,000, for the purpose of (i) paying the costs of currently 

refunding the outstanding Prior 2006A Bonds and (ii) paying the costs of issuance of the Series 

2017B Bonds. 

The City hereby further declares that it is desirable and necessary to issue and authorizes 

the issuance of its General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017C, in the approximate 

principal amount of $2,330,000, subject to a permitted adjustment (the "Series 2017C Permitted 

Adjustment," and together with the 2017 A Permitted Adjustment and 2017B Permitted 

Adjustment, the "Permitted Adjustments") increasing or decreasing the principal amount of 

3 



Series 2017C Bonds awarded to the purchasers thereof by up to $235,000, for the purpose of (i) 

paying the costs of currently refunding a portion of the outstanding Prior 2007 Bonds and (ii) 

paying the costs of issuance of the Series 2017C Bonds. 

The exact principal amount of Series 201 7 A Bonds, Series 2017B Bonds and Series 

2017C Bonds to be issued shall be established in the Certificate of Award (as hereinafter 

defined). 

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Bond Ordinance to the contrary, (i) 

$3,155,000 of Series 2017A Bonds, (ii) $2,530,000 of Series 2017B Bonds and (iii) $2,330,000 

of Series 2017C Bonds shall be offered for sale in accordance with the provisions hereof, and the 

determination of the best bids for such Bonds shall be made on the basis of all bids submitted for 

exactly those principal amounts of Bonds; provided however, the Permitted Adjustments are 

reserved in the City hereunder, with such increases or decreases to be made in any principal 

maturity. 

Section 2 -- Fom1 of Bonds. The Series 2017 A Bonds shall be issued as fully registered 

Bonds, shall be designated "General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017 A" and shall each express 

upon their face the purpose for which they are issued, that they are issued under the General 

Obligation Act and shall be substantially in the form set forth in Annex A. The Series 2017B 

Bonds shall be issued as fully registered Bonds, shall be designated "General Obligation 

Refunding Bonds, Series 2017B" and shall each express upon their face the purpose for which 

they are issued, that they are issued under the General Obligation Act and shall be substantially 

in the form set forth in Annex B. The Series 2017C Bonds shall be issued as fully registered 

Bonds, shall be designated "General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017C" and shall each 

express upon their face the purpose for which they are issued, that they are issued under the 

General Obligation Act and shall be substantially in the form set forth in Annex C. 
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The Bonds shall be in denominations as requested by the Purchaser or Purchasers, which 

shall be in integral multiples of five thousand dollars ($5,000). The Bonds shall each be dated 

their date of initial issuance and delivery, or such other date as is determined in a certificate of 

award accepting the bid of the successful bidder (the "Certificate of Award") and awarding the 

Bonds to the Purchaser. 

Interest on the Series 2017 A Bonds shall be payable semi-annually on March 1 and 

September 1 of each year ( a "Series 2017 A Interest Payment Date"), commencing September 1, 

2017 or such other initial interest payment date as shall be set forth in the Certificate of Award, 

at the stated interest rate or rates on the principal amount thereof, calculated on the basis of a 360 

day year with 30 day months. The Series 2017 A Bonds shall be serial or term Series 2017 A 

Bonds maturing, on the basis of substantially level debt service, on March 1 of the years and in 

the amounts to be established in the Certificate of Award after advertised competitive sale of the 

Series 2017 A Bonds based on the interest rates bid in the successful bid (the "Series A Bid") and 

the provisions of this Section 2, provided that the final maturity date of the Series 2017 A Bonds 

shall be no later than March 1, 203 7. 

Interest on the Series 2017B Bonds shall be payable each May 1 and November 1 (a 

"Series 2017B Interest Payment Date"), commencing May 1, 2017, or such other initial interest 

payment date as shall be set forth in the Certificate of A ward, at the stated interest rate or rates 

on the principal amount thereof, calculated on the basis of a 360 day year with 30 day months. 

The Series 2017B Bonds shall be serial or term Bonds maturing on November 1, 201 7 and each 

November 1 thereafter in the years and in the amounts to be established in the Certificate of 

Award after advertised competitive sale of the Series 2017B Bonds based on the interest rates set 

forth in the successful bid (the "Series B Bid") and the provisions of this Section 2, provided that 
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the final maturity date of the Series 2017B Bonds shall be as set forth in the Certificate of Award 

but shall be no later than November 1, 2026. 

Interest on the Series 2017C Bonds shall be payable each April 1 and October 1, 

commencing April 1, 2017 (a "Series 2017C Interest Payment Date," and together with the 

Series 2017 A Interest Payment Date and Series 2017B Interest Payment Date, the "Interest 

Payment Dates"), or such other initial interest payment date as shall be set forth in the Certificate 

of Award, at the stated interest rate or rates on the principal amount thereof, calculated on the 

basis of a 360 day year with 30 day months. The Series 2017C Bonds shall be serial or term 

Bonds maturing on April 1, 2017 and each April 1 thereafter in the years and in the amounts to 

be established in the Certificate of Award after advertised competitive sale of the Series 2017C 

Bonds based on the interest rates set forth in the successful bids (the "Series C Bid," and together 

with the Series A Bid and Series B Bid, the "Bids") and the provisions of this Section 2, 

provided that the final maturity date of the Series 2017C Bonds shall be as set forth in the 

Certificate of Award but shall be no later than April 1, 2027. 

The interest rate or rates on the Bonds shall be determined in the Certificate of A ward 

based on the Bids; provided that the aggregate net interest cost of the Series 2017 A Bonds shall 

not exceed five percent (5.00%), the aggregate net interest cost of the Series 2017B Bonds shall 

not exceed five percent (5.0%), and the aggregate net interest cost of the Series 2017C Bonds 

shall not exceed five percent (5.0%). 

The Series 2017 A Bonds maturing on and after March 1, 2028 shall be subject to optional 

redemption prior to their maturity on any date on or after March 1, 2027 in whole or in part, in 

such order of maturity as shall be designated in writing by the City, and by lot within a maturity, 

at the election of the City upon 45 days' written notice to Old National Bank d/b/a Old National 

Wealth Management, Evansville, Indiana (the "Paying Agent and Registrar"), at a redemption 

6 



price equal to the par amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. The Series 

2017B Bonds and Series 2017C Bonds shall not be subject to optional redemption prior to their 

stated maturities. 

If the successful bidder and original purchaser of the Bonds elects, in accordance with the 

provisions of the applicable Official Terms and Conditions of Bond Sale (the "Official Terms 

and Conditions of Bond Sale"), to combine the Bonds stated to mature on the maturity dates set 

out in the Bid of such original purchaser to comprise a term bond ("Term Bonds"), as set out in 

said successful Bid, then such Term Bonds shall be subject to mandatory redemption in part, at 

the selection of the Paying Agent and Registrar by lot in such manner as the Paying Agent and 

Registrar may determine, on each applicable maturing principal date at par plus accrued interest 

to the redemption date, according to the mandatory sinking fund redemption schedule or 

schedules set out in the Bid and in principal amounts corresponding to the maturity schedule set 

out in the Certificate of Award. 

At least thirty (30) days before the optional or mandatory sinking fund redemption date of 

any Bonds, the Paying Agent and Registrar shall cause a notice of such redemption either in 

whole or in part, signed by the Paying Agent and Registrar, to be mailed, first class, postage 

prepaid, to all registered owners of the Bonds to be redeemed in whole or in part at their 

addresses as they appear on the registration books kept by the Paying Agent and Registrar, but 

failure to mail any such notice shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for such 

redemption of Bonds for which such notice has been sent. Each such notice shall set forth the 

date fixed for redemption, the redemption price to be paid and, if less than all of the Bonds being 

payable by their terms on a single date then outstanding shall be called for redemption, the 

distinctive series, number or letters, if any, of such Bonds to be redeemed. 
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On the date so designated for redemption, notice having been mailed in the manner under 

the conditions hereinabove provided and moneys for payment of the redemption price being held 

in the Bond Payment Funds (as hereinafter defined) by the Paying Agent and Registrar for the 

registered owners of the Bonds to be redeemed, the Bonds so called for redemption shall become 

and be due and payable at the redemption price provided for redemption of such Bonds on such 

date, interest on the Bonds so called for redemption shall cease to accrue, and the registered 

owners of such Bonds shall have no right in respect thereof except to receive payment of the 

redemption price thereof. 

The Bonds may be issued in book-entry-only form through the services of the Depository 

Trust Company ("DTC"). If the City determines to issue the Bonds in book-entry-only form the 

Designated Officers (hereinafter defined) are authorized to execute all documents necessary to 

accomplish such form of issuance. 

Section 3 -- Execution and Delivery. The Bonds shall be executed by the manual or 

facsimile signature of the Mayor and duly attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the 

City Clerk (which, together with any other person as may be authorized by resolution are 

referred to as "Designated Officers"), and shall bear the manual authenticating signature of an 

authorized representative of the Paying Agent and Registrar. The Designated Officers are further 

authorized and directed to deliver the Bonds to the Purchasers, upon the terms and conditions 

provided herein, in the Certificate of Award and in the Bids, receive the proceeds therefor, 

execute and deliver such certificates and other closing documents and take such other action as 

may be necessary or appropriate in order to effectuate the proper issuance, sale and delivery of 

the Bonds. 
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The City authorizes and directs the Paying Agent and Registrar to authenticate the Bonds 

and to deliver the Bonds to the Purchasers following execution of the Certificate of Award and 

payment of the respective purchase price thereof. 

Section 4 -- Payment. Payment of or on account of the interest on and principal of the 

Bonds shall be made directly to the Paying Agent and Registrar for the account of the registered 

owner. Interest on the Bonds shall be payable by check, mailed to the person whose name 

appears on the fifteenth day of the month preceding the applicable Interest Payment Dates on the 

bond registration records as the registered owner, on each Interest Payment Date or by other 

transfer of funds acceptable to such registered owner and the Paying Agent and Registrar. 

Principal shall be payable in such coin or currency of the United States of America as shall be 

legal tender for the payment of public and private debts at the time and place of payment upon 

delivery of the Bonds to the Paying Agent and Registrar or by other transfer of funds acceptable 

to the Paying Agent and Registrar and such registered owner. All such payments shall be valid 

and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Bonds to the extent of the sum or 

sums so paid. 

Section 5 - Filing. The Designated Officers are hereby authorized to undertake and 

cause all filings of notices or information which may be required by law to be filed by the City, 

including, but not limited to, the filing with the State Local Debt Officer required by law. 

Section 6 -- Bond Payment Funds; Payment of Bonds. There is hereby established with the 

Paying Agent and Registrar a bond payment fund in the name of the City to be known as General 

Obligation Bonds, Series 2017 A Bond Payment Fund ( the "2017 A Bond Payment Fund"), into 

which the City covenants to deposit, and into which the Designated Officers are hereby 

authorized and directed to deposit from the Bond Sinking Fund (hereinafter identified), on or 

before the twenty-fifth day of each month which precedes a Series 2017 A Interest Payment Date, 
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the amount required to pay principal of and interest due on the Series 2017 A Bonds on such 

Series 2017 A Interest Payment Date. The Paying Agent and Registrar shall, without further 

authorization from the City, withdraw from the 2017A Bond Payment Fund, on such Series 

2017 A Interest Payment Date, the amounts necessary to pay principal of, and interest on, the 

Series 2017 A Bonds to the registered owner of the same. 

There is hereby further established with the Paying Agent and Registrar a bond payment 

fund in the name of the City to be known as General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017B 

Bond Payment Fund (the "2017B Bond Payment Fund"), into which the City covenants to 

deposit, and into which the Designated Officers are hereby authorized and directed to deposit 

from the Bond Sinking Fund on or before the twenty-fifth day of each month which precedes a 

Series 2017B Interest Payment Date, the amount required to pay principal of and interest due on 

the Series 2017B Bonds on such Series 2017B Interest Payment Date. The Paying Agent and 

Registrar shall, without further authorization from the City, withdraw from the 2017B Bond 

Payment Fund, on such Series 2017B Interest Payment Date, the amounts necessary to pay 

principal of, and interest on, the Series 2017B Bonds to the registered owner of the same. 

There is hereby further established with the Paying Agent and Registrar a bond payment 

fund in the name of the City to be known as General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017C 

Bond Payment Fund (the "2017C Bond Payment Fund," and together with the 2017A Bond 

Payment Fund and 201 7B Bond Payment Fund, the "Bond Payment Funds"), into which the City 

covenants to deposit, and into which the Designated Officers are hereby authorized and directed 

to deposit from the sinking fund on or before the twenty-fifth day of each month which precedes 

a Series 2017C Interest Payment Date, the amount required to pay principal of and interest due 

on the Series 2017C Bonds on such Series 2017C Interest Payment Date. The Paying Agent and 

Registrar shall, without further authorization from the City, withdraw from the 2017C Bond 
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Payment Fund, on such Series 2017C Interest Payment Date, the amounts necessary to pay 

principal of, and interest on, the Series 2017C Bonds to the registered owner of the same. 

The Paying Agent and Registrar is hereby appointed depository of the Bond Payment 

Funds with respect to the Bonds. 

If the City shall fail or refuse to make any required deposit in the Bond Payment Funds 

from the Bond Sinking Fund, the Paying Agent and Registrar shall (i) notify any agency of the 

Commonwealth of Kentucky or any political subdivision thereof which may collect and 

distribute taxes or revenues for the City to seek any available necessary or proper remedial 

action; and (ii) upon being indemnified against cost and expense, exercise any remedy provided 

in the Act or at law or in equity for the benefit of the owners of the Bonds or their assignees, and 

shall disburse all funds so collected to the owners of the Bonds as payment of the Bonds. 

Section 7 -- General Obligation. The Bonds shall be full general obligations of the City 

and, for the payment of said Bonds and the interest thereon, the full faith, credit and revenue of 

the City are hereby pledged for the prompt payment thereof. During the period the Bonds are 

outstanding, there shall be and there hereby is levied on all the taxable property in the City, in 

addition to all other taxes, without limitation as to rate, a direct tax annually in an amount 

sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds when and as due, it being hereby 

found and determined that current tax rates are within all applicable limitations. Said tax shall be 

and is hereby ordered computed, certified, levied and extended upon the tax duplicate and 

collected by the same officers in the same manner and at the same time that taxes for general 

purposes for each of said years are certified, extended and collected. Said tax shall be placed 

before and in preference to all other items and for the full amount thereof provided, however, 

that in each year to the extent that the other lawfully available funds of the City are available for 

the payment of the Bonds and are appropriated for such purpose, the amount of such direct tax 
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upon all of the taxable property in the City shall be reduced by the amount of such other funds so 

available and appropriated. 

Section 8 -- Maintenance of Bond Sinking Fund. There has previously been established a 

bond sinking fund with the City in accordance with the requirements of the Act (the "Bond 

Sinking Fund"), which is hereby ordered to be continued and maintained so long as any Bonds 

are outstanding. The funds derived from said tax levy hereby required or other lawfully 

available funds shall be placed in the Bond Sinking Fund and, together with interest collected on 

the same, are irrevocably pledged for the payment of the interest on and principal of all bonds 

issued under the Act and Tax-Supported Leases, as defined in the Act, when and as the same fall 

due. Amounts shall be transferred from the Bond Sinking Fund to the Bond Payment Funds at 

the times and in the amounts required by Section 6 hereof. 

Section 9 -- Certain Utilities Revenue Transfers. The City owns and operates the System 

for the public benefit, welfare and convenience. 

The revenues of the System currently secure several obligations of the City. The City 

currently has outstanding $2,885,000 principal amount of the Prior 2006A Bonds, which were 

issued under authority of an Ordinance adopted on August 8, 2006 (the "Prior System 

Ordinance") and, to the extent such are not refunded with the proceeds of the Series 2017B 

Bonds and other available funds, are obligations payable and secured by a first pledge of the 

revenues of the System on a parity with any future parity bonds issued under the Prior System 

Ordinance (collectively, "First Priority Obligations"). 

It is provided in the Prior System Ordinance that the City may issue additional bonds 

ranking on a basis of parity and equality with the Prior 2006A Bonds for the purpose of paying 

the costs of extensions, additions and improvements to the System upon a showing of 

compliance with the parity bond coverage test set forth in the Prior System Ordinance. It is 
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further provided in the Prior System Ordinance that the City may incur obligations the security 

and source of payment of which are subordinate and subject to the priorities of the First Priority 

Obligations and any additional parity bonds and may apply any excess revenues of the System to 

the payment of subordinate obligations payable from System revenues and for any lawful 

purpose related solely to the System. 

The City has previously ordered the transfer of excess System revenues to the City's 

General Fund in amounts sufficient to reimburse the General Fund for payment of semiannual 

debt service for the following obligations of the City: 

(i) City of Henderson, Kentucky General Obligation Bonds, Series 2010B. (the 

"20IOB Bonds"), issued pursuant to Ordinance No. 27-10 of the City (the "20IOB Ordinance") 

and currently outstanding in principal amount of $1,870,000; and 

(ii) City of Henderson, Kentucky General Obligation Bonds, Series 2012A (the 

"2012A Bonds"), issued pursuant to Ordinance No. 44-11 of the City (the "2012A Ordinance") 

and currently outstanding in the principal amount of $7,885,000; and 

(iii) City of Henderson, Kentucky General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013A (the 

"2013A Bonds"), issued pursuant to Ordinance No. 09-13 of the City (the "2013A Ordinance") 

and currently outstanding in the principal amount of $8,085,000; and 

(iv) City of Henderson, Kentucky General Obligation Bonds, Series 2014 (the "2014 

Bonds"), issued pursuant to Ordinance No. 27-14 of the City (the "2014 Ordinance") and 

currently outstanding in the principal amount of $7,355,000; and 

(v) City of Henderson, Kentucky General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2015B 

(the "2015B Bonds"), issued pursuant to Ordinance No. 22-15 of the City (the "2015 

Ordinance") and currently outstanding in the principal amount of $1,555,000; and 
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(vi) City of Henderson, Kentucky General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2015C 

(the "2015C Bonds") issued pursuant to the 2015 Ordinance and currently outstanding in the 

principal amount of $1,590,000; and 

(vii) City of Henderson, Kentucky General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016B 

(the "2016B Bonds," and together with the 2010B Bonds, 2012A Bonds, 2013A Bonds, 2014 

Bonds, 2015B Bonds and 2015C Bonds, the "Prior GO Bonds"), issued pursuant to Ordinance 

No. 1-16 of the City (the "2016 Ordinance," and together with the 2010B Ordinance, 2012A 

Ordinance, 2013A Ordinance, 2014 Ordinance and 2015 Ordinance, the "Prior GO 

Ordinances"), issued pursuant to the 2016 Ordinance and currently outstanding in the principal 

amount of $7,515,000. 

The Prior GO Bonds were issued for the benefit and purposes of the System. The Prior 

GO Ordinances provide that the transfer of excess System revenues previously described with 

respect to the Prior GO Bonds are made (a) on a basis subordinate and subject to in all respects 

the contractual rights and priorities existing in favor of the holders of First Priority Obligations 

issued under the Prior System Ordinance, and (b) for the sole benefit of the City's General Fund 

and not in any respect for the benefit or security of the holders the Bonds. 

Given that a portion of the Bonds are being issued for the benefit and purposes of the 

System, the City has elected to, and does hereby, order the transfer of excess System revenues to 

the City's General Fund on a timely basis in amounts sufficient to reimburse the General Fund 

for payment of that portion of semiannual debt service for the Series 2017B Bonds as shall be set 

forth in the Certificate of Award, which order to make such transfers is and shall be (a) on a basis 

subordinate and subject to in all respects the contractual rights and priorities existing in favor of 

the holders of First Priority Obligations issued under the Prior System Ordinance, and (b) for the 
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sole benefit of the City's General Fund and not in any respect for the benefit or security of the 

holders of the Bonds. 

Section 10 -- Sale of Bonds; Certificate of A ward. The Designated Officers are hereby 

directed to sell the Bonds to the Purchasers at advertised competitive sale, the final principal 

amount of, the principal amortization of and the interest rate or rates on the Bonds to be 

established in accordance with the requirements of Sections 1 and 2 hereof and the Certificate of 

Award. Either the Mayor, City Manager or Finance Director is hereby authorized to execute the 

Certificate of Award without further action of the Board of Commissioners setting forth the 

terms of the Bonds and any other provisions required by and not inconsistent with this Bond 

Ordinance. 

Section 11 -- Registered Owner; Transfer; Exchange. As long as the Bonds executed and 

delivered hereunder shall remain outstanding, the Paying Agent and Registrar shall maintain an 

office for the registration of such Bonds and shall also keep at such office books for such 

registration and transfers. The registered owner of the Bonds, as set forth in the registration 

books maintained by the Paying Agent and Registrar on the fifteenth day preceding an Interest 

Payment Date, or its assignees, for purposes of this Bond Ordinance, to the extent of its interest, 

shall be treated as the owner of the Bonds and shall be entitled to all rights and security of the 

owner of the Bonds hereunder. 

Upon surrender for registration of transfer of the Bonds at the office of the Paying Agent 

and Registrar with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Paying Agent and 

Registrar, duly executed by the registered owner or the registered owner's duly authorized 

attorney, the Paying Agent and Registrar shall execute and deliver, in the name of the designated 

transferee or transferees, one or more Bonds of the same series of any authorized denomination 

and of a like tenor and effect. 
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All Bonds, upon surrender thereof at the office of the Paying Agent and Registrar, may, 

at the option of the registered owner thereof be exchanged for an equal aggregate principal 

amount of Bonds of the same series of any authorized denomination. 

In all cases in which the privilege of exchanging or transferring Bonds is exercised, the 

Paying Agent and Registrar shall execute and deliver Bonds in accordance with the provisions of 

this Section. Every such exchange or transfer of Bonds, whether temporary or definitive, shall 

be without charge; provided that the Paying Agent and Registrar may impose a charge sufficient 

to reimburse it for any tax, fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to 

such exchange or transfer, which sum or sums shall be paid by the person requesting such 

exchange or transfer as a condition precedent to the exercise of the privilege of making such 

exchange or transfer. 

Section 12 -- Disposition of Proceeds. The proceeds of the sale of the Series 2017 A 

Bonds shall be deposited, together with other available funds of the City, as follows: (a) an 

amount sufficient to pay the costs of issuing the Series 2017 A Bonds shall be deposited to a 

special cost of issuance fund hereby directed to be established and designated as the "City of 

Henderson, Kentucky General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017 A Cost of Issuance Fund" (the 

"Series A Cost of Issuance Fund") and disbursed in accordance with written instructions of the 

Mayor or Finance Director of the City to pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2017 A Bonds; 

and (b) the remainder of the proceeds shall be deposited to a special construction fund hereby 

directed to be established and designated as the "City of Henderson, Kentucky General 

Obligation Bonds, Series 2017A Construction Fund" (the "Construction Fund") to be held by the 

construction fund depository designated in the Certificate of A ward and used for the acquisition, 

construction, installation and equipping of the New Project. 
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Payments from the Construction Fund for costs of acquisition, construction, 

improvement, installation and equipping of the New Project shall be made only through vouchers 

signed by the Mayor or Finance Director certifying in each instance that the voucher represents a 

sum actually earned by and due to the proposed payee under a contract with the City for work 

performed or property, equipment or materials furnished in connection with the New Project, or 

represents a sum necessary to be expended for land or rights-of-way necessary to be acquired by 

the City in connection with the New Project, and all checks drawn against the Construction Fund 

shall be signed by the Mayor, Finance Director or other City official duly authorized by the 

Board of Commissioners. No expenditure shall be made from the Construction Fund for costs of 

the New Project except for proper and authorized expenses relating to the acquisition, 

construction, improvement and installation of the New Project in accordance with the plans and 

specifications for the New Project, for which contracts have been awarded or work has been 

authorized, including without limitation architectural, engineering, construction management, 

title, appraisal, legal, accounting and other professional and related services and interest costs 

during construction, or to pay any costs of issuance of the Series 2017 A Bonds. Pending 

disbursement for the authorized purposes, the Construction Funds shall be subject to a first and 

paramount lien, change and security interest in favor of the holders of the Series 2017 A Bonds. 

Pending disbursement, all amounts held in the Construction Fund shall be invested solely 

in cash or obligations authorized pursuant to Section 66.480 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes, as 

amended from time to time. Upon completion of the New Project, as certified by the Finance 

Director, any balance then remaining on deposit in the Construction Fund shall, subject to any 

and all applicable legal requirements and compliance with applicable federal statutes and 

regulations necessary to assure the exclusion of interest on the Series 2017 A Bonds from gross 

income for federal income tax purposes, upon order of the Finance Director be expended to pay 
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costs of such additional municipal facilities as the City's Board of Commissioners may 

determine. 

The proceeds of the sale of the Series 2017B Bonds shall be deposited, together with 

other available funds of the City, as follows: (a) an amount sufficient to refund and retire the 

Prior 2006A Bonds within ninety days of the date of issuance and delivery of the Series 2017B 

Bonds shall be deposited in the bond payment fund established for the 2006A Prior Bonds (the 

"2006A Prior Bonds Bond Payment Fund"), and (b) the amount necessary to pay the costs of 

issuing the Series 2017B Bonds shall be deposited to a special cost of issuance fund hereby 

directed to be established and designated as the " City of Henderson, Kentucky General 

Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017B Cost of Issuance Fund" (the "Series B Cost of 

Issuance Fund") and disbursed in accordance with written instructions of the Mayor or Finance 

Director of the City to pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2017B Bonds. 

The proceeds of the sale of the Series 2017C Bonds shall be deposited, together with 

other available funds of the City, as follows: ( a) an amount sufficient to refund and retire the 

Prior 2007 Bonds within ninety days of the date of issuance and delivery of the Series 2017C 

Bonds shall be deposited in the bond payment fund established for the 2007 Prior Bonds (the 

"2007 Prior Bonds Bond Payment Ftmd"); and (b) an amount sufficient to pay the costs of 

issuing the Series 2017C Bonds shall be deposited to a special cost of issuance fund hereby 

directed to be established and designated as the "City of Henderson, Kentucky General 

Obligation Bonds, Series 2017C Cost oflssuance Fund" (the "Series C Cost oflssuance Fund") 

and disbursed in accordance with written instructions of the Mayor or Finance Director of the 

City to pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2017C Bonds. 

Section 13 - Disclosure Undertaking Procedures. In order to ensure compliance with 

certain continuing disclosure undertakings (the "Disclosure Undertakings") to be undertaken by 
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the City in connection with the issuance of the Bonds and submission of certain financial and 

operating data under Rule 15c2-12, as amended, of the Securities and Exchange Commission, the 

City hereby affirms that the procedures heretofore adopted by Ordinance No. 27-2014 with 

respect to its Disclosure Undertakings shall apply to the Bonds. 

Section 14 -- Tax Covenants; Certifications and Designations. The City shall at all times 

do and perform all acts and things permitted by law and necessary or desirable in order to assure 

that interest paid by the City on the Bonds shall, for the purposes of Federal income taxation, be 

exempt from income taxation under any valid provision of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 

amended and the Regulations promulgated thereunder (the "Code"). 

The City covenants that it shall not permit at any time or times any of the proceeds of the 

Bonds to be used directly or indirectly to acquire any securities or obligations the acquisition of 

which would cause any such Bonds to be "arbitrage bonds" as defined in Sections 103(b)(2) and 

148 of the Code, as then in effect. 

In order to assure compliance with this Section, thereby better securing and protecting the 

holders of the Bonds, the City covenants that it will not purchase any obligation or invest the 

proceeds of the Bonds in any obligations that produce a yield in excess of the applicable 

maximum yield as may be permitted by the Code. 

The City further covenants that prior to the issuance of the Bonds, and as a condition 

precedent to such issuance, the City shall certify by issuance of a certificate of the Mayor or 

Finance Director of the City that on the basis of the facts, estimates and circumstances in 

existence on the date of issue of the Bonds, it is not expected that the proceeds of the Bonds will 

be used in a manner which would cause such obligations to be "arbitrage bonds" under the Code. 

The City hereby certifies that it does not reasonably anticipate that less than 95% of the 

proceeds of the Bonds will be used for "local government activities" of the City. 
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The City designates the Bonds as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for the purposes set 

forth in Section 265(b )(3) of the Code. The City does not anticipate issuing more than 

$10,000,000 of "qualified tax-exempt obligations" during calendar year 2017. 

The City further covenants that it will cause to be filed with the Internal Revenue Service 

the reporting statements required by the Code. 

Section 15 -- Further Actions. In connection with the undertaking and implementation by 

the City of the plan of financing and refunding herein described, which is hereby expressly 

directed, the Designated Officers are hereby authorized and directed to take and carry out such 

further necessary, desirable or appropriate actions to effect such plan of financing and refunding. 

Section 16 -- Discharge of Bond Ordinance. If the City shall pay or cause to be paid, or 

there shall otherwise be paid, to the owners of the Bonds the total principal and interest due or to 

become due thereon through maturity, in the manner stipulated therein and in this Bond 

Ordinance, then the pledges made under this Bond Ordinance, and all covenants, agreements and 

other obligations of the City hereunder, shall thereupon cease, terminate and become void and be 

discharged and satisfied. 

Section 17 -- Further Actions. In connection with the undertaking and implementation by 

the City of the plan of financing herein described, which is hereby expressly directed, the 

Designated Officers are hereby authorized and directed to take and carry out such further 

necessary, desirable or appropriate actions to effect such plan of financing. 

Section 18 -- Incorporation of Preambles. The preambles of this Ordinance are hereby 

incorporated as an integral part of this Ordinance, to the same extent as if repeated herein 

verbatim, it being declared that the statements of fact set forth in such preambles are true and 

accurate in all respects. 
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Section 19 -- Severability. If any one or more of the provisions of this Bond Ordinance 

should be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, then such 

provisions shall be deemed to be severable from all remaining provisions and shall not affect the 

validity of such other provisions. 

Section 20 -- Inconsistent Actions. All prior ordinances, resolutions, orders or parts 

thereof inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed. 

Section 21 -- Open Meetings Compliance. All meetings of the Board of Commissioners 

and of its committees and any other public bodies, at which the formal actions in connection with 

the issuance of the Bonds were taken, or at which deliberations that resulted in such formal 

actions were held, were open meetings, and such formal actions were taken and any such 

deliberations took place while such meetings, after proper notice, were open to the public, in 

compliance with all legal requirements including KRS Sections 61.810, 6] .815, 61.820 and 

61.823. 

Section 22 -- Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and publication of a summary thereof, as provided by law. 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed and 

superseded to the extent of such conflict. 

This ordinance shall become effective upon its legal adoption. 

On first reading of the foregoing ordinance, it was moved by Commissioner 
____________ , seconded by Commissioner ____________ , that 
the ordinance be adopted on its first reading. 

On roll call the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston: Commissioner Mills: ----- -----
Commissioner Hite: Mayor Austin: 
Commissioner Royster: 
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WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted on first reading andordered that it be presented for a second reading at a meeting of the Board of Cornmissioners.
On second reading of the ordinance, it was moved by Commissioner

, seconded by Commissioner
the ordinance be adopted.

WHEREUPON, the vote was called. On roll call the vote stood:
Commissioner Johnston: Commissioner Mills:
Commissioner Hite: Mayor Austin:
Commissioner Royster:

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted, affixed his signature andthe date and ordered that it be recorded.

, that

Steve Austin, Mayor
Date:

ATTEST:

Maree Collins, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGALITY THIS 2ND DAY OF
DECEMBER, 2016.

-= /+-'? ?.
' Dawi/City Attorney
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CERTIFICATION 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting City Clerk of 

the City of Henderson, Kentucky, and as such City Clerk, I further certify that the foregoing is a 

true, correct and complete copy of an Ordinance duly enacted by the Board of Commissioners of 

the City at a duly convened meeting held on the 12th day of December, 2016, on the same 

occasion signed by the Mayor as evidence of his approval, and now in full force and effect, all as 

appears from the official records of the City in my possession and under my control. 

Witness my hand as City Clerk of said City as of the __ day of ______ , 2017. 

City Clerk 
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RA-

INTEREST RA TE 

ANNEX A 

CITY OF HENDERSON, KENTUCKY 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND, SERIES 2017A 

DATE OF 
ORIGINAL ISSUE MATURITY DATE 

REGISTERED HOLDER: 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: 

$ ____ _ 

CUSIP 

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: That the City of Henderson, Kentucky 
(the "City"), for value received, hereby acknowledges itself obligated to, and promises to pay to 
the registered holder identified above, or registered assigns, the principal sum identified above 
( or, if any part thereof has been paid, the balance thereof remaining unpaid), on the maturity date 
specified above, and to pay interest on said principal sum ( or, if any part thereof has been paid, 
the balance thereof remaining unpaid) from the date hereof, payable each March 1 and 
September 1, commencing September 1, 2017, at the Interest Rate per annum identified above, 
calculated on the basis of a 360 day year with 30 day months, except as the provisions 
hereinafter set forth with respect to prior redemption may be and become applicable hereto. The 
principal and interest of this bond are payable, without deduction for exchange, collection, or 
service charges, in lawful money of the United States of America. Principal is payable at the 
designated office of Old National Bank, Evansville, Indiana, or any successor (the "Paying 
Agent and Registrar") or by other transfer of funds acceptable to the Paying Agent and Registrar 
and such owner. All interest on this bond and principal payable prior to the final maturity date 
shall be payable by check or draft mailed to the record date registered owner hereof at the 
address shown on the registration records kept by the Paying Agent and Registrar or by other 
transfer of funds acceptable to the Paying Agent and Registrar and such owner. The record date 
shall be the fifteenth day of the month preceding each interest payment date. 

This Bond is one of an issue of Bonds of like tenor and effect, except as to denomination 
and maturity, numbered from RA-1 upward, inclusive, of the denomination of $5,000 or any 
integral multiple thereof originally aggregating dollars 
($ in principal amount, issued for the purpose of: paying the costs of (i) 
certain public improvements (collectively, the "Project"), and (ii) issuance of the Bonds, all 
pursuant to and in full compliance with the general laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky and 
particularly Chapter 66 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes, and pursuant to an ordinance duly 
adopted by the Board of Commissioners of the City on the 12th day of December, 2016 (the 
"Bond Ordinance") upon the affirmative vote of at least a majority of the members of its Board 
of Commissioners at a public meeting duly and regularly held, and after filing of notice of the 
issuance of the Bonds with the State Local Debt Officer of the Commonwealth of Kentucky 
required under Section 66.310 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes. 

This Bond and the issue of which it forms a part is a general obligation of the City and 
the full faith, credit and revenue of the City are pledged to the payments due hereunder. THIS 
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BOND IS CONTINUALLY SECURED BY THE FAITH, CREDIT AND REVENUE OF THE 
CITY. 

The Bonds mature on March 1 of the following years, in the respective principal amounts 
and bear per annum interest at the following rates: 

Amount Interest Rate 

The Bonds maturing on and after March 1, 2028 shall be subject to optional redemption 
prior to their maturity on any date on or after March 1, 2027, in whole or in part, in such order of 
maturity as the City may determine, and by lot within a maturity, at the election of the City upon 
45 days' written notice to the Paying Agent and Registrar (hereinafter defined) at a redemption 
price equal to the principal amount to be redeemed, plus accrued interest to the date of 
redemption. 

[Mandatory Sinking Fund provisions, if any, inserted here] 

At least thirty (30) days before the redemption date of any Bonds the Paying Agent and 
Registrar shall cause a notice of such redemption either in whole or in part signed by the Paying 
Agent and Registrar, to be mailed, first class, postage prepaid, to all registered owners of the 
Bonds to be redeemed in whole or in part at their addresses as they appear on the registration 
books kept by the Paying Agent and Registrar, but failure to mail any such notice shall not affect 
the validity of the proceedings for such redemption of Bonds for which such notice has been 
sent. Each such notice shall set forth the date fixed for redemption, the redemption price to be 
paid and, if less than all of the Bonds being payable by their terms on a single date then 
outstanding shall be called for redemption, the distinctive number or letters, if any, of such 
Bonds to be redeemed. 

On the date so designated for redemption, notice having been published in the manner 
under the conditions hereinabove provided and moneys for payment of the redemption price 
being held in the Bond Payment Fund by the Paying Agent and Registrar for the registered 
owners of the Bonds to be redeemed, the Bonds so called for redemption shall become and be 
due and payable at the redemption price provided for redemption of such Bonds on such date, 
interest on the Bonds so called for redemption shall cease to accrue, and the registered owners of 
such Bonds shall have no right in respect thereof except to receive payment of the redemption 
price thereof. 

No recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of or the interest on this Bond, 
or for any claim based hereon, against any officer, agent or employee, past, present or future, of 
the City, as such, either directly or through the City, whether by virtue of any constitutional 
provision, statute or rule of law, or by the enforcement of any assessment or penalty, or 
otherwise; all such liability of such officers, agents or employees is hereby renounced, waived 
and released as a condition of and as consideration for the issuance, execution and acceptance of 
this Bond. 
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It is hereby certified that all acts, conditions and things required to be done, to occur or be 
performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond, or in the creation of the obligations of 
which this Bond is evidence, have been done, have occurred and have been performed in regular 
and due form and manner as required by law; that the faith, credit and revenue of the City are 
hereby irrevocably pledged for the prompt payment of the principal hereof and interest hereon; 
that the repayment obligation represented by this Bond is not in excess of any constitutional or 
statutory limitation; and that due provision has been made for the levy and collection of a tax 
sufficient in amount to pay the interest on this Bond as it falls due and to provide for the 
redemption of this Bond at maturity or upon earlier redemption. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Bond to be signed either manually or 
by facsimile in its name by its Mayor and duly attested either manually or by facsimile by its 
City Clerk, as of the date set forth above. 

Attest: 

CITY OF HENDERSON, KENTUCKY 

Mayor 

City Clerk 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

This is to certify that this Bond is one of the Bonds described hereinabove. 

Dated: 

By: 

Old National Bank, Evansville, Indiana, 
Paying Agent and Registrar 

------------------
Authorized Signer 

CERTIFICATE 

It is hereby certified that the following is a correct and complete copy of the text of the 
legal opinion of Dinsmore & Shohl LLP, Attorneys, Covington, Kentucky, regarding the issue of 
which the within bond is one, the original of which opinion was manually executed, dated and 
issued as of the date of delivery of and payment for said issue and a copy of which is on file with 
the undersigned. 

City Clerk 
[FORM OF APPROVING OPINION] 
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ASSIGNMENT 
The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of this Bond, shall 

be construed as though they were written out in full according to applicable laws or regulations: 

as tenants in common UNIF GIFT MIN ACT Custodian ---TENCOM
TENENT- as tenants by the entireties (Cust) (Minor) 

under Uniform Gift to Minors 

JT TEN - as joint tenants with right 
of survivorship and not as 
tenants Act in common (State) 

Additional Abbreviations may also be used though not in the above list. 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto: 

(Please print or typewrite name and address of transferee) 

the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints: 
___________________ attorney to transfer the within Bond on the 
books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

Dated: 

In the presence of: 

NOTICE: The signature to this assignment must 
correspond with the name as it appears upon the 
face of the within Bond in every particular, 
without alteration or enlargement or any change 
whatever. 
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ANNEXB 

CITY OF HENDERSON, KENTUCKY 
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BOND, SERIES 2017B 

RB-

INTEREST RA TE 
DATE OF 

ORIGINAL ISSUE 

REGISTERED HOLDER: 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: 

MATURITY DATE CUSIP 

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: That the City of Henderson, Kentucky 
(the "City"), for value received, hereby acknowledges itself obligated to, and promises to pay to 
the registered holder identified above, or registered assigns, the principal sum identified above 
( or, if any part thereof has been paid, the balance thereof remaining unpaid), on the maturity date 
specified above, and to pay interest on said principal sum ( or, if any part thereof has been paid, 
the balance thereof remaining unpaid) from the date hereof, payable each May 1 and November 
1, commencing May 1, 2017, at the Interest Rate per annum identified above, calculated on the 
basis of a 360 day year with 30 day months, except as the provisions hereinafter set forth with 
respect to prior redemption may be and become applicable hereto. The principal and interest of 
this bond are payable, without deduction for exchange, collection, or service charges, in lawful 
money of the United States of America. Principal is payable at the designated office of Old 
National Bank, Evansville, Indiana, or any successor (the "Paying Agent and Registrar") or by 
other transfer of funds acceptable to the Paying Agent and Registrar and such owner. All interest 
on this bond and principal payable prior to the final maturity date shall be payable by check or 
draft mailed to the record date registered owner hereof at the address shown on the registration 
records kept by the Paying Agent and Registrar or by other transfer of funds acceptable to the 
Paying Agent and Registrar and such owner. The record date shall be the fifteenth day of the 
month preceding each interest payment date. 

This Bond is one of an issue of Bonds of like tenor and effect, except as to denomination 
and maturity, numbered from RB-1 upward, inclusive, of the denomination of $5,000 or any 
integral multiple thereof originally aggregating dollars 
($ in principal amount, issued for the purpose of: paying the costs of (i) 
currently refunding the City's outstanding Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2006A, the 
proceeds of which financed certain improvements to the City's combined and consolidated water 
and sewer system, and (ii) issuance of the Bonds, all pursuant to and in full compliance with the 
general laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky and particularly Chapter 66 of the Kentucky 
Revised Statutes, and pursuant to an ordinance duly adopted by the Board of Commissioners of 
the City on the 12th day of December, 2016 (the "Bond Ordinance") upon the affirmative vote of 
at least a majority of the members of its Board of Commissioners at a public meeting duly and 
regularly held, and after filing of notice of the issuance of the Bonds with the State Local Debt 
Officer of the Commonwealth of Kentucky required under Section 66.310 of the Kentucky 
Revised Statutes. 
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This Bond and the issue of which it forms a part is a general obligation of the City and 
the full faith, credit and revenue of the City are pledged to the payments due hereunder. THIS 
BOND IS CONTINUALLY SECURED BY THE FAITH, CREDIT AND REVENUE OF THE 
CITY. 

The Bonds mature on November 1 of the following years, in the respective principal 
amounts and bear per annum interest at the following rates: 

Amount Interest Rate 

The Bonds are not subject to optional redemption prior to their stated maturities. 

[Mandatory Sinking Fund provisions, if any, inserted here J 

[IF APPLICABLE] At least thirty (30) days before the mandatory sinking fund 
redemption date of any Bonds the Paying Agent and Registrar shall cause a notice of such 
redemption either in whole or in part signed by the Paying Agent and Registrar, to be mailed, 
first class, postage prepaid, to all registered owners of the Bonds to be redeemed in whole or in 
part at their addresses as they appear on the registration books kept by the Paying Agent and 
Registrar, but failure to mail any such notice shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for 
such redemption of Bonds for which such notice has been sent. Each such notice shall set forth 
the date fixed for redemption, the redemption price to be paid and, if less than all of the Bonds 
being payable by their terms on a single date then outstanding shall be called for redemption, the 
distinctive number or letters, if any, of such Bonds to be redeemed. 

On the date so designated for redemption, notice having been published in the manner 
under the conditions hereinabove provided and moneys for payment of the redemption price 
being held in the Bond Payment Fund by the Paying Agent and Registrar for the registered 
owners of the Bonds to be redeemed, the Bonds so called for redemption shall become and be 
due and payable at the redemption price provided for redemption of such Bonds on such date, 
interest on the Bonds so called for redemption shall cease to accrue, and the registered owners of 
such Bonds shall have no right in respect thereof except to receive payment of the redemption 
price thereof. 

No recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of or the interest on this Bond, 
or for any claim based hereon, against any officer, agent or employee, past, present or future, of 
the City, as such, either directly or through the City, whether by virtue of any constitutional 
provision, statute or rule of law, or by the enforcement of any assessment or penalty, or 
otherwise; all such liability of such officers, agents or employees is hereby renounced, waived 
and released as a condition of and as consideration for the issuance, execution and acceptance of 
this Bond. 

It is hereby certified that all acts, conditions and things required to be done, to occur or be 
performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond, or in the creation of the obligations of 
which this Bond is evidence, have been done, have occurred and have been performed in regular 
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and due form and manner as required by law; that the faith, credit and revenue of the City are 
hereby irrevocably pledged for the prompt payment of the principal hereof and interest hereon; 
that the repayment obligation represented by this Bond is not in excess of any constitutional or 
statutory limitation; and that due provision has been made for the levy and collection of a tax 
sufficient in amount to pay the interest on this Bond as it falls due and to provide for the 
redemption of this Bond at maturity or upon earlier redemption. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Bond to be signed either manually or 
by facsimile in its name by its Mayor and duly attested either manually or by facsimile by its 
City Clerk, as of the date set forth above. 

Attest: 

CITY OF HENDERSON, KENTUCKY 

Mayor 

City Clerk 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

This is to certify that this Bond is one of the Bonds described hereinabove. 

Dated: --------

By: 

Old National Bank, Evansville, Indiana, 
Paying Agent and Registrar 

------------------
Authorized Signer 

CERTIFICATE 

It is hereby certified that the following is a correct and complete copy of the text of the 
legal opinion of Dinsmore & Shohl LLP, Attorneys, Covington, Kentucky, regarding the issue of 
which the within bond is one, the original of which opinion was manually executed, dated and 
issued as of the date of delivery of and payment for said issue and a copy of which is on file with 
the undersigned. 

City Clerk 
[FORM OF APPROVING OPINION] 
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ASSIGNMENT 
The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of this Bond, shall 

be construed as though they were written out in full according to applicable laws or regulations: 

as tenants in common UNIF GIFT MIN ACT Custodian ---TENCOM
TENENT- as tenants by the entireties (Cust) (Minor) 

under Uniform Gift to Minors 

JT TEN - as joint tenants with right 
of survivorship and not as 
tenants Act in common (State) 

Additional Abbreviations may also be used though not in the above list. 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto: 

(Please print or typewrite name and address of transferee) 

the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints: 
___________________ attorney to transfer the within Bond on the 
books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

Dated: 

In the presence of: 

NOTICE: The signature to this assignment must 
correspond with the name as it appears upon the 
face of the within Bond in every particular, 
without alteration or enlargement or any change 
whatever. 
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ANNEXC 

CITY OF HENDERSON, KENTUCKY 
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BOND, SERIES 2017C 

RC-

INTEREST RATE 

REGISTERED HOLDER: 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: 

DATE OF 
ORIGINAL ISSUE MATURITY DATE 

$ ____ _ 

CUSIP 

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: That the City of Henderson, Kentucky 
(the "City"), for value received, hereby acknowledges itself obligated to, and promises to pay to 
the registered holder identified above, or registered assigns, the principal sum identified above 
( or, if any part thereof has been paid, the balance thereof remaining unpaid), on the maturity date 
specified above, and to pay interest on said principal sum ( or, if any part thereof has been paid, 
the balance thereof remaining unpaid) from the date hereof, payable each April 1 and October 1, 
commencing April 1, 2017, at the Interest Rate per annum identified above, calculated on the 
basis of a 360 day year with 30 day months, except as the provisions hereinafter set forth with 
respect to prior redemption may be and become applicable hereto. The principal and interest of 
this bond are payable, without deduction for exchange, collection, or service charges, in lawful 
money of the United States of America. Principal is payable at the designated office of Old 
National Bank, Evansville, Indiana, or any successor (the "Paying Agent and Registrar") or by 
other transfer of funds acceptable to the Paying Agent and Registrar and such owner. All interest 
on this bond and principal payable prior to the final maturity date shall be payable by check or 
draft mailed to the record date registered owner hereof at the address shown on the registration 
records kept by the Paying Agent and Registrar or by other transfer of funds acceptable to the 
Paying Agent and Registrar and such owner. The record date shall be the fifteenth day of the 
month preceding each interest payment date. 

This Bond is one of an issue of Bonds of like tenor and effect, except as to denomination 
and maturity, numbered from RC-1 upward, inclusive, of the denomination of $5,000 or any 
integral multiple thereof originally aggregating dollars 
($ in principal amount, issued for the purpose of: paying the costs of (i) 
currently refunding the City's outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Series 2007 maturing on or 
after April 1, 2019, the proceeds of which financed various public improvements in the City, and 
(ii) issuance of the Bonds, all pursuant to and in full compliance with the general laws of the 
Commonwealth of Kentucky and particularly Chapter 66 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes, and 
pursuant to an ordinance duly adopted by the Board of Commissioners of the City on the 12th 
day of December, 2016 (the "Bond Ordinance") upon the affirmative vote of at least a majority 
of the members of its Board of Commissioners at a public meeting duly and regularly held, and 
after filing of notice of the issuance of the Bonds with the State Local Debt Officer of the 
Commonwealth of Kentucky required under Section 66.310 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes. 
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This Bond and the issue of which it forms a part is a general obligation of the City and 
the full faith, credit and revenue of the City are pledged to the payments due hereunder. THIS 
BOND IS CONTINUALLY SECURED BY THE FAITH, CREDIT AND REVENUE OF THE 
CITY. 

The Bonds mature on April 1 of the following years, in the respective principal amounts 
and bear per annum interest at the following rates: 

Amount Interest Rate 

The Bonds are not subject to optional redemption prior to their stated maturities. 

[Mandatory Sinking Fund provisions, if any, inserted here] 

[IF APPLICABLE] At least thirty (30) days before the mandatory sinking fund 
redemption date of any Bonds the Paying Agent and Registrar shall cause a notice of such 
redemption either in whole or in part signed by the Paying Agent and Registrar, to be mailed, 
first class, postage prepaid, to all registered owners of the Bonds to be redeemed in whole or in 
part at their addresses as they appear on the registration books kept by the Paying Agent and 
Registrar, but failure to mail any such notice shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for 
such redemption of Bonds for which such notice has been sent. Each such notice shall set forth 
the date fixed for redemption, the redemption price to be paid and, if less than all of the Bonds 
being payable by their terms on a single date then outstanding shall be called for redemption, the 
distinctive number or letters, if any, of such Bonds to be redeemed. 

On the date so designated for redemption, notice having been published in the manner 
under the conditions hereinabove provided and moneys for payment of the redemption price 
being held in the Bond Payment Fund by the Paying Agent and Registrar for the registered 
owners of the Bonds to be redeemed, the Bonds so called for redemption shall become and be 
due and payable at the redemption price provided for redemption of such Bonds on such date, 
interest on the Bonds so called for redemption shall cease to accrue, and the registered owners of 
such Bonds shall have no right in respect thereof except to receive payment of the redemption 
price thereof. 

No recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of or the interest on this Bond, 
or for any claim based hereon, against any officer, agent or employee, past, present or future, of 
the City, as such, either directly or through the City, whether by virtue of any constitutional 
provision, statute or rule of law, or by the enforcement of any assessment or penalty, or 
otherwise; all such liability of such officers, agents or employees is hereby renounced, waived 
and released as a condition of and as consideration for the issuance, execution and acceptance of 
this Bond. 

It is hereby certified that all acts, conditions and things required to be done, to occur or be 
performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond, or in the creation of the obligations of 
which this Bond is evidence, have been done, have occurred and have been performed in regular 
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and due form and manner as required by law; that the faith, credit and revenue of the City are 
hereby irrevocably pledged for the prompt payment of the principal hereof and interest hereon; 
that the repayment obligation represented by this Bond is not in excess of any constitutional or 
statutory limitation; and that due provision has been made for the levy and collection of a tax 
sufficient in amount to pay the interest on this Bond as it falls due and to provide for the 
redemption of this Bond at maturity or upon earlier redemption. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Bond to be signed either manually or 
by facsimile in its name by its Mayor and duly attested either manually or by facsimile by its 
City Clerk, as of the date set forth above. 

Attest: 

CITY OF HENDERSON, KENTUCKY 

Mayor 

City Clerk 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

This is to certify that this Bond is one of the Bonds described hereinabove. 

Dated: 

By: 

Old National Bank, Evansville, Indiana, 
Paying Agent and Registrar 

------------------
Authorized Signer 

CERTIFICATE 

It is hereby certified that the following is a correct and complete copy of the text of the 
legal opinion of Dinsmore & Shohl LLP, Attorneys, Covington, Kentucky, regarding the issue of 
which the within bond is one, the original of which opinion was manually executed, dated and 
issued as of the date of delivery of and payment for said issue and a copy of which is on file with 
the undersigned. 

City Clerk 
[FORM OF APPROVING OPINION] 
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ASSIGNMENT 
The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of this Bond, shall 

be construed as though they were written out in full according to applicable laws or regulations: 

as tenants in common UNIF GIFT MIN ACT Custodian ---TENCOM
TENENT- as tenants by the entireties (Cust) (Minor) 

under Uniform Gift to Minors 

JT TEN - as joint tenants with right 
of survivorship and not as 
tenants Act in common (State) 

Additional Abbreviations may also be used though not in the above list. 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto: 

(Please print or typewrite name and address of transferee) 

the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints: 
___________________ attorney to transfer the within Bond on the 
books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

Dated: 

In the presence of: 

NOTICE: The signature to this assignment must 
correspond with the name as it appears upon the 
face of the within Bond in every particular, 
without alteration or enlargement or any change 
whatever. 

10805325v4 
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December 2, 2016 

City Commission Memorandum 
16-258 

TO: Mayor Steve Austin and the Board of Commissioners 

FROM: Russell R. Sights, City Manager 1& 
SUBJECT: Establishing Article IV, Mobile Food Units, Sections 17-63 Through 17-

71, of Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances of the 
City of Henderson 

An item for the agenda of Tuesday, December 6, 2016, is first reading of an 
ordinance regulating food trucks. 

The proposed food truck ordinance is being presented to you based upon direction 
from the Board of Commissioners at the November 15, 2016 work session. The attached 
Legal Department Memorandum details the locations and times that Licensed Food 
Truck Vendors may operate on City properties. 

Your approval of the attached ordinance is requested. 

c: Dawn Kelsey 



LEGAL DEPARTMENT

MEMORANDUM 16-09

To: Russell Sights, City Manager
Buzzy Newrnan, Asst. City Manager
Trace Stevens, Parks Director

John Stroud, Acting Codes Administrator
Brian Williams, Public Works Director

From: Dawn S. Kelsey, City Attorney

Dated: November 30, 2016

Subject: Mobile Food Truck Ordinance

Pursuant to direction from the Board of Commissioners at the November 1 5'h Work Session, the
changes in the times for the Food Tmck Vendors and the 2 additional locations for operation for
the Food Truck Vendors have been inserted into the proposed Ordinance. The locations and
times that Licensed Food Truck Vendors may operate on City property are stated below:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

Henderson Depot Welcome Center (located adjacent to Water
Street): Mobile Food Units may use the designated mobile food
unit parking spots in the Henderson County Depot on Monday,
Wednesday, Thursday, Fridays, Saturday and Sunday from 6:30
a.m. to 7:00 p.m. from the day after Labor Day through the
Thursday before Memorial Day weekend and from 6:30 a.m. to
11:00 p.m. between Friday of Memorial Day weekend through
Labor Day.
East End Park - Helm Street in the designated mobile food unit
parking spots with the Food Truck conducting business towards
the East End Park and not toward the street any day of the week
during the hours of 11:00 a.m. to dusk.
Atkinson Park in the gravel pafking loop next to the sand
volleyball courts on any day of the week from 11:00 a.m. to dusk.
John F. Kennedy Community Center: Mobile Food Units may use
the lower parking lot off of Alves Street any day of the week
during the hours of 11 :OO a.m. to 11:00 p.m.
North side of Third between Water Street and North Main Street in
the designated mobile food unit parking spots any day of the week
from 6:30 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. from the day after Labor Day through



Thursday before Memorial Day weekend and from 6:30 a.m. to 
11 :00 p.m. between Friday of Memorial Day weekend through 
Labor Day. 

Mobile Food Unit Vendors may not park in the above referenced areas during any 
permitted special events in those areas unless authorized by the holder of the special 
event permit. 

A Mobile Food Unit Vendor must have auto liability in the minimum state coverage and 
$300,000 general liability insurance including products liability insurance policy from an 
insurance company with an A rating as the minimum amount of insurance to be carried 
on each licensed vehicle with the City of Henderson named as an additional insured. 

Annual Permit fee is fifty dollars ($50) and each additional unit is twenty-five dollars ($25). 

cc: Mayor Steve Austin 



ORDINANCE NO. ----

ORDINANCE RELATING TO MOBILE FOOD UNITS 

SUMMARY: ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING ARTICLE IV, MOBILE FOOD UNITS, 
SECTIONS 17-63 THRU 17-71, OF CHAPTER 17,PARKSANDRECREATION, OFTHECODE 
OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF HENDERSON 

BE IT ORDAINED, by the City of Henderson that due to the popularity of the mobile 
food truck industry it has become necessary to establish Article IV, Mobile Food Units, Sections 17-
63 thru 17-71, of Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the City's Code of Ordinances as follows: 

Article IV. Mobile Food Units: 

17-63. Definitions. 

(a) Mobile Food Unit: Food establishment which is on wheels, mobile 
and which is self propelled as a licensed vehicle including the sale of both prepared 
and pre-packaged foods (examples are a food truck and ice cream truck). 

(b) Mobile Food Unit Vendor: An itinerant merchant who conducts 
business from a mobile food unit. 

17-64. Mobile Food Vending License 

A. Mobile Food Unit Vendor who operates on City of Henderson property 
shall be subject to the licensing and regulatory requirements under Chapter 4 of the 
Henderson Code of Ordinances and all other applicable ordinances, including zoning 
ordinances. Mobile Food Unit Vendors who do not operate on City of Henderson 
property, but operate as Temporary Sales under Appendix A Zoning Ordinance 
Section 4.33 of the City of Henderson Code of Ordinances is not required to obtain a 
Mobile Food Vending License, but will have to comply with the requirements with 
the applicable sections of the Zoning Ordinance. 

B. The licensing of the vendor shall be on a per unit (food truck/vehicle) 
basis with each different Mobile Food Unit Vendor requiring a separate license for 
each Mobile Food Unit. All applications for licenses shall be accompanied with the 
required certificate of insurance, proof of health department approval, and required 
fee of fifty dollars ($50.00). Any person operating more than one (1) mobile food unit 
shall pay an additional twenty-five dollars ($25.00) fee for each additional unit. This 
fee will not be prorated and will be in effect for the same period of time as the license 
for the primary mobile food unit. 
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C. Mobile Food Vending License: 
(1) Licenses are valid for 12 months unless otherwise invalidated, 

revoked or terminated prior to the end of the 12 month term. Mobile Food Unit 
Vendors must reapply (including payment of all applicable fees) each year. 

(2) It shall be unlawful for any person to intentionally provide 
false information or to intentionally omit requested information on an application for 
any license pertaining to Mobile Food Unit Vendors. 

(3) As a condition of issuance of any license, the Mobile Food 
Unit Vendor agrees to indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the City of Henderson 
and its officials, officers, employees, representatives, and agents against liability 
and/or loss arising from activities connected with and/or undertaken pursuant to the 
license. The City of Henderson shall not be liable for any business loss, property loss, 
or other damage that may result from use of the license, or suspension or revocation 
of the license, or the discontinuance of the practice of permitting such activity, and no 
such vendor shall maintain any claim or action against the City of Henderson and/or 
its officials, officers, employees, or agents on account of any suspension or 
revocation or discontinuance. 

(4) Any license issued to a Mobile Food Unit Vendor shall be 
valid for the time period specified thereon. Re-application shall be required upon 
expiration of said license if the person wishes to continue such activity. 

(5) Every Mobile Food Unit Vendor to whom a license is issued 
shall, at all times while engaged in that business, have the applicable license in his or 
her possession, prominently displayed for public viewing, and shall produce the same 
at the request of any City of Henderson official or at the request of any individual to 
whom the vendor is exhibiting his or her food or attempting to sell same. 

(6) Each Mobile Food Unit Vendor must obtain all necessary 
licenses and permissions and comply with all requirements imposed by the health 
department and/or other regulatory agencies. 

D. Nothing contained in this section shall relieve a Mobile Food Unit 
Vendor from obtaining its applicable merchant license(s) and any other permits 
required by state agencies or the local health department. 

17-65. Permitted Area and Times 

A. Properly Licensed Mobile Food Units may park on the following City 
property areas during the designated times: 

1) Henderson Depot Welcome Center (located adjacent to Water Street): 
Mobile Food Units may use the designated mobile food unit parking 
spots in the Henderson County Depot on Monday, Wednesday, 
Thursday, Fridays, Saturday and Sunday from 6:30 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 
from the day after Labor Day through the Thursday before Memorial 
Day weekend and from 6:30 a.m. to 11 :00 p.m. between Friday of 
Memorial Day weekend through Labor Day. 
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2) East End Park - Helm Street in the designated mobile food unit 
parking spots with the Food Truck conducting business towards the 
East End Park and not toward the street any day of the week during 
the hours of 11 :00 a.m. to dusk. 

3) Atkinson Park in the gravel parking loop next to the sand volleyball 
courts on any day of the week from 11 :00 a.m. to dusk. 

4) John F. Kennedy Community Center: Mobile Food Units may use the 
lower parking lot off of Alves Street any day of the week during the 
hours of 11 :00 a.m. to 11 :00 p.m. 

5) North side of Third between Water Street and North Main Street in 
the designated mobile food unit parking spots any day of the week 
from 6:30 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. from the day after Labor Day through 
Thursday before Memorial Day weekend and from 6:30 a.m. to 11 :00 
p.m. between Friday of Memorial Day weekend through Labor Day 

B. Mobile Food Unit Vendors may not park in the above referenced areas 
during any permitted special events in those areas unless authorized by the holder of 
the special event permit. [See Ord. 25-4(g)] 

C. Mobile Food Units may also be allowed on private property in the 
City of Henderson if they comply with Appendix A Zoning Ordinance Section 4.33 
of the City of Henderson Code of Ordinances. 

17-66. Regulation of Mobile Food Unit Vendors 

All Mobile Food Unit Vendors must comply with the following: 
(a) The requirements of all applicable ordinances and regulations. 
(b) Shall at all times operate in a manner that ensures the safety of 

patrons, pedestrians and the public. 
(c) Shall not park or operate in a manner which prohibits others from 

parking in otherwise available spaces or areas. 
(d) Shall obtain any necessary permits and comply with the requirements 

of any applicable rules and regulations of the health department. 
( e) Shall not locate or operate within fifteen (15) feet of any driveway or 

other main entrance to a building without the express written permission of the 
affected property owner or her or his authorized agent. 

(f) Shall provide, in a prominent location, trash and recycling container(s) 
sufficient in size to collect all waste and recyclables generated by customers and staff 
of the vendor. All trash and debris related to the operation shall be collected by the 
vendor throughout the duration of their vending and deposited in their own trash or 
recycling container(s) and removed from the site by the vendor. Such waste shall not 
be placed in public trash receptacles. The vendor shall be responsible for any litter or 
debris located within a ten (10) feet radius of their unit, including sidewalks in the 
immediate vicinity. 
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(g) Shall not, during any City of Henderson recognized special event, 
locate, operate or vend inside the event footprint without the express written 
permission of the event organizer. 

(h) Shall only use lighting which is permanently or semi-permanently 
affixed to its unit and which does not cause any glare that could be considered a 
public hazard, nuisance or distraction to vehicular movement, neighboring business 
operations or residential uses. No flashing or strobe lighting shall be permitted. 

(i) Shall not use any electrical outlet located within the public right-of-
way or on public property, unless specifically authorized by the City of Henderson or, 
if required, the utility company. A vendor shall not create any tripping or other hazard 
related to its use of electricity. 

(j) Shall not block access to or use of, any public bench or any public 
utility pole or set up any chairs or tables on the public right-of-way. 

(k) Shall not in any manner damage public property or the public right-of-
way. Examples, include, but are not necessarily limited to, using stakes, rods or any 
method of support that is required to be drilled, driven or otherwise fixed in asphalt 
pavement, curbs, sidewalks or buildings. The vendor shall be solely responsible for 
any such damage. 

(I) Shall not locate or operate within an area closed or not accessible due 
to an emergency. 

(m) Must comply with all state and federal sales tax. 

17-67. Insurance 

A Mobile Food Unit Vendor must have auto liability in the minimum state coverage 
and $300,000 general liability insurance including products liability insurance policy 
from an insurance company with an A rating as the minimum amount of insurance to 
be carried on each licensed vehicle with the City of Henderson named as an 
additional insured. 

17-68. Receipts. 

A Mobile Food Unit Vendor shall, on request by the customer, render to the 
customer, a receipt for the amount charged, either by a mechanically printed receipt 
or by a specially prepared receipt on which shall be the name of the license holder of 
the Mobile Food Vending Unit, all charges, and the date of transaction. 

17-69. Clean and Safe Conditions 

(a) Every Mobile Food Unit shall ensure that the interior, including the 
windows, shall be maintained in a clean and safe condition, free of grease, dirt, 
debris, or other trash. 

(b) The exterior of the vehicle shall also be maintained in a clean, undamaged 
condition and present a favorable appearance, including: 
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( 1) The body of the vehicle; 
(2) The paint; 
(3) All glass; 
(4) Hubcaps (if installed); 
(5) Head and tail lights; and 
(6) Grill and bumpers. 

(c) No person shall smoke within a Mobile Food Unit. 

17-70. Records; Reports 

(a) Every Mobile Food Unit Vendor shall keep accurate records ofreceipts 
from operations, and other expenses, capital expenditures, and other such operating 
information as may be required to comply with reporting income and expenses under 
the applicable provisions of the City of Henderson Code of Ordinance. Every Mobile 
Food Unit Vendor shall maintain the records containing such information and other 
dates required by this chapter at a place readily accessible for examination by the City 
Manager or his or her designee. 

(b) All accidents arising from or in connection with the operation of Mobile 
Food Unit Vendor which result in death or injury to any person, or in damage to any 
vehicle, or to any property in an amount exceeding the sum of three hundred dollars 
($300.00) shall be reported by the license holder or driver within five (5) days from 
the time of occurrence to the Chief of Police or his or her designee. 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed and 

superseded to the extent of such conflict. 

This ordinance shall become effective upon its legal adoption. 

On first reading of the foregoing ordinance, it was moved by Commissioner 
_____________ , seconded by Commissioner ___________ , that 
the ordinance be adopted on its first reading. On roll call the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston: Commissioner Mills: -----
Commissioner Hite: Mayor Austin: 
Commissioner Royster: 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted on first reading and 
ordered that it be presented for second reading at a meeting of the Board of Commissioners. 

On second reading of the ordinance, it was moved by Commissioner 

------------, seconded by Commissioner , that the 
ordinance be adopted. 
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WHEREUPON, the vote was called. On roll call the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston: Commissioner Mills: ----
Commissioner Hite: Mayor Austin: 
Commissioner Royster: 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted, affixed his signature and 
the date and ordered that it be recorded. 

ATTEST: 

Maree Collins, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
LEGALITY THIS 3tJ DAY OF 
NOVEMBER, 2016. 

By: 

Steve Austin, Mayor 

Date: 
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December 2, 2016 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

City Commission Memorandum 
16-259 

Mayor Steve Austin and the Board of Commissioners 

Russell R. Sights, City Manager 

Adoption of Consumer Price Index Rate Adjustment 

An item for the agenda of Tuesday, December 6, 2016 is first reading of an 
ordinance approving and adopting schedules of electric rates and services for 
consumption on and after January 1, 2017. On May 12, 2015, the City Commission 
approved and adopted a new rate schedule that included an annual Consumer Price Index 
(CPI). The CPI rate set by the U.S. Department of Labor is 1.6% and the HMP&L Board 
approved this increase at their recent Board meeting. 

Electric rates offered by HMP&L will remain one of the lowest in Kentucky 
while continuing to provide reliable electric service to its customers. The last electric 
rate increase was effective in 2015. 

Mr. Gary Quick, General Manager, Henderson Municipal Power and Light further 
details the Consumer Price Index Rate Escalation Schedule in the attached memorandum. 

Your approval of the attached ordinance is requested. 

c: Gary Quick 
Dawn Kelsey 
Robert Gunter 
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MEMORANDUM

To: Russell Sights, City Manager
Henderson City Commission

From: Gary Quick, General Manager, Henderson Municipal Power & Light

Dated: November 30, 2016

Subject: Consumer Price Index Rate Escalation Schedule

On the 1 2fh day of May, 2015, the Henderson City Commission approved and adopted a Schedule
of Electric Rates and Services for the Henderson Municipal Power & Light to its customers and
consumers. This Schedule of Electric Rates and Services included a consumer price escalation
schedule that would adjust all rate schedules for all customer classifications and service fees,
based on the percentage change of the consumer price index as established by the United States
Department of Labor. This CPI adjustment was determined by comparing the percentage
difference between the CPI in effect in the month of October of the previous year to the CPI in
effect for the month of October in the current year. The percentage difference between these
two CPJ's would be the percentage price adjustment rate used by HMP&L for the upcoming
calendar year.

The percentage change in the CPI calculated by the Department of Labor amounted to a 1 .6%
adjustment to be applied to all rate schedules and fee services for the upcoming calendar year.

KRS 96.535 provides that the rates to be charged for services for utilities shall be fixed and
revised from time to time by the board appointed to operate the utility, by and with the approval
of the legislative body of the city.

HMP&L is presenting to the Commission for their approval the CPI percentage rate change, in
the amount of l .6%, to be applied to all rates, schedules and service fees for the calendar year
2017.

Respectfully submitted,

b
9=,.Gary Quick, G}neral Manager

Henderson Mu&nicipal Power and Light

IOOFIFTHSTREET P.0.BOX8 HENDERSON,KENTUCKY42419-0008 (270)826-2726 FAX(270)826-9650



ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE CONSUMER PRICE INDEX RATE 
ADJUSTMENT 

SUMMARY: 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND ADOPTING A SCHEDULE OF 
ELECTRIC RATES AND SERVICES FOR HENDERSON MUNICIPAL 
POWER & LIGHT TO ITS CUSTOMERS AND CONSUMERS TO 
BECOME EFFECTIVE FOR ALL SERVICES BILLED ON OR AFTER 
JANUARY 1, 2017; INCREASING RATES FOR SERVICES AND 
FEES BY AN AMOUNT EQUAL TO 1.6%, REPRESENTING THE 
CONSUMER PRICE INDEX AS ESTABLISHED BY THE U.S. 
BUREAU OF LABOR STATISTICS. 

WHEREAS, Chapter 23, ARTICLE V, Section 23-97 of the Henderson City Code of 
Ordinances provides that all utility rates and charges be determined from time to time by the City 
Board of Commissioners and kept on file in the City Clerk's office; and 

WHEREAS, the City's current electric rates and service fees are set forth in tables made 
a part of Ordinance No. 9-15; and 

WHEREAS, the Schedule of Electric Rates and Services was revised by the City of 
Henderson Utility Commission following a public hearing held on March 30, 2015, to include a 
recommendation that the City of Henderson adopt a new Consumer Price Index Escalation Rate 
Schedule; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Henderson by and through the City Board of Commissioners 
adopted said recommendation by Ordinance No. 9-15 and adopted a Consumer Price Index 
(CPI) Escalation Rate Schedule; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City of Henderson as follows: 

1. That the rates and services described in the schedule of electric rates and services, 
as established and adopted by the City of Henderson in Ordinance No. 9-15, 
effective date May 12, 2015, are hereby increased 1.6% on all rate schedules, fees 
and minimums for all customer classifications. 

2. That the revised Schedule of Electric Rates and Services shall become effective 
on all services provided to the customers and consumers of Henderson Municipal 
Power & Light by the City of Henderson on and after January 1, 2017. 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed and 
superseded to the extent of such conflict. 

This ordinance shall become effective upon its legal adoption. 
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On first reading of the foregoing ordinance, it was moved by Commissioner
, seconded by Commissioner , that the ordinance be

adopted on its first reading.

On roll call the vote stood:

Commissioner Johnston

Commissioner Hite

Commissioner Mills

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted on first reading and
ordered that it be presented for a second reading at a meeting of the Board of Commissioners.

On second reading of the ordinance, it was moved by Commissioner
, seconded by Commissioner , that the ordinance be

adopted.

WHEREUPON, the vote was called. On roll call the vote stood:

Commissioner Johnston Commissioner Royster
Commissioner Hite Mayor Austin:
Commissioner Mills

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the ordinance adopted, affixed his signature and
the date and ordered that it be recorded.

Commissioner Royster
Mayor Austin:

Steve Austin, Mayor
Date:

ATTEST:

Maree Collins, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND

LEGALITY THIS ?L DAY OF
DECEMBER, 2016

? ?i
Dawn S. Kelsey
City Attorney
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Adopted: July 1, 2015
Page 1 of 1

City of Henderson, Kentucky
Henderson Municipal Power & Light

Consumer Price Index (CPI) Escalation Schedule
Schedule CPI

Applicability - For all Customer Classifications, Rate Schedules, and Service Fees including
Private Rental Lighting and Public Street Lighting

(1) This CPI Escalation Schedule will adjust all Rate Schedules for all Customer
Classifications and all service fees annually on January 1, beginning January 1, 2017,
based on the increase of the Consumer Price Index (CPI - U). Price adjustments will be
made in accordance with the percentage changes in the US Department of Labor
Consumer Price Index (CPI-U) for All Urban Consumers, All Items, US City Average.

(2) The Index Base Period will be 1982-84 = 100.

(3) The annual rate adjustment will be determined by comparing the percentage difference
between the CPI in effect for the month of October of the previous year to the CPI in
effect for the month of October of the current year. For example, on January 1, 2017, all
rate schedules and service fees will be increased by the percentage difference between the
CPI in effect for October 2015 coi'npared to the CPI in affect for October 2016. The
percentage difference between those two CRIs will be the percentage price adjustment
rate used by HMP&L for the 2017 calendar year.

(4) Example:

If comparing the difference between October 2013 (233.546) and October 2012
(231.317), the following calculation would be performed:

CPI for current period
Less CPI for previous period

Equals index point change
Divided by previous period CPI

Equals
Result multiplied by 100

Equals percent change

233.546

231.317

2.229

231.317

0.0096

0.0096 x 100

0.96%

(October 2013)
(October 2012)

(October 2012)

A percentage rate change of 0.96% would be applied to all rate schedules and service fees
for calendar year 2014.

(5) If any major changes or CPI revisions arise, HMP&L will adjust the rates and service
fees by the most accurate CPI rate available during the reference period as specified
above. Additionally, if the CPI percentage rate change decreases, the rates and service
fees will be adjusted by a 0% rate change, and if the percentage rate change increases the
rate adjustment percentages are not to exceed 5%.

Approved By: Henderson Utility Commission (March 30, 2015)
Approved By: Henderson City Commission

ElYectiye: For all customer billings
issued (111 and after January 1, 2017.



CPI for current period 

Less CPI for previous period 

Equals index point change 

Divided by previous period CPI 

Equals index point change 

Result multiplied by 100 

Equals percent change 

CPI Adjustment Calculation 

January 1, 2017 Rate Increase 

241.729 

237.838 

3.891 

237.838 

0.01636 

100 

1.6 % 

A percentage rate change of 1.6% will be applied to all rate schedules and service fees for calendar year 2017 



Table 1. Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U): u.s. city average, by expenditure category,
October 2016
[1982-84=100, unless otherwise noted]

l percent

qep.
2016-

Oc(.
:zoie

Expenditure category

All i}ems.............................................

Food.

Food at home.

Cereals and bakery produc}s.
Meats, poul!ry, fish, and eggs.
Dairy and related produc(s.
Frui!s and vege}ables.
Nonalcoholic beverages and beverage

materials...................

Other food at home.

Food away from home'

too.ooo

13.731

7.955

1071

1.776

0.81 3

i .345

0.952

1 .997

5.777

237.838

249.052

243.779

275.753

281 .568

221.874

297.931

169.045

210.836

258.383

24-1.428

247.917

238.120

272.089

248.642

218.693

293.423

166.573

209.426

264.102

241.729

248.073

238.145

272.502

244.770

218.183

295.816

166.793

208.985

264.459

1.6

-0.4

.2.3

-1.2

-B.4

-1 .7

-0.8

-1.3

-0.8

2.4

o.q

0.1

0.0

0.2

-0.8

0.7

0.7

o.z

-0.2

0.1

0.2

o.o

-0.2

o.o

-0.4

o.o

o.o

-0.1

-0.2

0.2

0.3

o.o

-o.i

0.1

-0.2

0.1

-o..i

-0.4

0.1

0.2

0.4

o.o

-0.2

o.o

-0.7

o.s

0.2

-0.4

-o.i

o.i

Energy.
Energy commodities

Fuel oil'.

Mo(or fuel

Gasoline (all }ypes).
Energy services?.

Elec}ricitya.
Utility (piped) gas service2.

All items Iess food and energy
Commodities Iess food and energy

commodi(ies.

Apparel.
New vehicles.

Used cars and lrucks.

Medical care commodities

Alcoholic beverages.
Tobacco and smokIng products

Servi>s Iess energy services
8helier.

Rem of ptirnary residence2.
Owners' equiya21enl ren} o};quiya31

ces .res{deni

Medlcal ur0 services.

Physiclans' senAces'.
Hospl!al servlces' a.

Transportation services.
Motor vehir,Ie main}enance and

repair'
Motor vehide insurance.

Airline rare.

7.132

3.395

0.092

3.221

3.173

3.737

2.949

0.788

79.137

19.353

3.177

3.658

2.058

1.885

0.949

o.ase

59.784

33.403

7.777

24.349

6.669

1.700

2.234

5.836

1.154

2.418

0.629

i ep.soi

203.338

229.191

'i gg.ggs

i99.077

194.713

205.604

159.422

243.985

146.504

129.446

146.516

145.821

355.894

240.656

940.901

303.694

281 .499

289.428

288.700

480.245

366.852

295.282

291 .969

271 .804

465.401

285.837

195.852

197.603

212.Oi9

194.660

193.817

202.941

214.381

165.881

248.731

145.562

128.429

146.499

142.482

374.'l42

242.614

970.921

3i2.205

290.445

298.9Ei2

297.636

499.483

382.134

306.404

298.129

275.3:31

492.119

267.457

i94.786

201.412

224.453

198212

197.357

197.279

208.397

167.049

249.218

145.701

130.328

146.896

139.914

373.792

243.874

973.535

312.919

291.407

300.400

298.645

499.7i7

381 .406

307.433

299.622

275.845

496.858

270.922

0.1

-0-9

-2.1

-o.g

-0.9

1.3

0.4

4.8

2.1

-o.s

0.7

o.s

-4.1

5.0

1.3

3.5

3.0

3.5

3.8

3.4

4.1

4.0

4.1

2.6

1.4

6-7

-5.2

-0.5

1.9

s.g

1.8

1.8

.2.8

-3.7

0.7

0.2

o.i

1.5

0.3

-1 .8

-o.'?

0.4

o.s

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.3

o.o

-0.2

0.3

0.5

o.t

0.9

1.3

o.o

-o.g

-2.5

-0.9

-0.9

0.8

o.s

2.1

0.3

0.1

0.2

0.0

-0.6

1.4

o.o

0.7

o.s

0.3

0.3

0.3

1.0

0.7

1.7

0.1

0.0

o.s

-o.q

2.9

5.5

2.4

5.7

5.8

0.7

0.7

0.8

0.1

-0.1

-0.7

-0.1

-0.3

0.6

0.3

0.4

0.2

0.4

0.3

0.4

o.o

o.o

0.0

0.0

-0.2

0.4

0.4

3.5

6.7

5.9

8.9

7.0

0.5

0.4

o.g

0.1

o.i

0.3

0.2

-o.i

0.1

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.0

-o.t

0.2

-0.2

o.i

0.2

-2.2

:Not seasonally adjusted.
2 Thip index series was calculated using a Laspeyres es}ima}or. All other item stratum index series were calculated using a geome(ric msans

estimator.

3 Indexes on a December 1982=100 base.
4 Indexes on a December 1 996=100 base.
NOTE: Index applies to a mon}h as a whole, not }o any specific date.

Relative

impor-
tance

Sep.
2016
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Sep.
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Od.

2016
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Sep.
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(k,t.
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2016-

Aug.
zote

Aug.
2016-

Sep.
2016



Table 1. Consumer Prlce Index for All urban Consumers (CPI-U): u.s. city average, by expendIture category and commodity mnd
service group

(1 982-84=l 00, unless otherwise noled)

l{em and group
jualed
Iotrs-

W
l C)c!.

Expendmire category

All i}ems .

All i}ems (1967=100)

Food and beverages. ...................,.
Food ..................

Food a( home ......................

Cereals and 5akery products ........................

Dairy and rela}ed prodi
Meats, pouRry, lish, and

Fruils and vege(ables

id egqs ......

Nonalcoholic-beverages and beverage materials ................
0}her food at home -...................

Sugar and sweets ' ................................'....'.'.'.'.-.'.'.-.'.'.-.-.-..-.-.'.-.-'.-.-..'.?.
Fats and oils ..................-...-------
0!herfoods ......

Other miscellaneous loods ' 2 ...
Food away from home '
O!her food away from home ' 2 .......

Ma:iholicbeverages ..............................................?................-

Housing
Shelter

Rem of pNmary resideria= 3
Lodging'away jrom home 2
Owneirr; equ!valen( reri! ol resmences 3 4 ...-..........-....-.........

Tenantsa an?d household
Ownerl equivalent renl} of prirriary i

? 1insurance

residencs 3 '
2

Fuels and utilRies

Household energy
Fuel oil and dier fueis ' ..................
Eneigy servIces 3

Wa}er and sewer and trash collec}iori sersAces 2 ...................
Household furnishings and opera!ions .....................................,

Household opem!ions ' 2

Appeirel
Men's and boyr apparel
Women's and gidd 'apparel ......................................................
InfanW and kxldlerr;'apparel ................................................-.
Footwear

Transportation ................................................
Priva}e transporlalion ...............,..

New and used motor vehides 2
New vehides
Used cars and trucks

Molor fuel

Gasoline (all %pes) .......
MoBr vehide parts and equipment ' ..,..................................
Molor vehlde main!enance arid repair ' ............

Public bnsporla!Ion

Mediml cate

Msdiail care cornmodilies
Mediml mre services

Professional services

See footnotes at end ol teble.

---=-------l

0.2

.2

.1

.1

.8

-.5

-.2

.5

.2

.1

-.7

1.0

.2

.si

.2

.0

.6

.2

.3

.3

.8

.2

.2

.0

.2

.2

.8

.2

.o

-.1

.0

-.8

-1.0

-.7

-2.2

-.4

.i

.o

-.2

-.2

-.3

.4

.4

?.9

.3

1.3

.7

.2

.8

.0
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%lalive

importance,
December

2014

Unadjusled
indexes

unadjusted
percen( dange to
Oc'l 2016 ftom-

Sep.
2016

Ocl.

2015

OCt.
2014

Sep.
2015

July (o
Aug.

Aug. lo
Sep.

ioo.ooo

15.272

14.257

B.427

1.138

2.014

j398

1.379

.955

2.043

.299

.245

1.499

.444

s.eso

.319

1.015

42.173

32.711

7.159

.839

24.339

22.918

.375

5.273

4.05al

.236

3.815

1.222

4-189

.848

3.343

.B34

1.439

.135

.725

15.289

14.167

5.720

3.551

t.sg*

3.979

3.904

.436

1168

1.122

7.716

l.Tl2

5.944

3.032

237.945

712.777

248.090

248.632

243.432

273.530

263.227

222.310

295.394
168.054
210.659
218.193
228.236
224.787
131.355
257.B30
180.822
239.287

239.851
280.B14
28B.308

154.657

287.916

287.871
148.523

232.417

1%.580

236.803

201.575

216.173

i22.408

188.092

128.540

120.686

114.315

126.132

139.027

197.593

192.689

tooyoz

*wimo

148.520

208.121
207.239

144.496
27tll9

259.430

447.2B9

355.746

476.466

3B2.S72

237.838

712.458

248.575

249.052

243.779

275.753

281588

221.874
297.931

169.045

210.836

216.897

230.541

224.702

132.531

258.383

180.B84

240.656

239.395
281499

289.428

152.228

288.700

288.658

146.570

226.784

190.289

238.466

194.'n3

216.380

122.422

188.188

129.448

i21.393

115.913

123.788

139.431

i95.85B

190.464

100.134

146.518

145.821

199.996

199.077

143.209

271804

266.338

450.065

355.894

480.245

362.335

0.2 0.0

1.6 .2

i.e .2

.7 .1
1.6 .8

.7 -.6

-3.0 -.2

.1 .9

1.0 .8

2.0 .0

3.5 -.7

-1.3 1.0
2.3 .0

1.8 .9

2.9 .2

3.8 .0

'1.1 .8

2.1 -.1

3.2 .2

3.7 .4

2.1 -1.8

3.1 .3

3.1 .3

2-1 -0

-2.3 -2.4

-4.3 -3.2
-25.4 .8

-2.9 -3.4

4.2 .1

-.s .o

2.4 .0

-1.9 .7

-.8 .6

-3.5 t4
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December 2, 2016 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

City Commission Memorandum 
16-260 

Mayor Steve Austin and the Board of Commissioners 

Russell R. Sights, City Manager /Jd 
• 

Advertisement for Bid and Distribution of Preliminary Official 
Statement for Purchase of General Obligation Bonds, Series 
2017 A, General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017B, and 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017C 

The accompanying resolution authorizes the approval for the advertisement for 
bid and distribution of a Preliminary Official Statement for the purchase of City of 
Henderson General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017 A, General Obligation Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2017B and General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017C in the 
aggregate principal amounts of approximately $3,155,000.00, $2,530,000.00 and 
$2,330,000.00 respectively. 

This resolution is in conjunction with the ordinance authorizing the issuance of 
the bonds under First Readings and further details the advertisement and Bond Sale 
process. 

Your approval of the resolution is requested. 

c: Dawn Kelsey 
Tom Williams 
Robert Gunter 



RESOLUTION NO. 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ADVERTISEMENT FOR BID AND 
DISTRIBUTION OF A PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT FOR THE 
PURCHASE OF CITY OF HENDERSON, KENTUCKY GENERAL 
OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2017A, GENERAL OBLIGATION 
REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2017B AND GENERAL OBLIGATION 
REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2017C IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNTS OF APPROXIMATELY $3,155,000, $2,530,000 AND $2,330,000, 
RESPECTIVELY. 

WHEREAS, the City of Henderson, Kentucky (the "City") has previously determined the 
necessity of (i) financing various public improvements (collectively, the "New Project") for use 
in furtherance of proper public purposes of the City; and (ii) currently refunding the outstanding 
City of Henderson, Kentucky Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2006A (the "Prior 2006A 
Bonds"), the proceeds of which were used to finance the costs of the acquisition, construction, 
installation and equipping of certain improvements (the "2006 Project"), to the City's combined 
and consolidated municipal water, sanitary sewer and storm sewer system (the "System") and 
(iii) currently refunding a portion of the outstanding City of Henderson, Kentucky General 
Obligation Bonds, Series 2007 (the "Prior 2007 Bonds"), the proceeds of which were used to 
finance and refinance various public improvements in the City (the "2007 Project," and together 
with the New Project and the 1996 Project, the "Projects"); and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that it is in the best interests of the City that the City 
proceed at this time to finance the New Project through the issuance by the City of its General 
Obligation Bonds, Series 2017A in the approximate principal amount of $3,155,000 (which 
amount may be increased or decreased by up to $315,000) (the "Series 2017 A Bonds"); and 

WHEREAS, the City has further determined that the present conditions of the municipal 
market are more favorable than at the time the Prior 2006A Bonds and Prior 2007 Bonds were 
issued, and it is therefore advantageous and in the best interests of the City for the City to 
proceed with the issuance of its (i) General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017B in the 
approximate principal amount of $2,530,000 (which amount may be increased or decreased by 
up to $255,000) (the "Series 2017B Bonds") to currently refund and retire the outstanding Prior 
2006A Bonds and (ii) General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017C in the approximate 
principal amount of $2,330,000 (which amount may be increased or decreased by up to 
$235,000) (the "Series 2017C Bonds,") to currently refund and retire a portion of the outstanding 
Prior 2007 Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, on the 6th day of December, 2016, the City gave first reading to, and on the 
12th day of December, 2016, proposes to give second reading to and adopt, an ordinance 
providing for the issuance of the Bonds in order to provide funds to pay the costs, not otherwise 
provided for, of the financing and refinancing of the Projects, which ordinance is titled as 
follows: 



AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HENDERSON, KENTUCKY AUTHORIZING 
THE ISSUANCE OF (i) GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERlES 2017A IN THE 
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $3,155,000 (Wf-UCH AMOUNT MAY BE 
INCREASED OR DECREASED BY UP TO $315,000) TO FINANCE VARIOUS 
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS, (ii) GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, 
SERIES 2017B IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $2,530,000 
(WHICH AMOUNT MAY BE INCREASED OR DECREASED BY UP TO $255,000) 
TO CURRENTLY REFUND THE OUTSTANDING CITY OF HENDERSON, 
KENTUCKY WATER AND SEWER REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2006A; AND (iii) 
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2017C IN THE 
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $2,330,000 (WHICH AMOUNT MAY BE 
INCREASED OR DECREASED BY UP TO $235,000) TO CURRENTLY REFUND A 
PORTION OF THE OUTSTANDING CITY OF HENDERSON, KENTUCKY 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2007; APPROVING THE FORMS OF 
BONDS; AUTHORIZING DESIGNATED OFFICERS TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER 
THE BONDS; PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT AND SECURITY OF THE 
BONDS; CREATING BOND PAYMENT FUNDS; MAINTAINING THE 
HERETOFORE CREATED SINKING FUND; AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF 
THE BIDS OF THE BOND PURCHASER OR PURCHASERS FOR THE PURCHASE 
OF THE BONDS; AND REPEALING INCONSISTENT ORDINANCES. 

WHEREAS, it is appropriate at this time that the City authorize the advertisement for bid for 
the purchase of the Bonds. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF HENDERSON, 
KENTUCKY, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The City of Henderson, a municipal corporation and political subdivision 
of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, shall issue (i) its "General Obligation Bonds, Series2017A" 
(the "Series 2017A Bonds") in the aggregate principal of approximately $3,155,000 (subject to a 
permitted adjustment increasing or decreasing the principal amount of said Series 2017A Bonds 
by up to $315,000), (ii) its "General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017B" (the "Series 
2017B Bonds") in the aggregate principal of approximately $2,530,000 (subject to a permitted 
adjustment increasing or decreasing the principal amount of said Series 2017B Bonds by up to 
$255,000) and (iii) its " General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017C" (the "Series 2017C 
Bonds") in the aggregate principal of approximately $2,330,000 (subject to a permitted 
adjustment increasing or decreasing the principal amount of said Series 2017C Bonds by up to 
$235,000). 

SECTION 2. The City shall comply with the requirements of KRS Chapters 66 and 424 
by advertising for bids for the purchase of the Bonds. Actions heretofore taken by the City in 
connection with the preparation of such instruments and the distribution of such information by 
the City as shall be necessary to accomplish the foregoing, including the preparation of a 
Preliminary Official Statement (the "Preliminary Official Statement") which Preliminary Official 
Statement shall be deemed final by the Mayor of the City in accordance with Rule l 5c2-12 of the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Rule"), are hereby ratified and approved. In order to 
enable prospective purchasers to submit a bid for the purchase of the Bonds, the City hereby 
covenants and agrees that it will execute, comply with and carry out all of the provisions of a 
continuing disclosure undertaking (the "Continuing Disclosure Undertaking") in connection with 
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the issuance of the Bonds. Failure to comply with any such provisions of the Continuing 
Disclosure Undertaking shall not constitute a default on the Bonds; however, any holder of the 
Bonds, including the beneficial owners of the Bonds, may take such action as may be necessary 
and appropriate, including seeking specific performance, to cause the City to comply with its 
obligations under the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking. 

SECTION 3. Proposals for the purchase of the Bonds shall be opened and reviewed by the 
Finance Director of the City, and shall be acted upon by the Mayor, City Manager or Finance 
Director on that same day, based upon the advice of the City's financial advisor, J.J.B. Hilliard, 
W.L. Lyons, LLC, without the need for further action by this Board of Commissioners. The City 
hereby ratifies and approves the use of the "Notice of Bond Sale," substantially in the form attached 
hereto, which shall be published as required by law. 

SECTION 4. The Mayor, City Manager or Finance Director of the City shall, in a certificate 
of award accepting the successful bid or bids for the Bonds (the "Certificate of Award"), determine 
the exact principal amount of Bonds to be awarded and the exact rate or rates of interest which said 
Bonds shall bear, and the interest rate or rates on said Bonds shall be automatically fixed at the rate 
or rates set out in the successful bid accepted by said Certificate of Award. The proceeds of the sale 
of said Bonds shall be applied to the costs of the Project and the costs of issuing the Bonds and shall 
be expended as provided in the Ordinance authorizing the Bonds. 

SECTION 5. In the event that no bids shall be accepted for the purchase of the Bonds, bids 
may again be solicited for the purchase of the Bonds at a future date and hour at the discretion of the 
Mayor, without the necessity of further authorization by the City. 

SECTION 6. All motions, orders, resolutions and parts thereof in conflict herewith, are 
hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and this Resolution shall be effective immediately. 

SECTION 7. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption. 

On motion of Commissioner seconded by 
Commissioner _______ , that the foregoing Resolution be adopted, the vote was 
called. 

On roll call the vote stood: 

Commissioner Johnston: Commissioner Mills: ----- -----
Commissioner Hite: Mayor Austin: 
Commissioner Royster: 

WHEREUPON, Mayor Austin declared the Resolution adopted, affixed his 
signature and the date thereto and ordered that the same be recorded. 

ATTEST: 

Maree Collins, City Clerk 
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Steve Austin, Mayor 
Date: ------------



APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
LEGALITY THIS ;v DAY OF 

NOVEMBE~17016. ' / 
I,. y/ 

By: !10wm(_.re.J:;fl,1~/ 
~. Dawn S. 'Kei'fey /I 

City Attorney 
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CERTIFICATE 

I, Maree Collins, hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting City Clerk of the City 

of Henderson, Kentucky, that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution adopted 

by the Board of Commissioners of the City, at a meeting duly held on December 6, 2016, that said 

Resolution (together with the Notice of Bond Sale approved therein) appears as a matter of public 

record in the official records of the City, that said meeting was duly held in accordance with all 

applicable requirements of Kentucky law, including KRS 61.810, 61.815, 61.820, and 61.823, that a 

quorum was present at said meeting, that said Resolution has not been modified, amended, revoked, 

or repealed; and that same is now in full force and effect. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, witness my signature on this day of ____ _ 

2017. 

City Clerk 
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EXHIBIT A 

NOTICE OF BOND SALE 

Notice is hereby given that electronic bids will be received by the City of Henderson, Kentucky (the 
"City"), until 11:00 a.m., 11:15 a.m. and 11:30 a.m. E.T., respectively, on January 11, 2017, (or at such later 
time and date announced at least forty-eight hours in advance via the BiDCOMP™/PARITY™ system) for 
the purchase of approximately $3,155,000 of the City's General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017 A (the 
"Series A Bonds"), approximately $2,530,000 of the City's General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 
20178 (the "Series 8 Bonds") and approximately $2,330,000 of the City's General Obligation Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2017C (the "Series C Bonds," and together with the Series A Bonds and Series B Bonds, 
the "Bonds"), respectively. Alternatively, written sealed or facsimile bids for the Bonds by the designated 
time will be received by the Finance Director, 222 First Street, Henderson, Kentucky 42419 (FAX: 
(270) 831-1246). 

The Bonds will be dated their date of initial delivery, will be issued as fully registered bonds in 
denominations in multiples of $5,000 (within the same maturity), will mature on the dates and in the 
years and shall be subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities as described in the Official Terms 
and Conditions of Bond Sale contained in the Preliminary Official Statement, to which reference is made 
for official terms relating to the sale of the Bonds. Electronic bids may be submitted via 
BiDCOMP™/PARITYTM, in the manner described below. 

Additional information, including the Preliminary Official Statement, the Official Terms and 
Conditions of Bond Sale and the Official Bid Form, may be obtained from the City's Financial Advisor, 
J.J.B. Hilliard, W.L. Lyons, LLC; 500 West Jefferson Street, Louisville, Kentucky 40202; Telephone: 
(502) 588-8639 or at http://pos.hilliard.com. Fwther information regarding BiDCOMPTM/PARITY™ may 
be obtained from BiDCOMP™/PARITY™, 1359 Broadway- 211

d Floor, New York, NY 10018, Telephone: 
(800) 850-7422. 

Sale of Bonds on tax-exempt basis, subject to approving legal opinion of Dinsmore & Shohl LLP, 
Bond Counsel, Covington, Kentucky. The City has designated the Bonds as "qualified tax-exempt 
obligations" pursuant to Section 265 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Right to reject 
bids or waive informality reserved. 

CITY OF HENDERSON, KENTUCKY 

By /s/ Steve Austin 
Mayor 
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December 2, 2016 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

City Commission Memorandum 
16-255 

Mayor Steve Austin and the Board of Commissioners 

Russell R. Sights, City Manager jJJ 
Purchase of Type II Ambulance and Acceptance of Quote for the 
Purchase of Ambulance Accessories 

The accompanying municipal orders award the bid for purchase of one Type II 
Ambulance for the Ambulance Service to Muster Emergency Vehicles of Calhoun, 
Kentucky in the amount of $88,317.00; and accept the quote for the purchase of 
ambulance accessories from Stryker, Chicago, Illinois in the amount of $17,395.00. 

The enclosed memo and attachments from Chris Winstead, Director and Bruce 
Farmer, Materials Coordinator of the Henderson City-County Ambulance Service details 
Ambulance Bid 16-01. Both awards are conditioned upon the County of Henderson 
paying one-half (1/2) of the purchase price. 

Both the bid and the quote fully comply with bid specifications and sufficient 
funds are available in the FY 2017 budget for these purchases. Mr. Bruce Farmer will be 
present at the meeting to answer any questions you might have. Your approval of the 
attached municipal orders is requested. 

c: Dawn Kelsey 



Henderson City- County Ambulance Service 

Memo 
To: 

From: 

Mayor Steve Austin and the Henderson Board of Commissioners 

Chris Winstead, Director and Bruce S. Farmer, Materials Coordinator 

Henderson City- County Ambulance Service 

Date: November 28, 2016 

Re: Report on Ambulance Bid 16-01 

On October 14, 2016 bids were opened for a new Type II Ambulance. Bids were received from 3 
dealers, Mid-America Ambulance of Campbellsville, KY: Muster Emergency Vehicles of Calhoun, KY 
and American Response Vehicles of Columbia, MO. 

A copy of our bid spread sheets is attached to this memo for your review. 

After reviewing all bids and doing a clarification with all dealers it is our recommendation to go with the 
bid from Muster Emergency Vehicles. Their bid for the Ambulance and marked Accessories with trade
in is $88,317.00 this is below our approved budget for this project. 

There were 2 items on our accessories that we can purchase from the vendor for a savings, and we 
are asking approval to do this. We can order from Stryker Emergency the 6506 Power-Pro Stretcher 
and an upgrade kit for one of our current stretchers to use with the Power-Load system that we are 
ordering with the ambulance. The bid on the stretcher was $ 18,670.00 and the upgrade kit was $ 
1,780.49 and a wide body adapter for a total of $ 20,450.49. We can purchase the stretcher with the 
wide body adapter for$ 15,710.00 and the upgrade kit $1,685.00 for a total of$ 17,395.00. This is a 
savings of$ 3,055.49. These accessories were also included in our budget. 
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Mid-America Ambulance

l & Coach Sales IDealers I Campbellsville,KY l
' Muster Emergency

Vehicles

Calhoun, KY

American Response
Vehicles

Columbia, MO

Specifications Mailed 3ept. 22,2016 (Handed) Sept. 23, 2016 Sept. 23, 2016

Bid Received Oct. 13 2016 Oct. 13 2016 Oct. 14 2016

Bid Proposal Form (12) Yes Yes Yes

Non-Collusive Agreement (33) Yes Yes No

KKK-A-1822F Yes Yes Yes

Certification Document Yes Yes Yes

Exceptions Notes Yes Yes Yes

Units Produced = 18 Months ,300 Total / 200 Transits About 200 Transits

Service Facilities Campbellsville, KY Calhoun, KY Columbia, MO

Manufactures Literature Yes Yes Yes

Plans, Drawings & Photos Yes Yes Yes

Diagrams & Illustrations Yes Yes Yes

QVM Adherence Yes Yes Yes

Delivery Time Approx 90 Day= Order About 90 Days=0rder

Liability lnsurance Yes Yes Yes

Full Specifications Returned Yes No Yes

Pre-Construction Conference At Our Office At Our Office $3,000.00

Acceptance & Delivery Yes Yes Yes

Kentucky Dealers License Yes Yes No

Chassis Year 2017 2017 2017

Conversion Company McCoy-Miller Wheeled Coach AEV

Base Bid Price (13-30) $72,274.00 $75, 189.00 $88,608.00

Separate Trade-In Price (4) $4,000.00 ($1 0,000.00) $2,000.00
(Chassis Sub Total) $68,274.00 $65, 189.00 $86,608.00

Accessories Prices (31 ) $23,128.00

Total Money Requested for Ambulance $88,317 00



I

Total for Accessories $23,128.00

j

Dealers

Mid-American Muster ARV

Accessories (31 )

Whelen LINZ6R with Flange, two (2) (Changed) $428.00 $526.00 $118.89

Whelen solid-state headlight flasher (Changed) $116.00 $687.00 No Bid

Ohio flowmeter, wall mount, two (2) $144.00 $95.00 $237.78

Cast Products Model RA 2014 recessed holder two $162.00 $235.00 $231.11

Floor Plates Set for a Stryker 6505 Power Pro Iot Recommded $220.00 $140.00

Laerdal LSU suction unit with 1200cc replaceable
No Bid s"i ,o!)g.oo $1,140.56cannister, carrying case, one (1 )

Streamlight litebox SL40FS, two (2) $360.00 $325.00 $622.22

Ferno Model SP4440 FernoTrac Adult traction, one $322.00 $350.00 $330.00

Hobbs Engine Hour Meter, customer location $152.00 OEM $125.56 "

Security locked compartment in patient compartment

No Charge WC Ch0iCe $F>06.67purchaser choice of location

Stainless steel plates mounted on front of squad

bench and under compartment area $210.00 $145.00 $420.00

Dark window tinting all doors $752.00 $671.50 $166.67

Two (2) 18" flourescent lights mounted to ceiling
No Bid $365.00 $226.67in patient compartment

Loncoin 11 Fleckstone flooring, purchaser choice of
No Charge ILOS $225.00 $338.89color

Four (4) aluminum wheels,purchaser's choice No Bid Not Available $438.89

Webing safety restraint system with quick releases
$366.00 $375.00 $96.67to keep equipment in the ALS cabinet

DOT Iettering (shipped loose) $154.00 No Charge No Charge
No Smoking signs, shipped loose, two (2) No Charge No Charge No Charge
Stryker 6506 Power-Pro with acc. $17,247.33 $16,850.00 $17,452.98

Rear back-up camera with monitor (Safety Vision) $1,550orOEM OEM

Whelen Howler low frequency tone siren $761.00 $765.00 $402.67

1 Set Whelen Tracer Series Super-LED light array $3,653.00 $3,660.00 $3,530.22

Stryker 6506 PWRLD compatible upgrade kit (done
$1,780.49 Need Model $1,918.63on one of our cots)

Stryker Power Load Model 6390 with cot kit installed $21 ,623.76 $20,895.00 $22,197.91

Stryker XPS (.expandable patient burface) installed $2,532.77 $1 ,820.00 NC w Cot

Change Inverter to Vanner i$ei'iz.oo3 lncluded

Back Up Alarm "Auto Reset" Switch (Added) $135.00

2nd Antenna Prewire (Added) $130.00

Cast Products Speakers in Front Bumper (Changed) $280.00



!il:ryker® 
Sales Account Manager 

ANDREA QUIGLEY 
Andrea.Quigley@stryker.com 
Cell: 502-939-6166 
Fax: 859-268-7807 

End User Shipping Address 

1170187 
HENDERSON CO EMS 
1305 N ELM ST 
BRUCE FARMER 
HENDERSON, KY 42420 

Customer Contact· Ref Number 

5233803 

Shipping Address 

1170187 
HENDERSON CO EMS 
1305N ELM ST 
BRUCE FARMER 
HENDERSON, KY 42420 

Date 

11/02/2016 

PO Number 

QUOTE 

Comprehensive Quotation 

Reference Field 

Remit to: 

P .0. Box 93308 
Chicago, IL 60673-3308 

Billing Address 

1067691 
METHODIST HOSP 

1305N ELM ST 
HENDERSON, KY 42420 

Quote Type 

L~e I Quantity I Item Description I Part # I Unit Price I Extended P~ice J Item Comments 

1.00 

2.00 

Power-PRO XT 

Options 

Power-PRO XT 

Dual Wheel Lock 

PR Cot Retaining Post 

Power Pro Standard Components 

XPS Option 

No Runner/HE 02 

Equipment Hook 

Power-LOAD Compatible Option 

Trendelenburg 

No HE Section 02 Bolde 

Pocketed Back Rest Pouch 

Head End Storage Flat 

Fowler 02 Bottte Holder 

English Manual 

120V AC SMRT Charging Kit 

JHook 

XPS Knee Gatch Bolster Matrss 

No Steer Lock Option 

3 YR X-Frame Powertrain Wmty 

2 Yr Bumper to Bumper Warranty 

DOM SHIP (NOT HI, AK, PR, GM) 

2 Stage IV Pole PL Option 

X-RESTRAINT PACKAGE 

STANDARD FOWLER 

Pow«LOAD 

Options 

Powert.OAD 

Wheel Guide Option 

Standard Comp 6390 Power Load 

English Manual 

1 year parts, labor & travel 

UNIVERSAL FLOORPLATE. OPTION 

English Option, Manual 

6506000000 

6506000000 

6086602010 

6085033000 

6506026000 

6506040000 

0054200994 

6500147000 

6506127000 

6085031000 

6506036000 

6500130000 

6500128000 

6500241000 

6506600000 

6500028000 

6092036018 

6500003130 

6506037000 

7777881669 

7777881670 

0054030000 

6500311000 

6500001430 

6506012003 

6390000000 

6390000000 

6390027000 

6390026000 

6390600000 

7777881660 

6390028000 

6390020000 

$15,710.00 

$15,710.00 

$20,080.00 

$19,700.00 

$380.00 

($15,710~ 

$15,710.00 

$20,080.00 

$19,700.00 

$380.00 
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.!Stryker® 
Sales Account Manager 
ANDREA QUIGLEY 
Andrea.Quigley@stryker.com 
Cell: 502-939-6166 
Fax: 859-268-7807 

Note: 
1-!ARDSHIP QUOTE FOR INSURANCE AMBULANCE ACCIDENT 
~PLACEMENT 
Valid Until 12/30/2016 

Comprehensive Quotation 

Product Total 
Freight 
Tax 
Total Incl Tax & Freiaht 

Remit to: 

P .0. Box 93308 
Chicago, IL 60673-3308 

$35,790.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$35,790.00 

"'1' Signature: ___________________ Title/Position:------------------ Date: _______ _ 

Deal Consummation: This is a quote and not a commitment. This quote is subject to final credit, pricing, and documentation approval. Legal documentation must be signed before 
your equipment can be delivered. Documentation will be provided upon completion of our review process and your selection of a payment schedule. 
Confidentlallty Notice: Recipient wiff not disclose to any third party the terms of this quote or any other Information, induding any pricing or discounts, offered to be provided by Stryker 
to Recipient in connection with this quote, without Stryke(s prior written approval, except as may be requested by law or by lawful order of any applicable government agency. 
Terms: Net 30 Days. FOB oligin. A copy of Stryker Medlcal's standard terms and conditions can be obtained by calling Stryker Medical's Customer Service at 1-800-STRYKER. 
Cancellation and Return Policy: In the event of damaged or defective shipments, please notify Stryker within 30 days and we wiU remedy the situation. Cancellation of orders must be 
received 30 days prior to the agreed upon delivery date. If the order is canceUed within the 30 day window, a fee of 25% of the total purchase order price and return shipping charges 
wiU apply. 
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I 
I 

Salee Account Manager 

ANDREA QUIGLEY 
Andrea.Quigley@sbyker.com 
Cell: 502-939-6166 
Fax: 859-268-7807 

End Uaer Shipping AddrNs 
1170187 
HENDERSON CO EMS 
1305NELMST 
BRUCE FARMER 
HENDERSON, KY 42420 

Line 
II 

1.00 

2.00 

Customer Contact 

Quantity 

Note: 
ji{)UDAY PROMO PRICING 
VALID UNTIL 12/30/2016 

Ref Number 

5287836 

Shipping Address 
1170187 
HENDERSON CO EMS 
1305 N ELM ST 
BRUCE FARMER 
HENDERSON, KY 42420 

I Date 

I 11/30/2016 

I 
I 

Item Description Part# 

6506 PIIIIRLD COMPAT UPGRADE KIT 6506700001 

ProCare Upgrade Charge 77100003 

PO Number 

QUOTE 

Unit Price 

$1,375.00 

$310.00 

I 
I 

Comprehensive Quotation 

Extended Price 

$1,375.00 

$310.00 

Product Total 
Fre· ht 
Tax 
Total Incl Tax & F 

I 
I 

Remit to: 

P.O. Box 93308 
Chicago, IL 60673-3308 

BIIUng Address 

1067691 
METHODIST HOSP 

1305NELMST 
HENDERSON, KY 42420 

Quote Type I 
I 

Item Comments 

r Slgnature: __________________ Title/Position: __________________ Date: ______ _ 

Deal Consummation: This is a quote and not a commitment. This quote is subject to final credit, pricing, and documentation approval. Legal documentation must be signed before 
your equipment can be delivered. Documentation will be provided upon completion of our review process and your selection of a payment sehedule. 
Confidentiality Notice: Recipient will not disclose to any third party the terms of this quote or any other information, including any pricing or discounts. offered to be provided by Sbyker 
to Recipient in connection with this quote, without Stryker's prior written approval, except as may be requested by law or by lawful order of any applicable government agency. 
Terms: Net 30 Days. FOB origin. A copy of Stryker Medlcal's standard terms and conditions can be obtained by calling Sbyker Medieal's Customer Service at 1-SOO.STRYKER. 
Csncellstlon and Return PoAcy: In the event of damaged or defective shipments, please notify Stryker within 30 days and we will remedy the situation. Cancellation of orders must be 
received 30 days prior to the agreed upon defivery date. If the order iS cancelled within the 30 day window, a fee of 25% of the total purchase order price and return shipping Charges 
will apply. 

Page 1 of 1 



SPECIFICATIONS 

TYPE II AMBULANCE 



CHASSIS SPECIFICATIONS 

CAB/CHASSIS 

The emergency medical care vehicle to be delivered under this 
contract shall be standard commercial products tested and 
certified, to meet or exceed the requirements of this 
specification. The ambulance shall comply with all Federal Motor 
Vehicle Safety Standards (FMVSS) and Federal regulations applicable 
or specified for the year of manufacture. The supplier shall 
provide total standardization and interchangeability between the 
similar vehicle available to the market at the time of bid. 

The following is a description of the chassis that will meet the 
minimum requirements of this specification and it is expressed as 
minimums. In addition, the chassis shall comply to paragraphs 
3.4.1 through 3.6.11 of KKK-A-1822F. 

* 2017 Ford Transit T250/T350 

* 148" Wheelbase 

* 9,000 to 9,500 GVW 

* Ambulance Preparation Package 

* 3.7L Gasoline Engine 

* Electric 6 speed automatic transmission 

* Limited Slip Axle 

* 4-Wheel Anti-Lock Brakes 

* Auxiliary AC/Heater Connector Package 

* Interior Upgrade Package 

* Exterior Upgrade Package 

* Single Heavy Duty 220 Alternator 

* Air Bag, Driver & Passenger 

* Tires: 235/65R 16 

* Wheel and Tire Changing Tools 

* Dual OEM Batteries 

* Electronic AM FM Stereo /Clock 
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* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

Power Group 

Paint - Oxford White (YZ} 

Front License Plate Bracket 

Steering Wheel, Tilt 

Intermittent Windshield Wipers 

* Dual Cloth Captains Chairs: 10-way power driver and 2-way 
manual passenger 

* Auxiliary Floor Mats 

* Auxiliary Transmission Cooler 

* Ambulance Auxiliary Idle Control 

* Front Stabilizer Bar 

* XL Trim Package 

* Speed Control (525) 

* Mirrors, outside, power 

* 25 Gallon fuel tank, minimum 

* Curbside door, single sliding 
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The following paragraphs are requirements the chassis must comply 
with. These refer to specific sections of KKK-A-1822F and it is up 
to the responding bidder to confirm that the vehicle he is bidding 
meets these requirements. Should the delivered vehicle not comply 
with these sections, the bid shall not be accepted. 

PARAGRAPH 

3.6.1 

3.6.2 

3.6.3 

3.6.3.1 

3.6.3.2 

3.6.4 

3.6.4.1 

3.6.4.2 

3.6.4.3 

3.6.4.4 

3.6.4.5 

3.6.4.6 

3.6.5 

3.6.5.1 

3.6.5.2 

3.6.5.3 

3.6.5.4 

3.6.5.5 

3.6.5.6 

3.6.5.7 

3.6.5.8 

3.6.6 

Chassis/Frame 

Vehicle lubrication 

Power unit, engine 

Power unit 

Engine, low temperature starting 

Power unit components 

Oil filter 

Air filter 

Air pollution control 

Fuel system 

Cooling system 

Exhaust system 

Drive train 

Drive train components 

Automatic transmission 

Driveline 

Brake system, service and parking 

Special traction (rear end} differential 

Suspension 

Spring stops 

Shock absorbers 

Steering 
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3.6.7 Wheels 

3.6.8 Tires 

3. 6 .• 9 Tire chain clearance 

3.6.10 Wheel/tire balancing 

3.7 Electrical system and components 

3.7.1 Electrical System 

The ambulance electrical system shall be equipped with, but not 
limited to the following: dual identical 12 volt batteries, 
generating, starting, lighting, ignition, visual and audible 
warning systems, specified electronics equipment, and devices 
including master consoles located· in the cab and patient 
compartments, and other specified accessory wiring. The electrical 
systems and equipment shall comply with all applicable FMVSS, 
including Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations (FMCSR), and 
shall also conform to all the applicable SAE recommended standards 
and practices whether or not specifically referenced in these 
subparagraphs herein. 

All electrical and electronic components shall be selected to 
minimize electrical loads, thereby not exceeding the vehicle's 
generating system capacity. All electrical system components and 
wiring shall be readily accessible through access panels for 
checking and maintenance. The cab shall be provided with a dash 
mounted control panel designed to house all electrical controls and 
switches. All cab control switches, indicators, and gauges shall 
be mounted in decorative steel panels mounted to the control panel. 
The gauges shall be internally illuminated. The emergency master 
switch shall be a paddle type switch having a white translucent 
label with red nomenclature. 

Master switch backlighting shall be controlled by the headlight 
rheostat. The remainder of the function switches shall be rocker 
type switches having translucent labels with black nomenclature. 
All switch labels shall be permanently engraved and back lighted as 
per paragraph 3. 7 .11. Backlighting for these switches and 
indicators shall be on only when the master switch is on. All 
switches shall have an internal pilot light to indicate when the 
switch is on, except circuits which require a DPDT switch or 
circuits that would be directly affected by 11 backfeed 11 through the 
indicator lamp. 

All exterior housings of lamps, electronic devices, and fixtures 
shall be corrosion resistant, and weatherproofed. Electrical 
fixtures attached to the sides of the ambulance below the 75 inch 
level shall be near flush mounted, not to protrude more than two 
(2) inches, except for such items as spotlights, and ventilators. 



All electrical devices and equipment installed which produce RFI, 
shall have the proper filters, suppressors, or shielding to prevent 
electromagnetic radiation and the resultant interference to radios 
and other electronic equipment. Vehicles equipped with electronic 
engine controls shall be immune from interference caused by radio 
transmissions. 

3.7.1.1 Warning Indicators 

The electrical system shall incorporate a warning light panel 
located on the control console. 

1. Patient compartment door ajar warning light. This shall be a 
flashing red light and has a raised lens approximately 1/2 inch in 
diameter. 

2. Exterior compartment door open warning light. This shall be 
a red steady burning light of same size as above. 

3.7.2 Wiring Installation 

The ambulance body and accessory electrical equipment shall be 
served by circuit(s) separate and distinct from the vehicle chassis 
circuits. All wiring provided by the ambulance manufacturer shall 
be copper and conform to all the SAE Jl292 requirements and shall 
have type SXL or GXL high temperature cross linked polyethylene, or 
better, insulation conforming to SAE Jll27 and Jll28. The use of 
multi conductor or ribbon cables are permitted provided they are 
not exposed to under hood or under vehicle temperatures/conditions. 
The wiring shall be permanently color coded or marked the entire 
length of the wire for identification with easily read numbers 
and/or letters and routed in conduit or high temperature looms with 
a rating of 149 degrees C (300 degrees F) . When cables are 
supplied by a component manufacturer to interconnect system 
components, these cables need not be continuously color 
coded/identified. They shall be coded/identified at the 
termination or interconnection points. All added wiring shall be 
located in accessible, enclosed, protected locations and kept at 
least 15 cm {6in.) away from exhaust system components. Electrical 
wiring and components shall not terminate in the oxygen storage 
compartment except for the oxygen controlled solenoid, compartment 
light, and switch plunger or trigger device. Wiring necessarily 
passing through an oxygen compartment shall be protected from 
damage ( see 3. 11. 3) . All conduits, looms, and wiring shall be 
secured to the body or frame with insulated metal cable straps in 
order to prevent sagging and movement which results in chafing, 
pinching, snagging, or any other damage. All apertures on the 
vehicle shall be properly grommeted for passing wiring and conform 
to SAE 1292. All items used for protecting or securing the wiring 
shall be appropriate for the specific application and be standard 
automotive, aircraft, marine, or electronic hardware. Cable ties 
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shall not be used to support harnesses, but may be used for 
bundling purposes. 

Electrical panels that are accessible to accidental contact shall 
have a protective cover, shield, etc. to prevent shorts that can 
result in injury, fire, or damage to the electrical system. 

3.7.2.1 Wiring Criteria 

All wiring (including grounds), 
except circuit breakers, shall 
percent of the maximum ampere 
protected. 

devices, switches, outlets, etc., 
be rated to carry at least 125 
load for which the circuit is 

A service loop of wire or harness shall be provided at all 
electrical components, terminals, and connection points that 
permits at least two replacements of the wire(s) termination. All 
splices and terminals provided shall comply with SAE Jl63, J561, or 
J928 as applicable. All terminals shall be permanently numbered or 
coded. Terminal strip (s), block (s), or multi-pin connector (s) 
shall be readily accessible for checking and service. All exterior 
wiring to lights or any other component shall utilize sealed 
connectors or splices. 

The ambulance electrical system shall incorporate a master circuit 
breaker panel with circuit breakers or other electronic, non
disposable, current protection devices, in each circuit, which 
comply with SAE J553. When multiconductor cables/ribbon cables are 
used for low current (selflimiting) circuits, additional 
fuses/circuit breakers are not required. Additionally, one 15 
ampere circuit breaker shall be provided for future use. For high 
current circuits, where SAE Type I breakers are not commercially 
produced, protection for these circuits may be provided with other 
types of circuit breakers. All circuit breakers shall be securely 
mounted, easily removable, and readily accessible for inspection 
and service. All electrical and electronic components, switches, 
connectors, circuit breakers, lamps, and indicators, including the 
vehicle batteries, shall be marked with an easily read 
identification code number and/or letter. Complete, highly 
legible, wiring diagrams and schematics, including identification 
codes and parts list for the ambulance's standard and optional 
equipment furnished, shall be included in the service manual and be 
supplied with each ambulance in accordance with paragraph 6.8. 

3.7.2.2 Printed Circuits 

When printed circuits are utilized, they shall conform to IPC A-
610D standards. Printed circuit boards shall be securely mounted 
and protected from physical damage and accidental shorts. Printed 
circuit board connections and components shall conform to all other 
specification requirements. 



3.7.3 Grounding 

A. Dedicated grounds for all appliances, circuits, etc. shall be 
furnished .. The use of appliance mounting screws/hardware shall not 
be used for grounding purposes unless specifically designed for 
such use by the appliance manufacturer. 

B. To provide RF grounding and minimize potential interference 
with chassis manufacturer's computers, the module and chassis cab 
shall be connected to the chassis frame with a separate dedicated 
minimum 19 mm (3/4"), braided ground strap with soldered ends that 
are secured to cleaned metal surfaces on the body and frame with 
star washers, etc. To prevent corrosion, both ends of the attached 
ground strap shall then be sealed with either rustproofing 
compounds or non-hardening battery terminal sealer. (Note: Regular 
stranded copper wire, while providing a DC ground, does not provide 
RF grounding. ) 

3.7.4 Windshield Wipers and Washers 

As specified under chassis requirements. 

3.7.6 Low Voltage Electrical System 

The ambulance shall be equipped with single 220 ampere alternator. 

3.7.6.1 Automatic Throttle 

The ambulance shall be equipped with an automatic engine "high 
idle" control, and it shall be installed and shall function as 
described under KKK-A-1822F. 

3.7.6.2 Voltmeter and Voltage Monitor 

Shall be as described in KKK-A-1822F. 

3.7.7 Battery System 

Shall be as described in KKK-A-1822F. 

3.7.7.1 Automatic Charger/Conditioner 

Shall be as described in KKK-A-1822F. Dimensions Unlimited EMS -
12UE12B3NRT 1200W-Inverter/Charger. 

3.7.7.2 Portable Equipment Charging Circuit 

Shall be as described in KKK-A-1822F. 

3.7.7.3 Internal 12V DC Power 



Shall be as described in KKK-A-1822F. There shall be 3 constant 
power 12V DC receptacles. Buyer choice of location. 

3.7.7.4 Master Disconnect Switch 

Shall be as described in KKK-A-1822F. 

3.7.8 125 Volt AC Utility Power 

Shall be as described in KKK-A-1822F. 

3.7.8.1 Utility Power Connector 

Shall be as described in KKK-A-1822F. Kussmaul Auto Eject. 

3.7.8.2 Electrical 125 Volt Receptacles 

Shall be as described in KKK-A-1822F. 
choice of locations. 

Note: Three (3) at our 

3.7.8.3 Inverter for ONBOARD 125 Volt AC Systems 

Shall be as described in KKK-A-1822F. Note: Page 19 3.7.7.1 

3.7.9 Driver Compartment Controls 

Shall be as described in KKK-A-1822F. 

3.7.10 Patient Compartment Controls 

All switches and controls for the patient compartment, except those 
for the heat/air unit, shall be located on a service panel in the 
action area. These switches shall be of the same design and 
construction as found in the driver's console. These switches 
shall not be activated unless the master switch found in the 
driver's console is in the 11 on 11 position. 

3.7.11 Marking of Switches 

All switches, indicators, and control devices supplied by the 
manufacturer shall employ permanently engraved white translucent 
labels. These shall be backlit and shall be activated when the 
master switch is "ON". Decals or other "stick-on" labels are not 
acceptable. 

3.7.12 Electromagnetic Radiation and Suppression 

Electrical components, electronic equipment, and devices used and 
installed on the ambulance, in addition to all subsystems (chassis, 
warning systems, etc.), shall be electromagnetic radiation 
suppressed, filtered, or shielded to prevent interference to radio 
and telemetry equipment aboard the vehicle and the surrounding 



area. The RFI of the completed ambulance shall not exceed the 
maximum limits in Mil-Std 461. The bidder shall provide documents 
from an independent testing laboratory certifying that the vehicle 
he is bidding will comply to this requirement. 

3.8 

3.8.1 

Lighting, Ambulance Exterior and Interior 

Ambulance Exterior Lighting 

The ambulance exterior lighting shall conform to FMVSS Standard 
108, and the requirements herein, and include: amber front and 
rear directional signal and hazard warning lights, front and rear 
side marker lights, backup light (s) /loading light (s), and clearance 
lamps. 

3.8.2 Ambulance Emergency Lighting 

The emergency lighting system must provide the vehicle with 360 
degrees of visual warning conspicuity. The system must display 
highly perceptible and attention getting signals that function in 
a modal system, and convey the message in the PRIMARY CODE "Clear 
the Right-of-Way" and in the SECONDARY MODE "Hazard Vehicle stopped 
on Right-of-Way". Both the front and rear facing emergency lights 
shall flash red then clear while in the primary mode. The system 
shall not impose an electrical load exceeding 40 amperes. 

3.8.2.1 Emergency Lighting System Configuration 

The ambulance standard emergency warning light system shall contain 
a minimum of twelve (12) fixed red lights, one (1) fixed clear 
light, and one (1) fixed amber light. The upper body warning 
lights shall be mounted at the extreme upper corner areas of the 
ambulance body, below the horizontal roof line. The single clear 
light shall be entered between the front facing, red upper corner 
lights. The single amber light shall be centered between the two 
(2) rear facing red lights. The four (4) red (grill) lights shall 
be located at least 30" above the ground and below the bottom edge 
of the windshield and shall not obstruct air flow to the engine 
compartment. The lateral facing intersection lights shall be 
mounted as close as possible to the front upper edge of each front 
fender. See Note on Page 29. 

3.8.2.2 Photometric and Physical Requirements 

Shall meet requirements as described in KKK-A-1822F. 

3.8.2.4 Hardware, Construction, Switching Arrangements 

The emergency lighting system shall be comprised of components and 
devices that comply to the general requirements and test of SAE 
J575g, J576d, and J551. Warning lights shall be firmly fastened to 



reinforced body surfaces. All switches, connectors, and wiring 
shall be rated to carry a minimum of 125 percent of their maximum 
ampere load. The emergency light switches shall be wired and 
arranged to provide the warning light signal modes and 
combinations. All emergency light switches shall be labeled as 
specified in 3.7.11 and each Primary/Secondary mode switch shall 
have an amber indicator light to show the driver which mode is 
activated. All warning light control switches shall be located in 
the dash mounted control panel. 

3.8.2.5 Tests, Warning Light System 

To confirm that the vehicle's warning light system complies with 
the requirements of these specifications and with KKK-A-1822F, 
documents shall be provided from an independent testing laboratory 
that will certify that the vehicle meets these requirements. Bids 
that do not include these documents shall not be considered. 

3.8.3 Flood and Loading Lights 

There shall be two (2) parabolic scene lights located on each side 
of the body (total of four [4]). These lights shall be mounted on 
the body and shall be angled at 15 degrees in order to provide 
maximum light diffusion. Controls for the scene lights shall be in 
the dash mounted control panel and shall control each set of two 
(2) rear loading lights which shall provide a minimum of 800 candle 
power and shall illuminate the area surrounding the back loading 
door(s). The lights shall produce a light pattern equivalent to a 
#4419 sealed beam. The loading light(s) shall be mounted on the 
body and shall be angled at 15 degrees like the scene lights. The 
loading light shall automatically be activated when the rear 
door(s) is(are) opened or the vehicle placed in a reverse mode. See 
Note on Page 29. 

3.8.4.1 Ambulance Interior Lighting 

The interior lighting shall comply with requirements of KKK-A-
1822F. See Note on Page 29. 

3.8.4.1 Patient Compartment Illumination 

The patient compartment shall be provided with six (6) overhead 
"dual intensity" incandescent lights. There shall be three (3) 
lights located over the "primary" patient area and three (3) over 
the squad bench. These lights shall be recessed into the patient 
compartment headliner. These lights shall not protrude more than 
1.5 inches. The lights shall have "dual element" bulbs for two (2) 
levels of lighting. The "high" or brightest mode shall meet the 
illumination requirements of KKK-A-1822F and the "low" or dimmer 
mode shall be provided for the patient's comfort. Certification 
shall be provided by an independent testing laboratory that the 



required patient compartment illumination is provided. In addition 
to the overhead lighting, there shall be provided a light in the 
attendant's work area. This light shall be controlled by a switch 
in the rear console. There shall be provided a stepwell light for 
the curbside door. When either the curbside or rear door is opened 
the lights over the stepwell shall be automatically lighted. 

3.9 Cab/Body Driver Compartment and Equipment 

Shall meet the requirements of KKK-A-1822F. 

3.9.1 Driver's Compartment, Cab 

The vehicle's cab shall meet the requirements listed in this 
specification and in KKK-A-1822F. 

3.9.2 Cab/Body Provision 

The ambulance cab shall meet the requirements listed under the 
Cab/Body section of this specification as well as in KKK-A-1822F. 

3.9.3 Cab Seating 

The cab seating shall meet the requirements of KKK-A-1822F. 

3.9.4 Controls and Operating Mechanism 

All controls and operating mechanisms shall meet the requirements 
of KKK-A-1822F. 

3.9.5 Outside Rearview Mirrors 

The vehicle shall be provided with exterior mirrors as required in 
KKK-A-1822F. 

3.9.6 Bumpers and Steps 

The chassis manufacturer's standard chrome bumper shall be 
furnished on the front of the chassis. Rear step shall be aluminum 
anti-slip open tread and to be able to support a test weight of 500 
pounds without flexing. The rear step bumper shall have rubber 
dock safety pads mounted on it for backing. It shall also be able 
to fold up for easier cot loading. 

3.9.7.2 Mud Flaps/Running Boards 

There shall be running boards going from the rear of the front 
wheel well to the front of the rear wheel well on both sides. All 
running boards shall be securely attached to the vehicle. All 
running boards shall be gusseted and supported to prevent flexing, 
sagging and damage so as to hold a person's weight up to 400 
pounds. The front and rear section shall flare up and provide 



protection as a stone guard. There shall be matching stone guards 
on the back of the rear wheel well opening. 

3.10.3 Technician Seating 

Seating for the EMT shall consist of a contoured one piece 
11 highback 11 bucket seat with a heavily padded backrest to provide 
protection to the attendant, and shall be provided with a seat belt 
for the attendant. The seat shall be mounted and secured as 
specified in KKK-A-1822F. 

3.10.4 Patient Compartment Interior Dimensional Parameters 

The ambulance shall meet the following as minimum requirements. 

Length: Length measured from the partition to the inside edge of 
the rear loading doors at the floor shall be at least 122 inches. 
There shall be at least 25 inches and not more than 30 inches of 
unobstructed space at the head of the primary patient, measured 
from the face of the backrest of the EMT seat to the forward edge 
of the style I cot. 

Width: The compartment shall provide a minimum of 12" of clear 
aisle walkway between the edge of the primary patient cot and base 
of the nearest vertical feature measured along the floor. 

Height: The patient compartment shall provide at least 64 inches 
of height over the primary patient area measured from floor to 
ceiling. 

3.10.5 Body, General Construction 

As per KKK-A-1822F. 

3.10.6 Ambulance Body Structure 

As per KKK-A-1822F. 

3.10.7 Body Mounting 

As per KKK-A-1822F. 

3.10.8 Doors 

As per KKK-A-1822F. 

3.10.9 Door Latches, Hinges and Hardware 

As per KKK-A-1822F. 



3.10.10 Floor 

Shall be 3/4" seven (7) ply exterior grade plywood. 

3.10.11 Floor Coverings and Color 

The floor covering shall be as described in KKK-A-1822F. 



3.10.12 Stepwell {side door) 

The curbside door stepwell shall be automatically lit when the door 
is opened. 

3.10.14 Bulkhead/Partition 

Shall be as specified in KKK-A-1822F. 

3.10.15 Insulation 

The entire body, sides, ends, and roof of the patient compartment 
shall be completely insulated to enhance the performance of the 
environmental systems, specified in 3.4.2 and 3.13, and prevent 
external noise from entering the vehicle interior. The insulation 
shall be a non-settling type, vermin-proof, mildew-proof, fire 
retardant, non-toxic, and non-hygroscopic. If Fiberglass 
insulation is used, it shall not be exposed to water, e.g. door 
panels. 

3.10.16 Interior Surfaces 

The interior of the patient compartment shall be free of all sharp 
projections. Exposed edges and corners shall be broken with a 
radius or chamber or shall be covered with a stainless steel or 
seamless material as per purchaser's approval. The finish of the 
entire patient's compartment, including storage cabinets and 
equipment, shall be impervious to soap and water disinfectants, 
mildew and shall be fire-resistant. The color of the interior 
finish shall be of the customer's choice from samples furnished by 
the successful vendor. 

3 .11.1 Interior Storage Accommodations 

The interior of the patient compartment shall provide but not be 
limited to a minimum volume of 30 cubic feet of enclosed storage 
cabinetry, compartment space and shelf space which shall be 
conveniently located for medical supplies, devices or other 
equipment. All interior cabinets shall be fully lined inside with 
white Formica. Carpet, wood or other linings are unacceptable. 
Refer to interior drawings for detail information as to cabinet 
size and location. 

3 .11.1.1 Location of Equipment and Supplies 

The equipment and supplies necessary for airway care, artificial 
ventilation, oxygenation, and suction shall be within easy reach of 
the technician at the head of the stretcher. 



3.11.1.2 Waste and Sharps Disposal 

Size and types as specified by the purchaser and KKK-A-1822F, 
locations shall be approved by the purchaser. 

3.11.3 Storage Cabinets Design 

Storage cabinets, drawers and kits shall be easily opened, but 
shall not come open in transit. Where specified (see drawings), 
the storage cabinets shall have shatterproof Plexiglas doors set 
in felt lined metal track. This track shall be attached to the 
inside edge of the compartment. The Plexiglas used in these 
compartments shall be at least 1/ 4" thickness. The Plexiglas doors 
shall have 3/ 4" fingerholes cut into each section for locking tabs. 
There shall be adjustable shelves in the cabinets. The cabinets 
shall be of 3 / 4" plywood and shall be covered on all outside edges 
with Formica. The interior of these cabinets shall be lined with 
a white Formica covering. Any method using Fiberglass, metal or 
wood cabinet construction shall be acceptable. These cabinets 
shall be firmly anchored (bolted) to the tapping plates found in 
the ambulance structure. Please note what type of construction. 

The attendant's work or "action area" shall be finished in brushed 
aluminum. 

There shall be a light mounted in this area and shall be controlled 
by a switch found on the attendant's console. 

The oxygen compartment shall be designed and function as described 
in paragraph 3 .11. 3 of KKK-A-1822F. There shall be provided 
certifications from an independent testing laboratory that the 
oxygen system has passed oxygen system pressure tests and to AMD 
Standard 003 Oxygen Tank Retention System. It shall also be a 
recess for the 02 tank into the floor. 

3.11.4 Squad Bench, Seats and Backrests 

Shall be as specified in KKK-A-1822F. 

The board storage area under the squad bench shall be able to hold 
two (2) backboards 72"x18"x2", with removed access while standing 
outside the rear doors. 

3.11.5 Seat Belts 

Shall be as specified in KKK-A-1822F. 

3.11.6 Litter Fasteners and Anchors 

As specified in KKK-A-1822F. 



3 .11. 7 IV Holder for Intravenous Fluid Container 

As specified in KKK-A-1822F. 

3 .12 Oxygen, Main Supply 

The ambulance shall have a hospital type piped oxygen system 
capable of storing and supplying a minimum of 3, 000 liters of 
medical oxygen. The cylinder controls shall be accessible from 
inside the vehicle. The pressure gauge shall be visible from 
either the EMT's seat or from the squad bench. Oxygen shall be 
piped to self-sealing duplex oxygen outlet station located in the 
action area. There shall be a third outlet located on the squad 
bench side of the ambulance. The oxygen system shall consist of a 
reducing valve, pressure regulator having at least 02000 PSI range, 
and be preset to 50 PSI. This regulator shall be capable of 
supplying the on-board oxygen needs as well as a heart/lung 
resuscitator, if necessary. There shall be supplied one (1) 
flowmeter to fit the oxygen outlets of the vehicle. 

3.12.2 Suction Aspirator, Primary Patient 

The vehicle shall be supplied with an on-board aspirator. This 
unit shall have an Ohio quick connect outlet in the action area. 
The collection canister shall be a Bemis 1200 ml. with a wall 
mount. 

3.13 Environmental; Climatic and Noise Parameters 

The ambulance environmental controls (air conditioning and heat} 
shall be as specified in paragraphs 3.13.1 thru 3.13.5 of KKK-A-
1822F. 

3.14.3 Antenna, Cable and Mounting 

A full ground plane shall be installed in cab roof large enough for 
three (3) antennas with proper grounding to the frame. 

3.14.4 Siren 

The ambulance shall be equipped with a Whelen Model 295HFS siren. 
Two (2) 100 watt speaker shall be installed outside the vehicle, 
recessed in the area below and behind the f rent bumper. The 
speakers shall not protrude beyond the face of the bumper. 
Integrated grill speaker systems which have approval of Ford Motor 
Co. may be substituted. 

3.15.2 Miscellaneous Equipment 

The ambulance shall be provided with the following miscellaneous 
equipment: 



A. "No Smoking Oxygen Equipped" signs; conspicuously placed in 
the cab and patient compartments. 

B. Overhead grab rail; minimum sixty (60) inches long, maximum 
four (4) inch depth, on the ceiling over the primary patient. 

C. Back up alarm; audible warning device activated when the 
vehicle is shifted into and/or moving in reverse. It shall 
also have a momentary disconnect mount on the front console. 

D. Fire extinguisher; two (2) ABC dry chemical, multi-purpose, 
minimum five (5) pound unit in a quick-release bracket, one 
(1) mounted behind the driver's seat, and one (1) in the side 
stepwell. 

3.16.2. Color, Paint and Finish 

The ambulance shall be painted in accordance with the requirements 
of KKK-A-1822F. This paint shall be used for the entire vehicle. 
The stripe shall be completely around the vehicle including the 
hood, and shall be done in orange Scotchlite with blue Scotchlite 
trim. The Scotchlite striping must be installed by a vendor 
approved by the purchaser. 

3.16.2.1 Color Standards 

Shall be as described in KKK-A-1822F. 

3.16.4 Emblems and Markings 

Shall conform to those required by KKK-A-1822F. These shall be 
delivered with the vehicle and be installed by a vendor approved by 
the purchaser. 

3.17 Markings, Date Plates, Etc. 

Shall conform to the requirements of KKK-A-1822F. 

4.1 thru 4.4.1 QUALITY ASSURANCE PROVISIONS 

The supplier/manufacturer is obligated to prove that the vehicle, 
ambulance components and equipment offers/provided meet or exceed 
the requirements of the specification and of compliance to Federal 
Specification KKK-A-1822F. 

There shall be provided with the bid, copies of the test documents 
and a letter from the independent testing laboratory performing the 
tests certifying that the following tests have been performed and 
passed. Test documents or certifications from the manufacturer or 
from any source other than an independent testing laboratory shall 



,, 

not be accepted. Any bid not complying with this requirement shall 
not be considered and will be rejected. The certifications 
required as follows: 

REQUIRED LIGHTING 

Interior Lights 
6 - Whelen 80COOEZR, 8" round interior dome light with chrome bezel 

Grill Lights 
4 - Whelen MCRNS, with clear outer lens and chrome flange 

Front Fender Lights 
2 - Whelen 70R02FCR, 700 series red LED with clear outer lens and 
chrome flange 

Top 
10 - Whelen 70C02RR, 700 series red LED, six (6) with clear outer 
lens, chrome flange 

2 - Whelen 70C02AR, 700 series amber LED with clear outer lens, 
chrome flange 

2 - Whelen 70C02CR, 700 series white LED with clear outer lens and 
chrome flange 

6 - Whelen 70COELZR, 700 series LED scene/load lights and 2 with 
chrome flange scene/load 

1 - Set Whelen 7HTM5FC 700 series housing 

1 - Set Whelen 7HTM5RC 700 series housing 

1 - Whelen 7PTMSF Front light housing 

1 - Whelen 7PT5R Rear light housing 



ACCESSORIES 

In addition to the requirements of this specification, 
the following items shall be separately priced 

for possible inclusion in final order. 

* Two (2) Whelen LINZ6R, with clear outer lens and. RFLANGEC 
chrome flange to be mounted on back per purchaser's choice of 
location. 

* Whelen solid-state headlight flasher 
* Ohio flowmeter, wall mount, two (2) 
* Cast Products Model RA 2014 recessed, overhead mount IV 

hanger, two (2) per customer choice location 
* Cot plates to protect vinyl floor, but sealed against blood

borne pathogens 
* Laerdal LSU suction unit with 1200cc replaceable cannister, 

carrying case, one (1) 
* Streamlight litebox SL40FS, two (2) 
* Ferne Model SP4440 FernoTrac adult traction splint 
* Hobbs engine hour meter, mounted per purchaser's choice of 

location 
* Security locked compartment in patient compartment, purchaser 

choice of location 
* Stainless steel plates mounted on front of squad bench and 

under compartment area 
* Dark window tinting all doors 
* Two (2) 18" flourescent light mounted to ceiling in patient 

compartment 
* Loncoin II Fleckstone flooring, purchaser choice of color 
* Four (4) aluminum modular wheels, purchaser's choice 
* Webing safety restraint system with quick releases to keep 

equipment in the ALS cabinet 
* DOT lettering (shipped loose) 
* NO SMOKING signs, two (2) 
* Stryker 6506Power-PRO with single adjustable wheel lock, 

trendelenburg, flat mattress, short hook, patient right cot 
retaining posts, standard restraint package, SMRT battery 
option - 12V CD cable, SMRT charger mounting bracket, 2 stage 
IV pole (patient left), equipment hook, Fowler oxygen bottle 
holder, pocketed back rest pouch, head end storage flat. 

* Rear back-up camera with monitor. (Safety Vision 5V-CLCD-70A} 
* Whelen Howler low frequency tone siren 
* 1 Set Whelen Tracer Series Super - LED light array TCRHT6 
* Stryker 6506 PWRLD compatible upgrade kit (done on one of our 

cots} 
* Stryker Power Load Model 6390 with cot kit installed 
* Stryker XPS {expandable patient surface) installed 



'' 

EXCEPTIONS 

Any exceptions taken to the requirements of these specifications 
shall be explained in full and referenced by paragraph number. 



MUNICIPAL ORDER

MUNICIPAL ORDER AWARDING BID FOR PURCHASE OF
ONE (1) TYPE II AMBULANCE FOR THE AMBULANCE
SERVICE FROM MUSTER EMERGENCY VEHICLES OF
CALHOUN, KY IN THE AMOUNT OF $88,317.00

WHEREAS, the Henderson Ambulance Service has issued invitations to bid for the
purchase of one (l ) Type II ambulance for the Henderson Arnbulance Service; and

WHEREAS, bids were submitted pursuant to said invitation, and were publicly
opened on October 14, 2016, with Muster Emergency Vehicles of Calhoun, KY submitting the
lowest bid, which bid the City Manager recommends be accepted; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Henderson, Kentucky, that
the recommendation of the City Manager is approved, and award is hereby made to Muster
Emergency Vehicles, 117 State Route 815, Calhoun, Kentucky 42327, for the purchase of one (1 )
Type II ambulance in the amount of $88,317.00 in strict accordance with its bid as submitted on
October 14, 2016, with the City's portion of the purchase price being $44, 158.50.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this award is conditioned upon the County of
Henderson paying one-half ( l/2) of the purchase price.

On motion of Comrnissioner , seconded by Cornmissioner
, that the foregoing Resolution be adopted, the vote was called. On roll call the

vote stood:

Commissioner Johnston:

Commissioner Hite:

Cornmissioner Royster:

Commissioner Mills:

Mayor Austin:

INTRODUCED, PUBLICLY READ AND FINALLY APPROVED ON ONE
READING and Mayor Austin, affixed his signature and the date thereto and ordered that the same
be recorded.

ATTEST:
Steve Austin, Mayor
Date:

Maree Collins, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND

LEGALITY THIS .l? DAY OF
DECEMB?R, 2016.

J4? Xf;?'
Dawn S. Kelsey
City Attorney

By:



MUNICIPAL ORDER

MUNICIPAL ORDER ACCEPTING QUOTE FROM STRYKER,
CHICAGO, IL FOR THE PURCHASE OF AMBULANCE
ACCESSORIES IN THE AMOUNT OF $17,395.00

WHEREAS, the Henderson Ambulance Service desires to purchase a 6506 power-pro
stretcher and upgrade kit for one of our current stretchers to use with the Power-Load system that
will be on the new ambulance to be ordered; and

WHEREAS, Stryker of Chicago, IL provided a quote for the 6506 power-pro stretcher
and upgrade kit in the amount of $17,395.00, which quote the City Manager recommends be
accepted.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Henderson, Kentucky, that
the recommendation of the City Manager is approved for the purchase of a 6506 power-pro stretcher
and upgrade kit from Stryker, p.o. Box 93308, Chicago, IL 60673, in the amount of $17,395.00,
with the City's portion of the purchase price being $8,697.50.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this award is conditioned upon the County of
Henderson paying one-half (1/2) of the purchase price.

On motion of Comrnissioner , seconded by Commissioner
, that the foregoing Resolution be adopted, the vote was called. On roll call the

vote stood:

Commissioner Johnston:

Commissioner Hite:

Commissioner Royster:

Commissioner Mills:

Mayor Austin:

INTRODUCED, PUBLICLY READ AND FINALLY APPROVED ON ONE
READING and Mayor Austin, affixed his signature and the date thereto and ordered that the same
be recorded.

ATTEST:
Steve Austin, Mayor
Date:

Maree Collins, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND

LEGALITYTHIS / DAYOF
DECEMBER, 2016.

4y
[Da'wnW
City Attorney

By:



December 2, 2016 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

City Commission Memorandum 
16-254 

Mayor Steve Austin and the Board of Commissioners 

Russell R. Sights, City Manager /J) 
A ward of Bid for Re branding and Refurbishing of Signs Located 
Within the City Corporate Limits 

The accompanying municipal order authorizes the award of a bid to Alvey' s 
Signs, Evansville, Indiana, for the rebranding and refurbishing of signs located within the 
City corporate limits in the amount of $17,911.00. 

The scope of work includes removal of existing sign panels and replacing with 
aluminum panels and routed aluminum letters painted white and feather artwork, as well 
as cleaning and preparation for painting of the framework. 

The bid was advertised in The Gleaner and on the City's website, with four 
bidders responding. 

The low bid of $17,911.00 fully complies with the bid specifications and award is 
recommended accordingly. 

The attached Interdepartmental Memorandum from the Assistant City Manager 
and Public Information Officer further details the locations of the signs. Both Mr. 
Newman and Mrs. Stinnett will be available at the meeting to answer any questions you 
might have. 

Sufficient funds are available in the FY 2017 budget for this purchase. Your 
approval of the attached municipal order is requested. 

c: William L. Newman, Jr. 
Donna Stinnett 
Penny Hahn 



Interdepartmental Memorandum 

November 30, 2016 

TO: Russell R. Sights, City Manager 

FROM: William L. Newman, Jr., Assistant City Manager 
Donna Stinnett, Public Information Officer 

SUBJECT: Henderson Gateway Entrance Signs Bid Award 

Attached is the bid tabulation sheet for the refurbishing and rebranding of the signs 
located at the entryway into the City limits. There are a total of six locations listed below: 

• US 41 South/Pennyrile Parkway 
• US 60 East @ Wathen Lane 
• US 60 West@ Yz mile past the Community College 
• Red Banks Park 
• US 41 North @ the twin bridges 
• New Henderson Municipal Service Center site 

Funding for the project can be taken from the Special Projects account, division 298, line 
item 4495 - Directional Signs. There will be sufficient funds available to accomplish the other 
sign projects for this fiscal year. 

Both Donna Stinnett and I have reviewed the bids and I have validated the low bid 
submittal. It is our recommendation that the bid be awarded to Alvey's Signs of Evansville, 
Indiana in the amount of $17,911. 

We both will be available to answer questions regarding this project. 



CITY OF HENDERSON, KENTUCKY 
BID TABULATION SHEET 

.....I () 
BID REFERENCE NO.: 16-32 >- z z -

fl) z ~ ~ fl) z ~ 
11/29/16 

a:::_ 
DATE BID OPENED: z -_ z z w z -

(9W (9 I- uJ (9 z 
-.....1 0 LL .....I _o 

APPROVAL DATE: 
fl) .....I fl) fl) <( .....I fl) fl) 
fl) 5 w-o::: 0:::5 w 0::: 
- fl) o 2 w () fl) ow 

ACCEPTANCE FORM SENT: 
[u z zQo zZ zO 
::i ~ (91-Z Q~ (9 z _n.w _w 
<(W fl) 0 I fl) w fl) I 

US 41 North $5,455.00 $4,200.00 $5,846.17 $7,300.00 

US 60 East $2,000.00 $2,550.00 $3,393.57 $4,250.00 

US 60West $2,000.00 $1,600.00 $2,142.79 $2,700.00 

US 41 South/Pennyrile Parkway $4,915.00 $4,200.00 $5,846.17 $7,300.00 

Red Banks Park $2,425.00 $2,550.00 $3,393.57 $4,250.00 

Henderson Municipal Service Center $1,116.00 $4,125.00 $3,256.56 $4,125.00 

Total price of individual signs $17,911.00 $19,225.00 $23,878.83 $29,925.00 

OR Total "discounted" price (if completed at 
same time) 

Other Bidders Contacted: Bids Opened & Recorded Bv: Bids Reviewed By: 
Advertised in the Gleaner and on www.cityofhendersonky.org website ~-117-~ 

Penny Hahn William "Buzzy" Newman 

:,\'\t_~~\ 
V 06-01-14H 



City of Henderson, Kentucky 
Invitation to Bid 

Bid Reference No. 16-32 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS AND TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 

The City of Henderson is requesting bid proposals for the rebranding and refurbishing of 
signs located within the City corporate limits. The specific sign locations are as follows: 

1. US 41 North - at entrance to the Bi-State Vietnam Gold Star Memorial Bridge 
(twin bridges) 

2. US 60 East - at Wathen Lane 
3. US 60 West - Yi mile past the Henderson Community College 
4. US 41 South/ Pennyrile Parkway (access off Airline Road at Henderson County 

Road Department located on Sam Ball Way) 
5. Red Banks Park - at Merrit Drive and 6th Street 
6. Henderson Municipal Service Center - at 1449 Corporate Court 

SCOPE OF WORK: 

• Removal of existing sign panel. Replace with V'.t" aluminum panel and W' routed 
aluminum letters painted white. The feather artwork shall be of a vinyl material (3-
M product or approved equal) 

• Sign framework shall be thoroughly cleaned and prepared in accordance with paint 
manufacturer's recommendation. Paint shall be an oil-based product and suitable for 
use on existing surfaces. Two coats of paint are required. 

• Paint shall be applied in accordance with manufacturer's recommendation. 

• Vendor shall visit each of the locations to verify size, materials, access and existing 
sign ground conditions. 

• Warranty: Painted surfaces - 2 years. Sign face and vinyl artwork- 3 years. 

• Time Frame: 
o Proof development - 2 weeks 
o Proof approval - 1 week 
o Refurbished sign base and installation of new sign faces - 6 to 8 weeks 

Weather conditions and delays will be considered in the time frame. 

• Each sign shall be temporarily covered until all signs are completed. An official 
dedication is planned and signs will be unveiled on the same date. 



SPECIAL CONDITIONS AND TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 

Page2 

• Safety: Vendor is responsible for its own safety program and implementation. The 
owner may advise vendor if safety concerns arise but takes no responsibility for the 
vendor's safety program. Several sign locations are along State Highways and 
vendors must follow State requirements for parking and working within the right-of
way. 

• Pricing: Each sign location shall have a price shown with a total price of all signs. 
The individual prices shall be used as a basis for contract award. 

• The City of Henderson reserves the right to have some but not all signs done at 
the same time. Vendor may offer a discounted price total if all signs are completed 
in this contract at the same time. 

• Please refer to attached page 14 for the specific branding requirements as to color, 
font and file usage. The desired background color is 'primary color' PMS 2410 C 
(dark green). Any variation must be approved. 

o For signs # 1 - 4 refer to attached Exhibit A; 

o For sign# 5 - refer to attached Exhibit B; 

o For sign# 6 - refer to attached Exhibit B without the words "welcome to." 
The current sign at site # 6 is attached as Exhibit C. 

- End of Section -

06-0l-14E 
06-0I-14I 
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Finance Department 

November 17, 2016 

TO: All Prospective Bidders 

FROM: Penny Hahn, Assistant Finance Director 

Phone: 270-831-1200 
FAX: 270-831-1246 

E-mail: Finance@cityofhendersonky.org 

SUBJECT: Bid Reference 16-32; Rebranding and Refurbishing of Entrance Signs 

This letter is to clarify questions that have been asked regarding Bid Reference 16-32; 
Rebranding and Refurbishing of Entrance Signs. 

Question: General questions that we have - what are the sizes (dimensions) of the signs, 
and are the signs S/F or D/F? 
Answer: The vendor should inspect each sign location for exact material style and 
size of each. 

Question: Does the bid include painting the whole sign? 
Answer: Yes it does include painting the whole sign(s) at each location. 

Question: The new sign, sign #6, will this be a replacement of the faces only? And are 
they to be aluminum or pan faces? 
Answer: The sign #6 is the Municipal Service Center sign, and there is an 
aluminum panel in it now. 

If you have any other questions, please let me know. 

Thanks, 

~'11.-1-1~ 
Penny Hahn 
Assistant Finance Director 



MUNICIPAL ORDER

MUNICIPAL ORDER AWARDING BID FOR

REBRANDING AND REFURBISHING OF ENTRANCE

SIGNS TO THE CITY OF HENDERSON TO ALVEY'S

SIGNS, EVANSVILLE, INDIANA IN THE AMOtJNT OF
$17,911.00

WHEREAS, the City of Henderson has issued invitations to bid for rebranding and
refurbishing of entrance signs to the City of Henderson located at US 41North, US 60 East, US 60
West, US 41 South/Pennyrille Parkway, Redbanks Park and Henderson Municipal Center; and

WHEREAS, bids were submitted to the City pursuant to said invitations, and were
publicly opened on November 29, 2016, with Alvey' s Signs, Evansville, Indiana submitting the best
bid, which bid the City Manager recommends be accepted.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT OR?DERED by the City of Henderson, Kentucky, that
the recommendation of the City Manager is approved, and award is hereby made to Alvey's Signs,
13100 HWY s 7 North, Evansville, Indiana 47725, for the rebranding and refurbishing of entrance
signs to the City of Henderson located at US 41North, US 60 East, US 60 West, US 41
South/Pennyrille Parkway, Redbanks Park and Henderson Municipal Center in the amount of
$17,911 .oo, in strict accordance with its bid as submitted pursuant to Bid Reference 16-32.

On motion of Cornrnissioner , seconded by Commissioner
, that the foregoing Municipal Order be adopted, the vote was called. On roll

call the vote stood:

Commissioner Johnston:

Commissioner Hite:

Commissioner Royster:

Commissioner Mills:

Mayor Austin:

INTRODUCED, PUBLICLY READ AND FINALLY APPROVED ON ONE
READING and Mayor Austin, affixed his signature and the date thereto and ordered that the same
be recorded.

ATTEST:
Steve Austin, Mayor
Date:

Maree Collins, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND

LEGALITYTHIS / DAYOF
DECEMBER. 2016.

l,? ? ?
'Dawn 'S. Kelsey ?
City Attorney

By:



December 2, 2016 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

City Commission Memorandum 
16-256 

Mayor Steve Austin and the Board of Commissioners 

Russell R. Sights, City Manager 

Second Amendment to Alert (Public Safety Software) System 
Purchase Agreement 

The accompanying municipal order accepts a second amendment to the System Purchase 
Agreement with Alert Tracking Systems, Inc. (d/b/a Alert Public Safety Solutions), and 
authorizes the Mayor to execute the second amendment of the Alert Agreement. 

The original Agreement was entered into on November 23, 2015. The City and Alert 
PSS desire to amend the terms of the Agreement as set forth in the attached Second Amendment. 
The enclosed interdepartmental memorandum from the Assistant City Manager, 
Communications Supervisor, and Police Chief further details Alert's request for the contract 
amendment. The total additional cost of services for rack setup at the backup 911 center, travel 
and expenses is $4,300.00. 

Your approval of the attached municipal order is requested. 

c: Henderson County Fiscal Court 
Dawn Kelsey 



Interdepartmental Memorandum 

November 30, 2016 

TO: 

FROM: 

Russell R. Sights, City Manager 

William L. Newman, Jr., Assistant City Manager wtl 
Mike Shockley, Communications Supervisor 
Charles "Chip" Stauffer, Police Chief 

SUBJECT: Alert Contract Amendment # 2 

Alert, vendor for the 911 CAD, records management, and mapping system has completed 
installation of equipment and testing of the main 911 center. The backup 911 center located at 
the new Municipal Service Center will also house Alert equipment. The equipment can be 
installed but cannot be tested due to a conflict of scheduling of communication, installation of 
underground conduits and third-party vendors providing their service to the new building. 

The contract agreement provides for the installation and testing of their system to run 
concurrently; thus Alert has requested a contract amendment to cover the expense of making a 
separate trip to the site to perform testing of the system. Attached is their proposal requesting 
this additional contract amendment. 

The expense as shown on their attachment is for travel expenses, time related to the 
installation and start up of the equipment at the backup 911 center. 



? AL4 ERT(!fi PUBLIC SAFETY SOLUTIONS

SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE SYSTEM
PURCHASE AGREEMENT

FOR

CITY OF HENDERSON



SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE 

SYSTEM PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

This Second Amendment to the System Purchase Agreement between Alert PSS and Client 
("Amendment") is dated effective as of the date fully executed by both Parties ("Effective Date"), 
and is entered into by and between Alert Tracking Systems, Inc. (dba Alert Public Safety 
Solutions, referred to as "Alert PSS"), and the City of Henderson, Kentucky ("Client"). 

Alert PSS and Client entered into that certain Agreement between Alert PSS and Client 
dated November 23, 2015 ("Agreement"). 

Alert PSS and Client now desire to amend the terms of the Agreement as more 
particularly set forth below: 

1.0 Addendum A-7 of the Agreement is hereby amended by deleting the Subcontractor 
Services list therein in its entirety and replacing it with the following: 

QTY 

1 

1 
1 
1 
1 
1 

1 

Description 

Network Engineering: Hardware & Software 
Setup/Configuration/Installation 
Workstation Setup and Installation 
Network and System Design 
Testing and Procedures 
Documentation 
Technical Training (1 day, Max Class Size of 
10) 
Setup Rack for Hardware at 2nd Location 
Replication Creation/Testing and Travel 

Total Subcontractor Services 

Cost (U.S. 
$) 

$25,250.00 

$5,200.00 
$5,200.00 
$3,100.00 
$3,100.00 
$1,150.00 

$4,300.00 

$47,300.00 

2.0 Addendum A-8 of the Agreement is hereby amended by deleting the Contract Price 
Summary list therein in its entirety and replacing it with the following: 

Total Alert PSS Software 
Total Interfaces 
Total Alert PSS Services 
Total Subcontractor Hardware 
Total Subcontractor Software 
Total Subcontractor Services 

Total Contract Price 

$406,000.00 
$30,000.00 

$292,502.00 
$95,507.00 
$98,681.00 
$47,300.00 

$969,990.00 

3.0 Addendum A-9 of the Agreement is hereby amended by adding the following payment 
term: 
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"Pursuant to the Second Amendment to this Agreement, Client shall pay the additional 
Subcontractor Services amount of Four Thousand Three Hundred Dollars ($4,300 US) 
to Alert PSS within thirty (30) days of signing the Second Amendment to this 
Agreement." 

4.0 This Amendment represents the entire agreement between the Parties hereto with 
respect to the amendment of the Agreement. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency 
between the provisions of the Agreement and this Amendment, the provisions of this 
Amendment shall control and govern. 

5.0 Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, all terms used in this Amendment that 
are not otherwise defined shall have the same respective meanings ascribed to such 
terms in the Agreement. 

6.0 Except as modified and amended herein, all of the terms, provisions, requirements and 
specifications contained in the Agreement remain in full force and effect. 

7.0 Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the parties do not intend to, and the 
execution of this Amendment shall not, in any manner impair the Agreement, the 
purpose of this Amendment being simply to amend and ratify the Agreement, as hereby 
amended and ratified, and to confirm and carry forward the Agreement, as hereby 
amended, in full force and effect. 

8.0 Except to the extent that this Amendment is governed by the laws of the United States, 
this Amendment shall be governed, interpreted and enforced in accordance with the 
laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky without regard to its conflict of law provisions. 

(The Remainder of This Page Intentionally Left Blank; Signature Page Follows) 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Alert PSS and Client have executed and delivered this Amendment 
effective as of the Effective Date. 

ALERT PUBLIC SAFETY SOLUTIONS 

Accepted By (Signature) 

Printed Name 

Title 

Date 
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CITY OF HENDERSON 

Accepted By (Signature) 

Steve Austin 
Printed Name 

Mayor of the City of Henderson 
Title 

Date 

ATTEST 

Maree Collins 
City Clerk 

COUNTY OF HENDERSON 

Brad Schneider 
Henderson County Judge Executive 

ATTEST 

Sue Baker 
Clerk of Henderson Fiscal Court 



,e6=6,!=,.!==.,!=T:PUBLIC SAFETY SOLUTIONS

Alert Public Safety Solutions
4187 Arlingate Plaza

Columbus, Ohio. 43228
(614) 777-091 1

lBudgetary Quotation l

Name: City of Henderson
Attn: Michael Shockley, 91 1 Communications Supervisor

Address: l990BarrettCouit

City/Siaie: Henderson, KY 42420
Phone: 270-831-1221

Quotation #: Q-0224-102016

Date: 10/20/2016

Sales: Matt Strohmeyer
Title: SME, Sales

Phone: 877-686-0911

Quolalron valid for 30 days from Quolalron Dale

"lnjormaiion contained within this quo}a}ion is considered ?Conjidential? and ?Propiietary lmomia}ion? oj Alert Public Sale% Solu(ioiis. Distnbution to anyone outside your organization, or
any ihii'd parries, w?thou} expess wimen permission 1mm Akir} Public Sa{ety Solu(ions is prohibited.

'This quotation does no} include cabling (power, nehuork, inter}ace, elc.), network/communications connec}ions (WAN, GPS Demces, }elephone, ISDN, etc.), or ongoing
netwoucommunica}ions cha@es associa(ed with ins}allation, operation or support oj }he system.

'This quotation does nol include the con{iguration and/or programming o{ network, rou}ers, swi}ches, bildges, ot any o}her ancillary sys}ems that Responder CAD may be interTaced
with o}her }han the Akiit Public Safe}y Solu(ions s(andard in}egra(ed products.

"This pricing is ?NON-RFP? pricing, and is not valid as a response (o RFP, oy in a RFP scenario.

Page ] of ]

ServicesSummary Pricing

Rack Setup at Secondary Location $2,300.00
Setting up rack for hardware

Create replication"

Test replication

"Replication for Henderson Primary and Secondary locations
only. Union County replication will require additional costs.

TravelandExpenses" $2,000.00
Lodging
Car Rental

Expenses

"Pricing is based on high-level estimate. Any addi}ional
occurred costs will be billed upon completion of the work
contemplated herein.



MUNICIPAL ORDER

MUNICIPAL ORDER ACCEPTING SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE SYSTEM

PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH ALERT TRACKING SYSTEMS, INC. (D/B/A
ALERT PUBLIC SAFETY SOLUTIONS), AND AUTHORIZING MAYOR TO
EXECUTE SECOND AMENDMENT TO ALERT AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, the City of Henderson, Kentucky entered into a System Purchase
Agreement with Alert Tracking Systems, Inc. dfb/a Alert Public Safety Solutions (Alert PSS) to
purchase an integrated Public Safety Software System on November 23, 2015 ; and

WHEREAS, the City and Alert PSS desire to amend the terms of the Agreement as
set forth in the attached Second Amendment to the System Purchase Agreement which provides an
additional $4,3 00.00 to pay for additional work, including travel expenses, at the backup 911 Center;
and

WHEREAS, the City Manager recommends that said Second Amendment to the
System Purchase Agreement be approved.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED by the City of Henderson, Kentucky that
the recommendation of the City Manager is accepted, and the attached Second Amendment to the
System Purchase Agreement with Alert Tracking Systems, Inc. d/b/a Alert Public Safety Solutions
(Alert PSS) (attached hereto and marked as Exhibit A) which provides an additional $4,300.00 to
pay for additional work, including travel expenses, for the backup 911 Center, is approved,
conditioned upon approval of Henderson County Fiscal Court, and the Mayor is hereby given
authority to execute said second amendment to the agreement.

On motion of Cormnissioner , seconded by Commissioner
, that the foregoing Municipal Order be adopted, the vote was called. On roll

call the vote stood:

Commissioner Johnston:

Commissioner Hite:

Commissioner Royster:

Commissioner Mills:

Mayor Austin:

INTRODUCED, PUBLICLY READ AND FINALLY APPROVED ON ONE
READING and Mayor Austin affixed his signature and the date thereto and ordered that the same be
recorded.

ATTEST: Steve Austin, Mayor
Date:

Maree Collins, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND

LEGALITY THIS-:.DAY OF
DECEMBER, 2016

By:?a
Dawn S. Kelsey, City Attorney



UPCOMING 
BOARD APPOINTMENTS 

BOARD 

(UTILITY COMMISSION) 

Gregory Risch (resigned effective 11/30/16 

BOARD OF APPEALS (Housing & Building) 

Gray Hodge 

CITY-COUNTY AIRPORT BOARD 
(Members jointly appointed) 

Dorin Luck 
Steve Bennett 

WATER & SEWER COMMISSION 

George F. Jones III 

EXPIRATION DATE 

Current Term Expires 

04/25/2019 

Current Term Expires 

06/22/2016 

Current Term Expires 

01/05/2017 
01/05/2017 

Current Term Expires 

01/12/2017 

TERM 

3-Year 

4-Year 

4-Year 
4-Year 

3-Year 

Meeting: 12/06/2016 
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